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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBEEE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A3MHLEE
2021 2020 Increase/(Decrease)
20214 2020 LA/ R
Operating results (RMB’'000) &€ EX&(AR¥ T ) %
Revenue W & 885,539 763,808 121,731 15.9
Gross profit EHM 126,587 117,247 9,340 8.0
Profit for the year F R A 52,987 36,968 16,019 433
Profitability (%) B R £ (%)
Gross profit margin B 14.3 15.4 (1.1) (7.1
Net profit margin ) & 6.0 4.8 1.2 25.0
Return on equity P # [0] 3 14.7 111 36 32.4
Return on total assets BEERRE 5.6 5.6 . o
Liquidity REBES
Current ratio (time) B & () 1.3 1.2 0.1 8.3
Quick ratio (time) RELE(E) 1.3 1.2 0.1 8.3
Trade receivables turnover JE Wt R T 1Y 38 8 K &
(days) (XR) 68.7 58.1 10.6 18.2
Trade payables turnover BOENFERERY
(days) (X) 54.0 51.5 2.5 49
Capital adequacy BEEXFREKF
Gearing ratio (%) EEBRELE(%) 32.5 30.0 2.5 8.3
Net debt to equity ratio FEBERELE Net cash Net cash
position position N/A N/A
BHRE2MRR FREMR i A Oy
Per share data BREE
Earnings per share — basic BRAEN —EX
(RMB) (AR#®TT) 0.10 0.07 0.03 42.9
Dividend per share (HKD) BREBET)
— Interim — " H — 0.01 (0.01) (100.0)
— Final — R H 0.035 0.012 0.023 191.7
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise RAFHF  BXESZHMEN  THHAE
requires, the following terms and expressions shall have RFAZBEBWTRE - ZF xR XK HE
the meanings set out below. The English translation of fEBEM RG] BMREZTIERBFZH -
company names in Chinese or another language which

are marked with “*" for identification purposes only.

“Anhui Bund”

“Anhui Pu Jing”

[ % BB = |

“Audit Committee”
[BEZLZE=g]

“Bengbu Zhi Xin”

[ 18 & {5 ]

“Board” or “Board of
Directors”

EFe)

Anhui Bund Property Management Company Limited* (%2 9N gk ¥ %
ER AR AR, a limited liability company established in the PRC on
26 December 2005, which was a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and indirectly owned as to 51% by the Company and as to
49% by Anhui Wan Tou Property Company Limited* (& #ft% & %
BREMEAF) a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary
level until the Company disposed of its entire interest in December 2020.
Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated 22 December 2020
for further details.

TRINEMEEBER AT - —HMR2005F12 268 FEF R W B R
BEERA BRAXRRRAEZEMBAR  AARAIRLZBRRKRE X
EREFTAAB(RRARAMBARIEENBEAL) D RIBEEESI% R
49% ° AR 20205 NR2ALERAELRBIINE 2 28R - £—FH
BASHFELHARAT2020F12A22B8 M2 RE -

Anhui Pu Jing Property Company Limited* (Z#HSWEAERAF), a
limited liability company established in the PRC on 10 May 2017, a non
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and indirectly owned as to 51%
by the Company and as to 49% by Bozhou Yaodu Tourism Development
Company Limited* (Z N & # ik #2 3% E B R A7), a connected person
of the Company at the subsidiary level

ZHRBESMEBRRAR - —HR2017F5A10BEFRKIMBRE
ETRAE REARFRIFE2EMBARAR BAARAREMEREREEREA
RAR(ARRIMBARIEENBEEAL) D RIBEEBS1%K49%

the audit committee of the Company
RARRAIBEREES

Bengbu Zhi Xin Property Company Limited* (HEETEEZWEBR A
Al), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 13 September
2004 and a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and is indirectly
owned as to 58% by the Company, as to 12% by an Independent Third
Party and as to 30% by Bengbu Investment Group Co., Ltd.* (#FB& & &
BB A 7)), a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level
HIETEGEWEARLQR  —HR2004FIABREREXRLINAR
BEERA BRARBINFELZEMBLAT  AAXARAREEASE»S  —
ZEIUFE=ZTEANNLERREEBFR AR (RRANBARE®
WEEAL)HEE30%

the board of Directors of the Company

ARAEESE

SET R EIRARR AR 4R 2021 3



DEFINITIONS
e

“BVI"
[RBRAES] |

“CG Code”
[ & A8 it

“"Company”
/NI 5

“connected person”

[ AL 15
“Controlling

Shareholder(s)”
[ 12 % A% 3R it

“Director(s)”

[E%] i1
“Group”
(A& E | i1

“Hefei Zheng Wen"

(&R X] tC

“HK$” Or “HK dollars” or
“HK cents”

BTl B e

“Hong Kong” or “"HK"”
[& 7] i1

the British Virgin Islands
REBRIES

the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules

EHRRIM ST MAEEXER TR

Riverine China Holdings Limited (B L Bl AB R A R]), an exempted
company incorporated under the laws of Cayman Islands with limited
liability on 27 July 2016
LA BEZERABER AR - R2016F7A27BREBEREH S AR TMA L
MEREEREERT

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
EBLMRBAETZANRE

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules and, in the context
of the Company, means a group of controlling shareholders of the
Company, namely Partner Summit, Vital Kingdom, Mr. Xiao, Source Forth,
Mr. Fu, Pine Fortune and Mr. Chen

EALTRAMETZANRE  BRARQRAME  BARARERK
REE Rem ZEH -HEE R B4 EHEREE

the director(s) of the Company
ARARMES

the Company and its subsidiaries
RRR R EHK B QA

Hefei Zheng Wen Bund Property Management Company Limited* (& BT
B NEYEEIEBRAF), a limited liability company established in
the PRC on 14 April 2004, a joint venture company of the Company and
indirectly owned as to 50% by the Company and 50% by an Independent
Third Party

BETRXIEDEERBERAR - —BEEFTBER2004F4H148 K
VHERBERT  BRARFAEERELRT  AXARAHEEEBS0%
KBE—2BLFE=HBEEEBS0%

Hong Kong dollars and cents, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BILRBEN BEHNEAEE®

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REEFEFITHE

4 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



“Hong Xin”

[33h R

“Independent Third

Party(ies)”

(B E=7]

“Listing”
[ 7]

“Listing Rules”
[ET#8 81
“Model Code”

LT

S8

“Mr. Chen”
[ 5t 4 |

“Mr. Fu”
[fEE4E]

"Mr. Xiao”

[H k4]

“Mr. Xiao YQ"

BT &EE]

DEFINITIONS
Bx

Hong Xin Environmental Group Company Limited* (BARIRIEE BB R
2 \]) , a limited liability company established in the PRC on 5 July 2000,
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and is indirectly owned
as to 51% by the Company and as to 49% by Independent Third Parties
BRI R E AR AT - R2000F7ASBEFRBIK I AEREE AR
RARBINFEL2EMBRR  HARGMEEEN%  BILE="%H
49%

an individual(s) or a company(ies) who or which is/are independent
and not connected with (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) any
directors, chief executive or substantial shareholders (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules) of the Company, its subsidiaries or any of their
respective associates and not otherwise a connected person of the
Company

BINRARR - EMBRARAIZEMNES HRTRABXRETERR(CE
ERFTHRANIEZEZEMNBEALR BEBE(TER ETHR
ADMIERRA 2 @EALTHEALRA]

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
PRADFEREZ PTER BT

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

BXMESFLTARA  ETRER M ARMIT A EK

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
FHRAKMSETAE LT ETAEFETESFRRFINFETA

Mr. Chen Yao (FR ), the Controlling Shareholder
PR IZ S A RS AR R

Mr. Fu Qichang ({8 & &), the Controlling Shareholder, vice-chairman of
the Board and an executive Director

BEELELE ERRR EFCRIFERATES

Mr. Xiao Xingtao (H #&), the Controlling Shareholder, chairman of the
Board and an executive Director

HEEBELE BEBRR BEFSXIFRITES

Mr. Xiao Yugiao (H T &), an executive Director, chief executive officer,
and the son of Mr. Xiao

BEYBRE ATESERTREILBELEENE T

SET R EIRARR AR 4R 2021 5



DEFINITIONS
e

“Nanjing Songzhu”

(R AT 5

“Nantong Pu Sheng”

[FE @ E s ]
“Ningbo Plaza”
[ R I T & 35 | &

“Partner Summit”

== b=
“Period”
[ 58 A | 18

“Pine Fortune”

[= ] 15
“PRC" or “China”
[ B | Ei1

Nanjing Songzhu Property Management Company Limited* (& &= #2177 ¥
¥EIE AR AF]), alimited liability company established in the PRC on 5
July 2012, an associated company of the Company and indirectly owned
as to 44% by the Company and 56% by two Independent Third Parties.
MR EERAERAR - —HEPBENR2012F7ASEXZNER
BERR BRARAIMELHE BHARAHEEBMM%BMABE L
E=FHE6%

Nantong Pu Sheng Intelligent Property Company Limited* (79 3& i 5% &
BEW ¥ B TR A A]), a limited liability company established in the PRC on
18 October 2017, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and
indirectly owned as to 51% by the Company and as to 49% by Nantong
Sheng He Property Management Limited* (FG@ R MEEIEEGR A A])
EEAREEMEBRAR - —HR2017F10R18EEFRBEKIHNE
REMERR  ARFWNEZEMBRR ARG REEBNMESE
1B RN E 5 R fE & B 51% K%49%

Ningbo Plaza Property Management Company Limited* (Z& % m ¥ ™ /& 15
Y EIE B R QA alimited liability company established in the PRC on
20 January 1995, an associated company of the Company and indirectly
owned as to 49% by the Company and 51% by an Independent Third
Party

ERMHTESWEEEARLQA - —EEPBERI1995F1 8208 5K
VHEBERBEERR  RARABMECE  AAXARAREEFI9% KA
— BB E=FEEEEN%

Partner Summit Holdings Limited (& /= % & & R 2 F]), a company incorporated
under laws of the BVI on 16 June 2016 with limited liability, which is owned as
to 87% by Vital Kingdom, 10% by Source Forth and 3% by Pine Fortune and is
one of the Controlling Shareholders

EEERARRAR > —HER2016F6H16BERBERABRE XESEET
M BRAGR  AEH  REAREEDHIEBET% ~ 10% K3%
BERERBRREZ—

the year ended 31 December 2021
HZE2021F1N2A3MBIEFE

Pine Fortune Global Limited (& (R Bk A R A 7)), a company incorporated
under laws of the BVI on 16 June 2016 with limited liability, which is
wholly-owned by Mr. Chen and is one of the Controlling Shareholders
ERRXERAR - —HR2016F6A16BRBERBE X HEEAET
MKW BERAR - DHREEZEHEE  BERERRR 2—

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purposes of this annual
report, excludes Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan

hEARKAME  BRAFEME - FEEES RFARAE
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“Pujiang Holding”

IR T %2 A%

“Pujiang Property”

Bipn/EN

“RMB” or “Renminbi”

TAR%]

"SFO”

R e ih-gC 3N

“Shanghai Bund”

[ £ o]

“Shanghai Bund Green”

[ £ 7 5 wr AL )

“Shanghai Bund Ke Pu”

[ 78 51 7

“Shanghai Jie Gu”

i

[EBNA]

DEFINITIONS
Bx

Shanghai Pujiang Holding Company Limited* (L 88 /T A R A R),
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 18 June 2007, which
was beneficially owned as to 87% by Mr. Xiao, 10% by Mr. Fu and 3%
by Mr. Chen
EEBIERERAR - —ER2007F6A1BAEHRBEKRYHARE
ERA DRBHEEE BEEKRAEEEREFE7%  10% M3% MK
&

Shanghai Pujiang Property Company Limited* (/88T ¥ B R A7),
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 2 December 2002
and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
EEBBIMEERAR  —HAEFBERN2002F12A2BK LN ARE
ERAF  BRARAINEEZENERR

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC

Securities and Future ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
(BHERBEBROINEBEOFESNE) BTKER - A AHA
7 B

Shanghai Bund Property Company Limited* (/8 5N# ¥ B R A A)), a
limited liability company established in the PRC on 8 April 1996 and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
EEBINENEERAR > —HAERBERI996F4AHK LN AR S F
NE BRARTNEEEZENB AR

Shanghai Bund Green Construction Company Limited* (_t & 9MN# 4k 1t
2R AR AR, alimited liability company established in the PRC on 10
August 2004 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
FEMNESEERBRAR - —HEFEN2004F8A10BK I E
REFEQR BRARAINBEEZEWRB AR

Shanghai Bund Ke Pu Engineering Management Company Limited* (_E
EINERE TREBEMRAR]), a limited liability company established
in the PRC on 30 November 2004, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company and indirectly owned as to 97% by the Company and as to 3%
by an Independent Third Party

FREINBRDETIIRERAR AR - —HENR2004F 11308 £ B K
WERBEERR RARAIZEMBAGR  AARAREFREFIT%
MA—BBILE=7T+HB3%

Shanghai Jie Gu Technology Company Limited* ( F/8 M AR BB A7),
a limited liability company established in the PRC on 3 May 2016 and an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
FEMTARMBRERARA - —HMEFBENR2016F5A3BXN I EREE
RA REARFBNREEZENE QA

TR EERARAR F3] 2021 7



DEFINITIONS
e

“Shanghai Jiu Yi"

[EBAME] B

“Shanghai Qiang Sheng”

[EE®RAE] 18

“Shanghai Rui Zheng”
[ /8% IE ] ¥

“Shanghai Xin Shi Bei”

[L&%mit] 5

Shanghai Jiu Yi Property Management Company Limited* (_t &A1& %)
¥ EIE AR AT, alimited liability company established in the PRC on 8
April 1996, a non wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and indirectly
owned as to 51% by the Company and as to 49% by an Independent
Third Party

FHAGHEERERAR - —REFBEMCFI4ABEK LN BR
BEERA  REARFINEEZENBRR  HARAIHEEEEI% R—
BELE=ZFHEBAIO%

Shanghai Qiang Sheng Property Company Limited* (L /88 AW ¥ B R
72 A)), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 17 December
1992, an associated company of the Company and indirectly owned as to
30% by the Company and as to 70% by an Independent Third Party
LEBREMERAERLDA  —HEPEMINFLZATTEXRLNERE
ERA REARAIBMELE HARGIBMEEAIONEB—EBILSE
=HHEEEETO%

Shanghai Pujiang Rui Zheng Property Company Limited* (_E /&8I I% IE
Y FR A 7A]), a limited liability company established in the PRC on 8
January 2004 and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
FEBBEIMEMERRAR - —HEEPEN2004F1AEK LB B R
BEERF RARRNMEEZEZEME AR

Shanghai Xin Shi Bei Enterprise Management Service Co., Ltd* (/8% ™
L EEEABRAF), alimited liability company established in the PRC
on 6 July 2005, an associated company of the Company and indirectly
owned as to 27.5% by the Company and 52.75% and 19.75% by two
Independent Third Parties respectively. On 16 June 2021, Pujiang Property
and the other two shareholders of Shanghai Xin Shi Bei, who are
Independent Third Parties, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with the purchaser, which is a major customer of Shanghai Xin Shi Bei,
whereby, amongst other things, Pujiang Property agreed to transfer and
the Purchaser agreed to purchase 27.5% equity interest in Shanghai Xin
Shi Bei from Pujiang Property for a consideration of RMB40,755,000
(the “Disposal”). The Disposal was completed on 30 June 2021. Upon
completion of the Disposal, the Company ceased to have any interests in
Shanghai Xin Shi Bei
bPEFHmILCEXERBRAGF - —MEFEN2005F7H68 K 7 &
EREERA  RARABMELE  AARARAEER275% KA
BBLE=FD R HE52.75% F119.75% ° 2021568168 » HIY
FHEPEHTILAMMERRORBLE=ZA)REH(LEHTI
CEBEREPRFIN—HEEHZ BUH(HPERE) HIVEREE
ZEMEAREMBIVERBE FBFMIL275%EE  RE/RARE
40,755,000 ((HEFIEH]) - HEFHEN2021F6A308RH - h&E
ZEREE  ARATBHEES LEHFMILEMER

8 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



“Shanghai Xin Di"”

(L]

“Share(s)"”
[ B 1]

“Share Option Scheme”
& I wE st 3]

“Shareholder(S)”
[ A& 28 |

“Sino Ease”

[ %2 |

“Source Forth”

R R
“sq. ft.”
RN

“sg. m.”

[ 77 5

“Stock Exchange” or
“Hong Kong Stock
Exchange”

(B 32 BT | 2k [ & B B 52 P

"Vital Kingdom”

EXil

EC

DEFINITIONS
Bx

Shanghai Dong Fang Xin Di Commercial Service Company Limited* (£ /&
RAMBEEBERBEER QA a limited liability company established in
the PRC on 10 December 2015, an associated company of the Company
and indirectly owned as to 45% by the Company and as to 55% by an
Independent Third Party
FERITMEBAHERBERLRA - —MEPBER2015F128108 K L
MERBEERA  RARAKERLE  AARAIBEERIS%LH—
BBILFE =T HEEBS5%

share(s) of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the Company
ARR AT F B EE0.018 LA AR {7

the share option scheme conditionally adopted by the Company on 15
November 2017
RATR2017FE 11 B15B B R 1 540 & B8 AR v 51 &)

holder(s) of issued Share(s)
BETRONIFTAEA

Sino Ease Global Limited (R & 3R ELA R A 7]), a company incorporated
under laws of the BVI on 16 June 2016 with limited liability, which is
directly wholly-owned by the Company
FLRIRHKARRA - —HR2016F6A6HRBERBRE R BB AET
MARZOBRRR  REARGBHNEEE2EWNBRA

Source Forth Limited (RRIEPBRZAR]), a company incorporated under
laws of the BVI on 8 June 2016 with limited liability, which is wholly-
owned by Mr. Fu and is one of the Controlling Shareholders
EBEBERAR  —HR2016F6 AR BRBREXHSAMKINE
RAR - DHBEERE2ERE BREBRKRRZ—

square feet

FHR

square metre

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

BEEBMAERXZMARRIDE

Vital Kingdom Investments Limited (£ & & H R A7), a company
incorporated under laws of the BVI on 17 May 2016 with limited liability,
which is wholly-owned by Mr. Xiao and is one of the Controlling
Shareholders

ZEHEEARAAF - —ER2016F5RA17TERBREBE R BB EET
MRZBBERRR - NHELXE2EHE BRAERBRRE Z—

SET R EIRARR AR 4R 2021 9



DEFINITIONS
e

“Zhong Min Zhi Da"

FPREE] B

"o

[%]

10

or "Per Cent”

Zhong Min zhi Da (Shanghai) Information Technology Company Limited*
(FPEBEE(LEBEEREBRAQF), alimted liability company
established in the PRC on 13 November 2018, an joint venture company
of the Company and indirectly owned as to 57.02% by the Company and
42.98% by four independent third parties

TREZ(LB)EENMKRARRAR  —HR2018F1NAI1I3R X & H K
UHERRAR  RARFINEGERERR  HARABEEHEF57.02%
B RMEBILE=THE42.98% # =

per centum or percentage

Bk
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The Group is a comprehensive provider of urban public
services in the PRC and is mainly engaged in the
provision of property management service for high-end
non-residential properties, leases services of commercial
buildings and integrated urban sanitary services in the
PRC.

The Group provides a wide range of property
management services and value-added services to a
variety of properties. The properties managed by the
Group can generally be classified into four categories
based on nature and usage, which are comprised of
(i) public properties (including public arenas such as
cultural venues, stadiums, exhibition halls and public
transportation properties such as rail station and airport
etc.); (ii) commercial establishments (including shopping
malls, hotels, commercial and entertainment complexes)
and office buildings; (iii) residential properties; and (iv)
others (including schools, land parcels, industrial areas
and properties under construction).

The integrated urban sanitary services include
road cleaning, refuse classification, collection and
transportation and maintenance of public environmental
sanitary facilities such as public toilets and garbage
containers.

THE GROUP
REHE

AEEATREARTALREHER
SHEATES TR REANEEE
R BEETRERERIEHME— B
B RS -

AEERTRERNDEREZEDEER
RBRIBERS  ARENEEDE—RKRA
REEMEMAESSOERR - BIOAR
MEBREXLSH BEERREESA
FIGEAR R REEFERARIBYE)
(EEZAREERS BE BERR
LEEB)RBAKE (INVEEWE: Kv)
Hah ¥ (BREER il  TE¥ERERER
E IR

ISR %)

WHE-BIELRERBEHRERE
3 R0 By B2 17 3 AR

BREMBEUNRFENR
ERHRFREHOME -
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR - HERERBE

ABOUT THE REPORT

Introduction to the Report

Riverine China Holdings Limited (“Riverine China”,
the “"Company”, and together with its subsidiaries,
" or the “Group”) is pleased to publish the fifth
Environmental, Social and Governance Report (the
"Report”), which discloses its sustainability performance
and progress for the fiscal year 2021, in response to the
concerns and expectations of stakeholders regarding the

"

we

Company’s sustainable development.

Scope of the Report

Unless otherwise specified, the Report covers Riverine
China and its principle subsidiaries Shanghai Pujiang
Property Company Limited (“Pujiang Property”),
Hongxin Environment Group Co., Ltd. (“Hongxin")
and other subsidiaries. The specific statistical scope of
environmental data will be described in the "Protecting
the Environment, Guarding Our Home" section.

The Report covers the period from 1 January 2021 to 31
December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”), and part of the
contents may be extended as appropriate.

Basis of Preparation

We have prepared the Report in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(2016 Edition) (“Guide”) under Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules The Report has complied with all mandatory
disclosure provisions, including the “comply or explain”
provisions in the Guide. For matters related to corporate
governance, please refer to the “Corporate Governance
Report” section in Riverine China’s Annual Report.
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Reporting Principles
The Report was prepared based on the four Reporting
Principles set out in the Guide:

RIE #HE8KRESR

BE % = Al
R E PACHE 31D B9 10 K BE 3R IR Bl 4R &5

wE

We have identified environmental, social and governance issues that have a

significant impact on our operations and have disclosed them in the Report.

Principles Definitions
=AY E&
Materiality
2 BPEBMNERE -

BERRE -

HEMEARTHUHEZEFEEYENEZE

W RAR

Quantitative ness

Where feasible, key performance indicators were disclosed in a measurable

manner.

g1t ERTBEAT ABREUFAFENTAREARERIER -

Balance The Report provided a comprehensive and unbiased picture of our sustainability
performance in ESG aspects during the Reporting Period.

1 AREXEUEEMZREMANBERANERE HEREBHTENAIHF

BERKRR -

Consistency

The scope and statistical methodologies of the Report are consistent with those

of the previous year, allowing stakeholders to make meaningful comparisons.
Any changes in the scope or statistical methodologies will be explained in the

notes for reference.
RRERN RS
10 ¥ 45 &6 [

— M

FENSETEREF B UHNE
Bt n A E  AABRMETBEBAGRZE -

SHEBESTIERERNLER -

Form of Publication

The Report is published in two language versions,
i.e. Traditional Chinese and English. If there is any
inconsistency between the two versions, the Traditional
Chinese version shall prevail. You are welcome to access
the Report in the PDF format from the annual report
published on the Company’s website at www.riverinepm.
com, and SEHK’s HKExnews website at www.hkexnews.
hk.

Data Source and Reliability Assurance

The data and cases in the Report are mainly derived
from the statistical reports and relevant documents
of the Group. The Report does not contain any false
records or misleading statement, and we accept
responsibility for its contents as to its authenticity,
accuracy and completeness. The Report was approved
by the Board in March 2022 following the confirmation
by our management and the Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG") Executive Committee.

REBRMER
AHENEBPAXREXMEZE RAE
TEMm EERNAERLEGFEEZR BN
ERBPUMARLE - BETRAIERRDFMIL
(www.riverinepm.com) JA & & 7 Bt X BT #% &
2 48 4 (www.hkexnews.hk) 2% 5 &9 F 3 1 &
ER 7K ¥ &5 B PDF AR A o

HERERATEHEHR
ARENBBENRAEZTERERAEENSR
ATl E KA - ZMB%%TTEEHETEX
REHREMRL BMEERTEEMN -
EBUENTEHEE ARESLERMHER
[ RIRIE ZiA&E./m(fESGJﬁHTT;AEﬁ&
RE - M0N2F3EEESRB
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RIR - HERERBE

SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

ESG Concepts

The Group manages a number of large-scale property
management projects in China and set foot in the
urban environmental sanitation business following the
acquisition of Hongxin in 2020, becoming a leading
provider of integrated urban services. We have always
adhered to the core values of "integrity, innovation,
dedication, win-win”, and fulfilling corporate social
responsibilities is one of our priorities. We are committed
to taking practical actions to promote our sustainable
development. At the same time, importance has been
attached to the establishment of a good relationship
with our stakeholders. We actively listen to and respond
to the expectations and needs of all stakeholders via
efficient and smooth communication mechanisms.

Corporate sustainable development is one of our
business cores. We always adhere to the rule of law
and make plans for corporate social responsibilities
from the aspects of quality service, benefit creation,
scientific and technological innovation, employee
development, product safety, environmental resources
and community welfare to continuously promote the
sustainable development. We even proactively carry out
a series of corporate social responsibility activities to
strengthen communication with stakeholders, understand
community needs and create corporate value together
with them.
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ESG Governance Structure

As an important form of non-financial information
disclosure of listed companies, ESG has become an
indispensable part of their annual reports. As the
decision-making body of the Group, the Board plays an
important role in the oversight of ESG issues.

We have established a top-down ESG management
system that clarifies the division of responsibilities from
management level to executive level, and integrated
ESG concepts into the corporate strategic planning and
operational decision making process. The management
system was initiated by the Board of the Company,
reviewed by the ESG Executive Committee and
implemented by the ESG Working Group.

RIR - HERERBRE

ESGEAR 1B

ESGIER EMARGEH B EERBENEZR -
ERRBERFRP AR~ DM
EXSFERASENKEERREE  HESG
EENEERERER -

BMELTELEM THESGEER R - BBiE
FIEREREEOZENTEAMNEEST  #
ESGESR ADEHME A EBELAKBE -
ZABBEBRARRNEZSEE  ESGH
TEECEDL  YHESGIENEEZEETHRIT -

* Responsible for assessing and determining ESG-related risks

o B B FTEIE FESGIERE S

» Ensuring that the Company establishes an appropriate and effective ESG risk management and
internal control system

o BRANA R R A BB RHESGRREIE R NE RS

» Examining and approving ESG-related policies and reports

o FHESGIRMBE LIRS

« Responsible for implementing ESG risk management and internal control

» BEHITESGRARE TR M AAFEE

o Guiding the ESG Working Group and reporting to the Board

o JEEESG/MATIEY FREFE

« Examining and approving the ESG reports and ensuring the accuracy of
performance indicators

o FRESGHE - WHERARIERHOERIE

« Responsible for collecting ESG-related data and preparing reports

« B RESGHEMEEMKEMBERES T

« Reporting to the Executive Committee regularly to help the
Company assess and determine whether the ESG risk management
and internal control system is appropriate and effective

o EHANTITE S RER - B D E]RHE REEESGRER

EERANERRRTAERER
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RIR - HERERBE

The Board has ultimate responsibility for the Group’s
ESG issues, and its ESG management approach and
strategy include establishing the Company's overall ESG
governance structure, introducing a Board participation
mechanism, setting ESG management objectives,
and assessing and determining ESG risks. The Board
prioritised climate-related risks, such as transition risks
to reduce carbon emissions. To effectively manage
climate change risks, the Board set up management
objectives for the Reporting Period, which were to
reduce electricity consumption, water consumption,
gasoline use, office paper and office waste and properly
dispose of office waste. The Board also followed up on
the implementation of management objectives, such
as comparing the resource usage of the current month
with that of the previous month. If the increment is
abnormal, it is necessary to find out the reasons and
make improvements in time.

Role of the Board
EEEAE

ESG

ESGE ®|

Environmental

EEeHAEENESGEEASRET &
ESGERBHTH A RBBERE L RA B HESG
RIBERE SIAESTSL2HEES - B FESG
EEAEZE BFENETESGER EFg
BRIEEENRRY BELRIESIE WA
RERERMEGENAERRS - BEXE
BRiEZER EFeXNREHNEER
ErREBEEAEE BREFLKE BEAHA
E RALOWARE - BIOMANBNEZEZR
BRABEEY EFTENTSREETEERN
WMITHER WEREARZAAMONERE
RE BEERTF FTERFEEL RESGE -

In order to cope with global climate change, the Board shall monitor whether

the Company has made adverse impacts on the climate and environment during
its daily operations and service provision.

R REHE2HRAGEEL EFTFFTEERAERELERERRBNBRES
ERHRKE RREKRTRFZE -

Social The Board shall monitor the conduct of its members and employees of the
Company to prevent misconduct and irregularities.

e EEgREEAEKERAFAEINTR URBETERERTTR

Corporate Governance

The Board shall oversee whether the Company strictly implements the relevant
provisions of the Listing Rules and discloses relevant matters in time in
accordance with the provisions.
EEEREELFIRERBAMITLTRUNEERT  XREHRT KR
BHEEEHE-
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Good corporate governance is an integral part of
sustainable development.
establishing systematic corporate governance practices to
ensure compliance and integrity in our operations. The
Group has established internal control,
and management systems, and the Board reviews
and maintains their adequacy and effectiveness. We
integrate ESG risk management into our risk assessment
and management systems. The Board is responsible for
assessing and determining relevant risks, and ensuring
the effective operation of ESG risk management and
internal control systems to proactively respond to risks
and opportunities arising from global warming.

We are committed to

risk assessment

The ESG Executive Committee is responsible for reviewing
and discussing the sustainability priorities of the Group,
as well as the operation status of the ESG management
system, in order to ensure that relevant approaches and
policies are in line with its business development, and
to effectively respond to the expectations and concerns
of stakeholders. Looking forward to the future, we will
continuously implement the ESG management system
and optimise it according to the requirements of the
Stock Exchange and in light of the actual situation of our
operations to make it more systematic and professional.

RIR - HERERBRE

BROLEEAEZARKBEERTFIARIH
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R HERERRE

Communication with Stakeholders

As stakeholders are vital to its sustainable development,
the Group strives to maintain communication with them,
listen to their views and expectations and respond
to their concerns through various channels. We look
forward to formulating better development strategies
and policies by understanding the suggestions of
stakeholders, with a view to improve our performance,
while creating environmental and social value. We
identified the following six main types of stakeholders
who had decision-making power or influence and a close
relationship with us:

NEMEELEE

MBI REMANTHEEREEMHEEA
Rt ARER N ENSHEIRFERMN - K
BREERNMBF UAAEREREBMAD
K - WP EB TN SRR R
ERTECENERRER I - BHRER
FEMANERNRE - BIERENRTEEE -
BB EREARAREXTEN L AER
PMERZ DA T RANE BT

To understand the expectations and concerns of
stakeholders more clearly, we actively maintain effective
communication with stakeholders through multiple
channels to adjust and improve ESG-related measures
and respond to them. The following table shows the
expectations and concerns of all stakeholders and their
communication methods during the Reporting Period.
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Communication

Communication

Stakeholders Expectations and Concerns Methods Frequency
MEHEEL H 28 B AR R BERA BEAR
Government and ¢ legal and compliance operations ¢ Information submission e Monthly
regulatory ¢ Safety and environment protection e Conversation with e Yearly
authorities e Payment of taxes regulatory authorities
BT RE ERE s BEARKE s FRMX * AE
s ZERRIK s EERBYE s £
o BT R
Shareholders/Investors e Revenue and return e Company announcements e Irregular
Business development e General meetings Yearly
Compliance of operations e Site visits Irregular
ESG governance e Regular reports Yearly/quarterly
BRE/REE e %5 B # * RAIRE TE B
s XBER s REKE s £
s ARKE s BEMER o NiEH
* ESGIR B s THIWmE « FF/FE
Customers (property * Quality of service and satisfaction e Telephone communication e Irregular
owners, tenants, of property owners ¢ Joint meetings e Yearly
property users, etc.) e Communication with property ¢ Annual meetings * Yearly
owners/users e Regular visits e Irregular

e Integration between business and
local community development
¢ legal and compliance operations

EP(Ex HP- s REmBEZIRERE s FHEED o NEH
MEERESE) s XX /BEREER  BEEH s FE
s XBHEHMMHBERAS s FEEH s £

s BEBRKE s THIFD o« NiEH

Suppliers e legal operation and quality e Supplier meetings e Yearly

standards e Online surveys e |rregular

¢ Fair and reasonable treatment for ¢ Audit and assessment e lrreqular

business partners e Bidding activities e |rregular

¢ legal and compliance operations
¢ Quality of service and satisfaction
of property owners

HER s HEMAZELLMERE c HERHE R ° FE
s XBBHUHATAENGS s MEERAE o TEH
s RIEARER o Bzl e NEH

s REMERELIREE s RIBEEY o TEH
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Communication
Frequency

BEER

Communication
Methods
BEAX

Stakeholders
FREEA

Expectations and Concerns

BB EFR

Employees

il
H

Employee benefits and welfare
Employee safety and health
Legitimate recruitment and use of
workforce

Employee training and education
Quality of service and satisfaction
of property owners
BEIFBHEEN
EIREEZ S
BEARAL
ETHRBEEHE
REREREITREE

Employee representative
meeting

Company activities
Letters and visits
Suggestion box

BIREAR
AAED
&3

R

Yearly

Irregular
Irreqular
Irreqular

FE
TEH
TE 5
NEH

Community

R

Community environment

Charity and public welfare
Community contributions

Legal and compliance operations

HERIRE
BREDNH
TR AR

REEHRKE

Community
communication meetings
Visit and investigation
Press releases/
announcements
HEERES
EERE

wER RNE

Irreqular
Irreqular
Irregular

TE 5
TEH
TE H
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Materiality Assessment EEMEETM

In order to identify risks and opportunities and formulate
corresponding strategies and decisions, the Group strives
to improve the method to assess and the process to

Ap e R R 8 - I HIE R SRS
RR AKEENEZERUEZENTEHT
AEBHERE BRARE2AHBEEER

determine material issues, ensure the full disclosure of HJESGHHRZE @+ LA KRB ERRF 488 5
material ESG-related issues in the Report and respond to $fHRMIBETH S ETMHHLEEF K -
the expectations and concerns of different stakeholders

for us to fulfill our corporate social responsibilities.

The process for the Group to assess material issues in

2021 consists of three steps: T=1E2 8

Reviewing and
examining
material issues

BEEMEE

[ BTN ZEAR

e We reviewed and examined the materiality issues identified in 2019 based on
usiness operations, industry development trends, ESG related standards and
guidelines and other information, and confirmed of the importance of ESG issues.

o MEEBELTN - (TEBRRBY - ESGHAERINESIZFEL - $20205

R LR EZMFEEETT T AR EEMER - WHERESGEEMER OJ

~

Identifying
potential ESG
issues
w5l EEESG
B3]

¢ Based on the Company’s existing business, ESG reporting guidelines, and industry
ESG management priorities, we selected potential ESG issues covering five areas, i.e.
environment, employees, products and services, community, and governance.

s REBEARNARIRAES  HFEESGHREHMIESIEK - {TTXESGEIEER - &

ERERR - BT - Bl - LB NEATERKBHOELESGEE -

e We determined the disclosure focus of the report content according to the ranking of
importance; analysed the key concerns of stakeholders and determined the ESG
governance response strategy.

s BIEEEMHFETRENDTNEEEL  oMHSEE S E@ETEE
HETFESGATE IE S 5RAK o

IR BEIERAERAR F3) 2021

AEBEQIFEEEMEZBETHBREREMU
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Through the above evaluation and analysis process and
the discussion of the Board, the Group has identified
issues that have a significant impact on its operations
during the Reporting Period as the focus of disclosure
of the Report, which also provides an important basis

B&E

for the Group to perfect its management system and

sustainable development direction:

Environmental
BRiE

Use and influence of
raw materials

EMBERARRE

Employees
ET

Employee
benefits and
welfare
BIFBERBN

Products and
services

EmBR#%

Protection of
users’ property,
health and safety
REEE A& 6B
E RBEEZE

s/ @

B

HMEEeRLERFEONER
TWW SN BERAEAEEN L E
MEBERARENREEE
NABRMTEEEREREAMAFERRT
A E ZKE:

Community
#HE

Communication
with property
owners/users
¥ ERER
]

ANKREE

Governance
A

Legal and
compliance
operations
BEERES

Waste treatment and
emission reduction

[ 22 ) 5 ¥ BEORL BF

Employee safety
and health

S TRRERT 2

0
b

\

Quality of service
and satisfaction of
property owners

REmEREE
B E

Integration
between
business and
local community
development

X5 EE M R
HRBA

Legal operation
and quality
standards

HEBAEZES
o E R %

Water resources
consumption and water
preservation

KB R H #E SR K

Employee
training and
development
BTHIEER
Legitimate
recruitment and
use of workforce

BEAEBRAT

Equipment
reliability

R ST

Standardised
management

FEELER
Anti-corruption

k&S
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ADHERENCE TO INTEGRITY, COMPLIANCE
WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Honours

We adhere to good corporate governance and provide
customers with the best quality service. During the
Reporting Period, the Group was honoured to receive a
number of awards, including but not limited to:

° Top 500 Chinese property management service
providers in terms of comprehensive strength in
2021

o Top 100 property management service providers
in terms of comprehensive strength in Shanghai in
2021

o Five-star property management service providers
in terms of comprehensive abilities in Shanghai in
2021

e AA-grade property management enterprise in terms
of integrity and commitment in Shanghai

Anti-corruption

We have always maintained the highest ethical standards
in our operations, with importance attached to the
principles of honesty and trustworthiness, compliance
with laws and regulations, integrity and self-discipline.
We implement top-down anti-spam, anti-corruption
and anti-fraud policies. The Group strictly complied with
relevant laws and regulations, including the Criminal Law
of the PRC, the Anti-Money Laundering Law of the PRC
and the Anti-unfair Competition Law of the PRC, as well
as code provisions of the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In addition, the
audit and supervision department was set up to manage
anti-corruption related work.

RIR - HERERBRE

BFHE 8GR

NAEIRE

RMEREHNCEEL ARFPRESE
BHORS - RBEMN  ALEBLEERES
B8 - RIEATERL

o 2021FEMERBKEXRSSE H50058

s 2021FLBTHERBEEAREE

* 2021FLBTMYMERBESENTER
=S

e LEMHERERITENEAZAARD
ES

RES
BEM—RYEBFNKEER TN mEERE
ER -ERRETE GEERRERAR
MERB  BETELEMTHORER REFSK
REFOBREK AEEBRBETF(REAR
HAMBERE) (PEARKFMBE R %KL -
(FEARZMBRTEEFRFE)EHEE
BER UEEBBMEIZIMBERARCE
MRADK &+ AT 2(REERTADA
WTAMEXY  BRUBFERPEREREBIBE
BRAEMIIE -
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RIR - HERERBE

The Board of the Group is responsible for supervising
the effective implementation of the Company's
internal control, anti-corruption and whistle-blowing
preventing the occurrence of management
collusion among employees and fraud
triangles, and checking whether there is an absence
of the Company's internal reward and punishment
measures and governance structure so as not to provide
opportunities for fraud. The Board shall not put pressure
on the management to falsify financial data due to
poor financial conditions, nor shall it make excuses for
the lack of professional ethics of the management to
gain benefits through financial falsification. The Board
organises annual learning activities on the updates to
the Listing Rules and the Corporate Governance Code to
diversify its views and avoid conflicts of interest.

systems,
override,

We have formulated the Measures for the Assessment of
Integrity and Self-discipline in accordance with relevant
laws and regulations, in which the prohibited items are
listed in detail and corresponding penalties are set up.
Employees are required not to use power for personal
gain, not to sacrifice the interests of the Company, not
to violate personal professional ethics, not to leak secrets
of the Company and not to steal corporate information.
They are required to sign the Letter of Responsibility on
Personal Integrity and Self-discipline every year, which
is attached to the Performance Evaluation Measures
for Business Departments/Functional Departments. In
addition, we have added integrity and self-discipline
clauses in our contracts with suppliers and contractors,
requiring them to be law-abiding and disciplined in their
work.
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Moreover, the Group requires employees to have a
high level of awareness of anti-corruption practices and
strives to maintain openness and accountability within
the scope of its operations. The Company designed and
released “zero tolerance” posters and set up an audit
and supervision hotline to strengthen the building of a
culture of anti-corruption and integrity. Employees are
encouraged to report any violation through our hotline
or email address. An investigation will be conducted into
reported cases. In the event of a criminal case, it will be
submitted to the judicial authority after the approval by
the Board; otherwise, the case will be jointly handled
by relevant functional departments. The Group will
seriously investigate and correct violations of laws and
disciplines. We keep highly confidential the identity of
whistle-blowers and the reported matters, and strictly
limit the scope of knowledge of the investigation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group was neither
aware of any major anti-corruption-related violations, nor
received any corruption proceedings against the Group
or its employees.

Supply Chain Management

As suppliers are one of the important elements for the
Group to provide quality services and are also important
stakeholders in its sustainable development process, it
attaches great importance to supplier management. We
take a fair and impartial attitude when selecting our
suppliers and implement a standardised operation model
of integrated planning, bidding and procurement to
standardise bidding and business cooperation process.
We actively communicate with suppliers to establish
good cooperative relations. We also attach importance
to suppliers’ response to environmental and social risks,
prevent and combat unfair competition, prevent potential
corruption and fraud in the supply chain, and maintain
fair and just cooperation.

RIR - HERERBRE

Ioh  REBERBETHRESEBES R
MR ABRIRERMNEERENER
ARAMELEEY -  REIARE RFTEEMET
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Policies including the Regulations on Management
of Service Outsourcing have been formulated, which
clearly regulates the procurement process of the supply
chain, admittance criteria, evaluation and hierarchical
management of suppliers, etc. Meanwhile, we effectively
manage potential environmental and social risks in the
supply chain, and implement supplier screening and
performance evaluation system, in a bid to improve
service quality. Suppliers are required to sign the
Letter of Commitment to Integrity and Self-discipline
in Commercial Transactions to eliminate potential
misconduct in the supply chain. The Supplier Database
Control Procedures set up evaluation procedures such as
supplier admittance conditions, prequalification, selection
and quarterly regular re-evaluation to oversee and
manage the supply chain.

Meanwhile, we encourage suppliers to actively use raw
materials or packaging materials that have less impact
on the environment or have obtained environmental
protection certifications to reduce carbon emissions and
environmental pollution. In the Supplier Information
Survey Form, suppliers must fill in whether they have
obtained ISO 14000 Environmental Management Systems
certification or similar certification, as one of the
references for selecting suppliers.

During the Reporting Period, we had a total of 597 major
suppliers, among which 122 suppliers are from Shanghai
and the remaining of which are from various regions
in China, and 125 suppliers have passed the relevant
evaluation and management procedures.

Service Procurement

The Group standardises the selection and audit process
of new suppliers according to the Supplier Database
Control Procedures. Suppliers shall be reviewed at
least annually, and the Qualified Supplier List shall be
released following the confirmation by the review team
and approval by the general manager. We systematically
manage the bidding process and strive to be fair and
just. We give priority to the material, labour, service
and technical suppliers with the qualifications of
ISO 9001 (Quality Management Systems), ISO 14001
(Environmental Management Systems) and OHSAS
18001 (Occupational Health and Safety Management
Systems), and adopt different selection criteria according
to the nature of industry in which a supplier operates
and policies that meet environmental and social risk
management requirements.
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To ensure the quality of services, we continuously
optimise the procurement process and improve the
management for suppliers. Our purchasing staff searches
for suitable suppliers through professional market
surveys, trade fairs, etc. We prepare the List of Qualified
Service Providers based on their performance in quality,
delivery date, price, labour standards, occupational
health and safety, and professional ethics during a
review on suppliers, and list qualified suppliers in the
supplier database based on review results. We divide
the qualified suppliers into three levels: A, B and C from
high to low according to evaluation results, and develop
the corresponding procedures for drafting and approving
contracts, respectively. Moreover, we regularly eliminate
unqualified suppliers and establish long-term and stable
cooperative relationships with excellent suppliers.

Level A Level B

A&

B &%

e To further develop partnerships
with these suppliers. When
entering into new labour
service contracts, the
management office shall give
priority to Level-A suppliers.

s E—FTHREZHEFNA
R EERER S
BRBERERE A BHER
g e

RIZIEAAE %R

* To maintain the existing .
partnership, i.e. renew a
contract when it expires.

s RF/EBNEERE A5

RIR - HERERBRE

RERRBEE  RASEELYRRER
BMeEHREREE RANKBEARSH
BEXTHRAES EaRESEFHASHEA
BEOEER - EETHERNER  BMAE
FAEHERNEE QMNHR - BRK 5T
BE BEEFEMZENBRERSFRA
REC(CERRBET RS TARBIES
R BERHEBRIIAHRERBEES - &
MBERHERRBIGERESIES A
A~B C=EHEH - DR ETHENS
F#EE B RE - LI BAIEEHH R
TREBRWHER HEFOHHEBEARZ
VEHRBENEGIERRE -

Level C
C#

To gradually reduce cooperation
with such suppliers. In principle,
a contract will not be renewed
when it expires.

o EEMAIEZETNENE
RA L& RB B BESE
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RIR - HERERBE

Service Supervision

After entering into cooperation with suppliers, we
continue to track and monitor the service level of
suppliers to ensure that their service quality meets the
our requirements. We conduct unified management
on suppliers, and the relevant departments shall
aperiodically make a spot check on suppliers in
accordance with contracts, supervise their work quality,
and submit the Monthly Project Management Report to
ensure service quality of the service providers meets the
requirements agreed with the Group. In addition, we also
regularly organise exchange meetings, mutual visits and
relevant trainings with suppliers, including experience
sharing, safety education, environmental compliance
and emergency response. We will commend suppliers
with excellent performance. The supplier management
department arranges interviews with the suppliers with
unsatisfactory performance to analyse the reasons,
formulates and supervises the implementation of their
rectification plan so as to help the suppliers enhance the
overall management level.

Moreover, the Regulations on the Management of
Production Safety Responsibility System have been
formulated to supervise whether the production process
of suppliers meets safety standards. Suppliers are also
required to sign a “safety agreement” in the Safety
Management Work Procedures.
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EXCELLENT SERVICE, QUALITY ASSURANCE
Quality Management

The Group is committed to providing property owners
with homelike property management services. We
strictly comply with the laws and regulations on health
and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy issues and
remedies for the provision of services, including the
Cybersecurity Law of the PRC, the Advertising Law of
the PRC and the Regulation on Property Management.
We have established a quality management system as
early as 2004, aiming to continuously improve service
quality. Over the years, the Group has been optimising
its service quality management system and has become
certified to GB/T 19001-2016/1SO 9001:2015 Quality
Management System Requirements, the Chinese standard
and international quality management system standard.

We formulated and implemented systems, including
the Management Manual, the Management Manual
on Service Outsourcing and the Property Inspection
Manual, and guidelines on quality management, such
as the Compliance Evaluation Control Procedures and
the Nonconformity and Corrective Action Procedures,
establishing standards for management, review and
evaluation during operations. The Group regularly
reviews, sorts out and revises internal normative
documents, and continuously updates the quality control
specifications in many aspects including risk control,
surveillance and measurement control, internal audit
It formulated detailed operation
instructions according to the characteristics of projects,
and strengthened the concept of quality training
through employee training to continuously promote the

improvement of quality management level.

and error correction.
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RIR - HERERBE

Amid the COVID-19 pandemic, all employees are
required to wear masks and have their body temperature
measured when entering projects, and visitors must
present their health code and travel code. The moves are
to ensure the safety of customers and reduce the risk
of infection. We also record the temperature and health
status of our employees on a daily basis. Those who
have visited medium-and high-risk areas need to hold
certificates with negative nucleic acid test results before
they can work. In the meantime, the Group increases the
frequency of disinfection and takes measures to ventilate
the public areas in projects and puts up anti-pandemic
posters to enhance customers' anti-pandemic awareness.

Proper management and protection of property owners'
information and privacy is the Group's commitment.
We strictly comply with the relevant provisions on
information security and privacy protection in laws and
regulations, such as the Cybersecurity Law of the PRC.
We established the customer information management
system and detailed rules for the implementation,
clarified departments’ responsibilities for safe operation
of an information system, and standardised the specific
work related to the information system such as privileged
access management, emergency handling, computer
room management, data backup and recovery, so as to
ensure the safe and stable operation of the information
system. We carry out special training for employees who
need to access customer information, and require them
to perform duties of public security. Before seeking
approval from the property owners, any trespass of
visitors will be prohibited. We never expose the family
and financial situation, address, phone number and other
privacy information of the property owners to anyone,
strictly protecting customer privacy security.
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As for advertising, the Group strictly complies with the
laws and regulations including the Advertising Law of
the PRC as well as the code of practice in the industry.
The legitimacy, authenticity, scientificity and accuracy of
the publicly released information are strictly evaluated.
Publication of deceptive and misleading marketing
information and materials is strictly prohibited to
effectively protect the legitimate rights and interests of
customers.

Due to the nature of its businesses, the Group does not
involve any product recall. During the Reporting Period,
we were not aware of any major violations related to
service quality, privacy protection or advertising.

Customer Communication and Service
Customers are the focus of the Group's sustainable
development. We consistently provide customers with a
good service experience and maintain a good relationship
with them.

We actively maintain communication with customers,
continuously communicate with customers during and
after offering services, and listen to the comments and
suggestions of customers (including property owners), in
a bid to make timely adjustments to the service content.
Our channels for communication with customers are
comprised of two parts: communication between senior
leaders of the property companies and representatives
of the property owners; and communication between
the management office of the property projects and
responsible parties of the property owners. The former
mainly starts from overall services, while the latter
mainly takes into account the improvement of service
quality and service standard of the projects. Through
combination of the two communication channels, we
effectively communicate with customers in different
aspects.

RIR - HERERBRE
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The following table shows the main channels through WUTAXEBRBREFRNEZFEBENTE
which the Group communicated with its customers 2R3 e
during the Reporting Period.

Annual meeting Monthly meeting Special meeting
ﬂiranﬁz ﬂranﬁz EEEEH&

". Annual work summary for ". Monthly work report for property "- Special or unexpected
property services, work plan services, work plan for next events that occur in
for next year month provision of property
MERGEETEELE - T YIRRRIS A TIEESR ; services are the core of the
FEIIEE B T{ExtE meeting
W2 RS R TR 2R
EHREFRL
wmu  Once a year, usually in wmu  Once a month, usually at the end wmu  [rregularly
EH December EH  of the month
BE—R —RESF BA—R —REAREBR TEHE
#1273
3&& Leaders on behalf of property 2098 Department leaders on behalf of 3&& Department leaders on behalf
owners and property property owners, project of property owners, project
management companies, managers, managers of project managers, managers of project
project managers lines lines
EIEE MERF EETEAAE  HEL ¥ 7P E - JBR
BE - REKE 2 IR E B IRAREE 32 - 1B H R{bﬁvﬂ%
Satisfaction survey Instant communication
mEERS BNEEBIE
r Service quality satisfaction; service improvement r Various events in provision of property services
. recommendations - IE Y ol G- & =X
REEEREE  RGERITEZ
% Once a quarter, usually at the end of the quarter % Anytime and anywhere
SFE—K - —MEZEA AR B
208 Department leaders on behalf of property owners, 208 Relevant personnel
- project managers, managers of project lines -
EXTERFIEE - THE KR - HA B RR HEATIEAR

S
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In order to make a more comprehensive assessment of
customers' satisfaction with us, as well as their needs,
comments and suggestions, we commissioned a third
party to conduct customer satisfaction evaluation again
during the Reporting Period. The evaluation is based
on the general model in GB/T 19038:2009 Customer
Satisfaction Evaluation Model and Method Guide.
According to the service content and the type of each
property project, the Group has designed different types
of questionnaires, and collected opinions on the overall
evaluation and quality perception through face-to-face
interview, on-site interception and on-site inspection.

A total of 100 evaluation points were covered and 635
valid samples were collected. The results show that the
Group had a customer satisfaction score of 92.8 points
in 2021 and collected valuable opinions from customers.
Through the satisfaction evaluation, we can better
understand customers' satisfaction with our service
quality and the areas that need to be improved, and we
can improve our service quality based on the feedback of
respondents.

RIR - HERERBRE
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RIR - HERERBE

If any customer expresses an opinion or file a complaint
to us, we will deal with it immediately in accordance with
the Customer Complaint Handling Procedures, which
lists the responsible unit and detailed steps for handling
customer complaints:

Competent
Terms of reference

BE

departments
BEHM

Property management

EEEPMBEMELEERAIEKSF  HMEk
BAEFPIRFRIBIERRE)NMEER TR
RIE - HPJPAREBEEPRFHNAESELM
AR

Responsible for the acceptance and return visit of customer complaints to the

department company level.
YR E B BEERFIEENFEPRFNTE - @a) -

Business department
complaints.

EL BEERKRFNNEER -

Responsible for supervising the implementation of measures to settle

Management office

Responsible for the acceptance, handling and return visit of customer complaints

received; responsible for handling and giving feedback to customer complaints
approved by the property management department

B
MEFPKRFNEE  RE& -

BEEERNBINEPRFNTIE  RIE  OF:

BEVEREEMLETRK

After receiving a complaint, the person responsible for
accepting complaints will conduct preliminary verification,
record the complaint on the Customer Complaint
Record Form, and report it to the relevant personnel for
handling and communicate with the customer. After the
complaint is handled, the person responsible for handling
the complaint needs to fill in the Cause Analysis and
Corrective Actions in the Customer Complaint Record
Form, and give feedback to the complaint acceptor. After
receiving the reply, the complaint acceptor will verify with
the complainant. If the handling result is inconsistent
with the customer's feedback, the complaint will be
returned for re-handling to ensure that the customer's
complaint is dealt with seriously.

The Group did not receive any valid complaints during
the Reporting Period.
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Innovation and R&D

With the rapid development of science and technology,
we are fully aware that we must keep up with the
times and the industry, and leverage scientific research
innovation and information application to provide
customers with a better service system. We actively
develop technologies such as digital and intelligent
integration and their management applications. We
established Fourth Wall and poured vast resources to
develop the Dynamic Building Matrix (DBM) to make
buildings digital and intelligent. Visualisation and Internet
of Things (loT) enable us to combine devices, energy,
people, monitoring, environment, and more.

The DBM system is composed of a “three-tools-one-platform”
structure, which stands for task management tool, asset
management tool, tenant management tool and data
presentation platform respectively. The aim is to build into
an intelligent, ecological and digital integrated management
system. The specific functions are as follows:

RIR - HERERBRE

2l Fr A B 3%

MRERBFAR  RATAALARLER
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EELER REFPRHEEEENRBE
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BETLHNGAEERS - AEERMT:

Optimising inspections, managing repair plans in advance, managing work order

Task management tool
EKEEIA

-
-

Asset management tool

BEEEEIR

2ERENS - RERE -

enhancing user stickiness.

Tenant management tool ‘
HFEETR

Data presentation

platform

BERR¥AE

electronically, and conducting detailed data statistics.
AR TIERIL - BiEFTEITRLER  TEETLER - FABURSET -

Comprehensive equipment information, equipment warning, real-time examination
of equipment situation, and automatic formation of maintenance work order.

BEREFERBIRN - BEKMEETES -
Recording information of tenants, mobile payment, repair transparency, and
REHPHE  BEEE REERL REAPKE -

Presentation of visualisation, statistical analysis by themes, linkage of information
state, and viewing on various platforms.

ARLER - REBRADOMN - EENEHS  ZFEEF -
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the Group also
optimises its engineering services. We independently
developed the Platform of Operation and Maintenance
System of Equipment and Facility (POMS), which
quantifies the process and results of the operation and
maintenance of engineering facilities. The platform
utilises technologies including Al, loT, cloud computing
and big data, relies on our service experience in
operation and maintenance of offline engineering
facilities and combines intelligent facilities management

Apart from management systems,

platform tools with innovative and efficient operational
teams to provide customers with continuous, stable and
efficient intelligent services. POMS covers all aspects of
on-site operation and maintenance work, with digital
management in daily operation, corrective repair,
preventive maintenance, safety and protection, energy
management, construction and supervision. A sound

operation and maintenance system will be established.

The Group strives to transform and upgrade from
traditional property management to modern property
services, continuously optimises the corporate innovation
process,
development,

and encourages innovation and research and
in a bid to create high-quality service
experience for customers. We have built a knowledge
base (information-knowledge list) that aggregates
experience from internal sources (e.g., relevant experience
in intellectual property, and knowledge gained from
failed and successful projects) and external sources (e.g.,
industry standards, academic exchanges, professional
meetings, opinions from customers or external suppliers),
and extracted specified knowledge sharing for employees
to learn from and reference. Meanwhile, we properly
manage the knowledge base (including intellectual
property) to ensure that our intellectual property rights

are not infringed.
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UNITY AND HARMONY

Employment Management

The development of the Group depends on the joint
efforts of all employees. We ensure fair and equitable
selection and appointment mechanisms to attract
talents. We strictly comply with relevant laws and
regulations on employment, including the Labour Law
of the PRC, the Labour Contract Law of the PRC and the
Implementation Regulations for the Labour Contract Law
of the PRC. We have prepared the Employee Manual,
which regulates relevant systems for recruitment,
compensation, promotion, performance
appraisal, working hours, holidays, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other welfare. The “fair,
just and open” procedures have been adopted to recruit
qualified talents so as to replenish us with fresh blood.

dismissal,

The Group strictly complies with laws and regulations
on labour standards, including the Law on the
Protection of Minors of the PRC and the Provisions
on the Prohibition of Using Child Labor of the PRC to
resolutely eliminate the use of child labour and all forms
of forced labour. Our recruitment system automatically
filters all applicants under the age of 16, and verifies
the valid identification documents of the applicants
in the employee recruitment, onboarding approval,
onboarding registration and other procedures to ensure
the authenticity of their information. If any cases of child
labour or forced labour are found, the Company will
promptly review and optimise recruitment procedures.
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We emphasise diversity and provide equal job
opportunities for applicants without discrimination on the
basis of race, gender, age, religion, ethnicity and other
factors. Based on the principles of “priority to internal
recruitment, openness & equality, and merit-based
selection”, we have formulated and implemented the
Recruitment Management Regulations, which clearly
defines the principles, standards and procedures for
recruitment and allocation of personnel. The Group has
entered into a labour contract with each employee and
strictly enforced the terms of the contract to maintain
good labour relations. We comply with the Law on the
Protection of Women's Rights and Interests of the PRC to
respect the rights and interests of female employees.

Aiming to provide competitive compensation and benefits
to our employees, we have formulated the Job Rank and
Grade Table and the Pay Grade Standard, which detail
the compensation standards and promotion standards.
Adjustment is made annually to the compensation
of employees according to the relevant national
policies, corporate operating condition and individual
performance. We have established a working system of
“more pay for more work” to encourage employees to
actively leverage on their expertise and skills to increase
their income. Allowances are given to the projects under
entrusted management, which are granted according to
relevant standards during entrustment.

In terms of holiday benefits, we have formulated the
Guidance Documents on Holidays in accordance with
the State Council’ Regulations on Working Hours of
Employees and the actual situation. In addition to
statutory holidays, employees can also enjoy annual
leave, sick leave, maternity leave, marriage leave, funeral
leave and other paid leave. In order to provide additional
protection, the Group purchases commercial insurance
such as group health insurance and employer liability
insurance for qualified employees, and regularly provides
employees with health checks, including additional
special checks for female employees.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any

major violations of laws and regulations on employment,
nor did we use child labour or forced labour.
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Number of employees
EEHEBI X

Total number of employees 5,135 4,432
BEBAH
By employment type Full-time 5,107 4,412
RERELE D oy
Part-time 28 20
¥ B
By gender Male 2,306 2,081
=M RIE 5 S
Female 2,829 2,351
pegid
By age group Under 30 years old 187 196
BREKRE D 305 AT
30-40 years old 662 632
30-405%
41-50 years old 814 657
41-505%
51 years old or older 3,472 2,947
5175% 3k A &£
By geographical region Fujian 1,852 1,964
i e g o BmEA
Shanghai 1,118 1,177
s
Sichuan 1,000 875
mia
Henan 151 145
A
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Number of employees
EEHEBI X

Jiangxi 2 96
pANEES)
Hunan 5 75
MEAE
Anhui 947 61
ZHAE
Jiangsu 8 31
LFR A
Zhejiang 10 7
AN
Tianjin 23 1
RAEM
Taiwan 1 N/A!
=0 £ i@ A
Hong Kong 2 N/AT
&% N iE A
Hubei 9 N/AT
il 3@ A
Shannxi 1 N/AT
PRAEA i@ A
Chongging 2 N/AT
BEEM i@ A
Shandong 2 N/AT
WRE @ A
Gansu 1 N/AT
K N iE A
Heilongjiang 1 N/AT
EEIE i@ A
By rank Senior management 10 11
RERE S BRERE
Technicians 345 340
RiMmAE
Ordinary employees 4,780 4,081

LT@EET

1

42

The number of employees in this region was disclosed from the

beginning of the year.
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Employee turnover rates?

& &R K bt R 5| &2

Total employee turnover rate 49.93% 60.02%
BEBMKLLLE
By gender Male 41.02% 52.86%
=M RIE 5 S
Female 57.19% 66.35%
g
By geographical region Fujian 63.98% 68.28%
i [ &8 5 rEE
Shanghai 22.72% 15.21%
ti#
Sichuan 64.50% 93.37%
g
Henan 81.46% 94.48%
A
Jiangxi 100% 7917 %
AT
Hunan 0% 69.33%
A
Anhui 24.29% 73.78%
ZRE
Jiangsu 25% 38.71%
AN )
Zhejiang 0% 0%
WIIE
Tianjin 17.39% 100%
RIE™
Taiwan 0% N/A3
aEA i@ F2
Hong Kong 0% N/A3
B T iE e
Hubei 33.33% N/A3
i ] 36 A3
Shannxi 0% N/A3
it = 36 A3
Chongging 0% N/A3
BEEM A i@ 3
Shandong 50% N/A3
IR E i A3
Gansu 0% N/A3
EE) i e
Heilongjiang 0% N/A3
REIE i@ A3
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Employee turnover rates?

& & K bt R 5 &2

By age group Under 30 years old 47.59% 43.88%
BERE D 30 AT
30-40 years old 27.79% 30.70%
30-405%
41-50 years old 36.12% 37.60%
41-505%
51 years old or older 57.52% 72.38%
515k A £
2 The employee turnover rate for each category is calculated 2 ZEEINNEERAEHELARN A REHANZE
as: Number of employees leaving in the category during the FMETHBAY/ BERSHRZENNERE

Reporting Period/total number of employees in the category as 8 A#H x 100% °
at the end of the Reporting Period x 100%.

3 The employee turnover rate in this region was disclosed by the 3 AEBRAFERBERZLENEERKLE -
Group from the beginning of the year.
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Talent Promotion

The Group provides different promotion opportunities to
allow internal talents to grow. We select talents through
gradual promotion, internal competition, exceptional
promotion and other channels. With the Promotion
System in place, we offer promotion opportunities for
employees of virtue and talent and with outstanding
performance, achievements or special skills based on the
combination of “vertical” and “crisscross” promotion.
We uphold the principles of “suitability and applicability”
to select and promote internal employees who meet the

ATEH

FEERHEIAEAKE  BAMESFSAT
BUKRE: RMBBEREA - RIBFREU
MBBREREECERAT - AR I(E
FHE) KATERIBEIXRXIBEENHH
X REBEIRE BENEM AREMA
ERATHRNEIRESAKE - HMFH
(Eea@EMINRE - BEER BAFAR
MERRRBEEMWOHRNILE T I - BM
THRRERERZ  BFEL BET]
W% R TEBEIERNS THIER
job requirements and show outstanding performance. In & * JRKAFE AL
addition, we regularly carry out performance appraisal

and demote incompetent employees based on the criteria

of “flexible promotion and demotion”, in a bid to strive

for fairness and justice.

Gradual Promotion

BREFH

We encourage young
employees at all levels to
continuously improve their
professional skills in their
respective positions, and
to make achievements
in their professional
fields. Those who are
recognised in the year-end
performance evaluation
will be promoted.

HMEBERFEETHE
HEBEIFmi ETEHRA
BEAMEXERE  YESF
EXEHBEmES  BFR
BHTERSRATE &
BEET -

Internal Transfer

A B 5 B

In order to establish an
internal talent competition
mechanism, optimise
human resource allocation,
and motivate employees to
be enterprising, we have
established an internal
competition mechanism.
When there is a vacancy in
the internal management
positions, we first conduct
an internal selection and
recruitment, providing
unimpeded promotion
space for employees at all
levels.

BEMANIAT B FH
#l - BEANBERES -
BB T HEIGEME - BN
BRI ERE - FH
IR ERE TR L ZE R
FHEITAPEE  BER
ETREGBENARZE
Ml e

Exceptional
Promotion

WA RN

Employees who make
outstanding contributions
to us or have special
talents will be promoted
after being nominated
by the human resources
department, reviewed by
the Party committee and
approved by the general
manager.

HEMELRBERKE
BRI BE BANER
MR BEEER EE
I Y 1R AT A B AR AR K -

According to employees’ career
development plan, employees
can be promoted according
to their professional positions,
or they can be transferred to
other professional positions
based on their competency
development.

REEBIBRXLEERR
RE - ATARBEELE
Tt ABEEE T
MERMABEEMEE
EARVAS N
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R HERERRE

Employee Communication

Happy Riverine — Sunshine Lighting is the portrayal of
the Group's internal working environment. We leverage
good communication to build harmonious and simple
interpersonal relationships, and advocate effective
communication and cooperation between individuals
and companies, and between individuals. We respect
the feelings and opinions of employees and establish the
following communication channels:

ETESE

[FRBEL — BARZIZEAEERNTITE
BRENER RMAMNBRENER ZER
A BERBERARBGR  REEARDSE -
BAARBAZENSRZRESEERER - &
MEBEEETWMRIEER YRIUATZE
BERE:

Employee committee

46

Open-door policy
9 5 B BX

Work meeting
THER

Job interview

TR

BIZE®

Managers welcome employees to directly express their ideas and questions
with an open mind. Managers shall actively follow the thoughts and emotions
of their subordinates.
EBEABUMMEEBROETIERRBENMER AKEBAEBNE
EXHETTEONBENISLE -

Managers are encouraged to attentively listen to the team’s opinions through
work meetings when setting objectives so as to co-share the vision.
EEEREAMTERNREBBATIFERMEREEGNER KRS ZM

=2
= °

Superior leaders will have an interview with employees to understand the
situation and listen to their opinions about new employee regularisation,
salary adjustment or job change, job evaluation, career development plan and
resignation.

MEIEE BEIRFAEUEE TEFIEH BEZERASIURETIER
HEBEERT  FRAESMKEETHETEHN  THEBERL BMER -

The basic functions of the employee committee are to participate,
communicate and supervise. Any employee can express his/her opinions and
ideas to us through the employee committee.

BIZESENELAREI2HE BB EE -MREIBFERMEZE A
ARABIZEERMAMRE
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Health and Safety

The principle of “safety first”
in the operation of the Group, which strictly complies
with relevant laws and regulations on occupational
health and safety, including the Production Safety Law

is of paramount importance

of the PRC, the Law on Prevention and Treatment of
Occupational Diseases of the PRC, the Regulations on
the Administration of Occupational Health Examination,
the Measures for the Administration of Work Safety
Training and the Regulations on Safe Production of
Shanghai Municipality. We have obtained GB/T 45001-
2020/ISO 45001 : 2018 occupational health and safety
management system certification, aiming to ensure the
safety of the working environment.

Moreover, we have
formulated rules and regulations including the
Occupational Health and Safety Management Manual
and the Employee Code of Conduct, which clarify the
safety and fire protection responsibilities of employees,
and identify and reduce occupational safety risks, in
order to create a safe, healthy and comfortable working
environment for employees and ensure their physical
and mental health. In view of hazards, the Group has
compiled and implemented the Hazard Identification and
Risk Assessment Procedures based on the Measures on
the Administration of Hazardous Chemicals of Shanghai
Municipality, Identification of Major Hazard Installations
for Hazardous Chemicals, Catalogue of Special
Equipment and other regulatory requirements, aiming to
identify hazards in various activities within the Company,
evaluate and control risks. In the process of identifying
and assessing safety risks,
reducing risks from the identified hazards in our
operations through elimination, substitution, engineering
controls, administrative controls and personal protective
equipment. We conduct safety inspections regularly
to comprehensively prevent potential safety hazards,
formulate and implement corrective action plans when
necessary, and effectively promote the risk prevention
work.

based on the actual operations,

we consider effectively

RIE - -HERER

BREHEZZ

EAREEMNEEF BMEAERIZEE
—IWRA BRETF(FEARANBEZ 2
EEER)(PEARKNMBIE ZEREEE)
(BEUBRERTERIEN) (24 ERE
NEBRE) (LEBETLZTE2EERINER
¥RELEHEBEEEER RBEBERIERSE
MEZz BPMELABGB/T 45001-2020/1SO

wE

45001 : 2018 X R L 2 TR RBEARE -
BEATNBERESF N M E T

XREZ2EEFMICEITINDERE
HE REEINZTE2MBEHBE - &5
FEEBREXZzRR SETRHERZ2 £
FSENTIHERRE  YRAELFOEE-

e ERRE AEEECLELETRERBIEER
EEME) (ERIEEBREXNERIR P H)
IERESREESR)SEEERNER L R

YW EB(ERBRHBINRARTERF) - #
MARIBEAZTEESRNERIER TG
THI R - F&X 2R KRR TG BERE
FoBRMBELHBENNERIRERER
KEHOBER REB  ILiEE# BRHRES B
BiEd - EAARLENARN - BREEERERE -
BMERABRLZ2UE 2EHEMZZ2ESE -
EVERGIELEERNE - BFEEER
R IEBH TIE -
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RIR - HERERBE

Besides, the Group strictly requires all employees to hold
relevant professional certificates, including operation
qualification certificate, professional qualification
certificate and certificate for special operations, to ensure
work safety. To ensure that all employees have sufficient
safety knowledge, we organise fire safety trainings for
security guards, controllers and security administrators
in accordance with the provisions of the Occupational
Health and Safety Management Manual and the
Employee Code of Conduct. The training contents include
importance of safe production, on-site safety education,
fire safety, national production safety approaches and
policies, situation and accident education, casualties and
first aid.

The Group assigned some employees to work from
home and reduce their trips amid the pandemic, in a
bid to avoid infections. Hand sanitisers, alcohol-based
disinfectants and masks are also available for use by
employees. Our medical kits include Lianhua Qingwen
Granule and other commonly used medicines for
emergencies.

During the Reporting Period, a total of 13 work-related
injuries occurred in the Company and Hong Xin, with a
total of 859 lost working days, and three work-related
fatalities took place?, with a ratio of 0.06%. We have
established the HRBP Guideline on Social Insurance
and Work-Related Injury Reporting to standardise the
reporting procedures for compensation. After these
events occurred, the management has dealt with such
events in accordance with formulated processes and
relevant laws and regulations in a timely manner. During
the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any major
violations of laws and regulations on occupational safety.
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RERERGRMESHITS

A, BSZ2LAZNIIIL

B HEEIHER L0

# i ®

tEBELALERLF

B R AR

s EATREA SRR D
BRUEMBEREERRTE
GB/T 19001-2014 / 180 9001:2015

BELENERRT:

Sy EE R S R e A

L PR LI LR e DL LB L Er R LT

L AR E T

VAR T

ok M

STF 1 S AR E
REEW: 5020 200 M 06 1 e
TR 70044 26 b o

Case: Training on safety laws and double prevention of
special equipment in 2021
RO 2021FER2ERBERBEER B EI

We held an EHS (environment, health and safety)
work conference on 28 October 2021, and invited
experts to explain relevant laws and regulations and
management methods for special equipment, in order
to improve the safety management awareness of each
management office and the management level of
special equipment.

This training emphasises the management of safety
risks related to property management business and the
relevant regulations on double prevention of special
equipment, including housing safety management, risk
management of facilities and equipment, employee
safety management risks, background of double
prevention, identification and troubleshooting of
risks and hidden dangers. We also require employees
to complete safety knowledge tests to deepen their
understanding and impression of safety management,
so that they can more effectively identify, troubleshoot
and manage safety risks at work, and make our
working environment safer.

ARESEERENZ2EEERRERE
REHEEKTE - HPIRN20215610H28H
BHRTEHS GRE - BRELZ ) TEEE -
WEEBTERERBENEEEHRE
BERENEERE -

HRBEINERFDEEEXHBHBANL S
RRERE UAREBERELEEAHOE
AP NAERFEXZ2EE RER
wRARERE BIXxzEREAR Z£EMR
BITHESS  BRMEENEMNERES
FRETKRZE2AMEAE IR MY
REEBRNRBAMENR - O MEIED
EEEMENLZ2ER X MAKFERE
B ERMANIERREEL R -
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Training and Development

The growth and progress of employees is the cornerstone
of the development of the Group. So, the Group
constantly improves its training system and learning and
exchange platform, and encourages employees to show
their strengths according to their skills and interests. We
also provide diversified career development paths for our
employees, leading them to grow together with us.

In order to achieve the sustainable development of the
Group and its employees, it formulates and implements
the Employee Training and Management Measures
according to the needs of its operations and employees
to standardise the training and management work,
and specify the requirements for the skills and work
experience of employees in each position to ensure that
they are competent enough to work. We provide suitable
training for different participants according to training
needs, and offer diversified training, including practical
training and qualification training, in a bid to improve
their professional skills.

Practical training
BEE

fya

e |Internal training, including safe production,
supervision of the property service centre,
onboarding, daily management knowledge,
project manager class of Pujiang Academy,
and practical operation training for each
position

o XA BREZELE MERGTLE

8- MBIAR - ARERAN RISk
HEKE - SR BERRESR
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Qualification training

ZEE

4

e Qualification training, including intermediate
and senior titles (engineers, economists),
technicians and senior technicians
(management, engineering, security), various
types of engineering recertification, registration
certificates of security guards, security officer
certificate

o SR (TIZAD - LEED) - REDR SR
IxEhiR (B3R TiE R%) BETIZERE -
KL LHEE - T2 BEFINKEELE
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Regular assessments are conducted to evaluate the
overall learning outcomes based on the performance of
the trainees to ensure the effectiveness of the training.
The assessment results are used as a reference basis for
human resources related activities such as job transfer,
rank adjustment and performance evaluation. During the
Reporting Period, we carried out a series of face-to-face
and online training courses, including training courses
on brand management, human resources management,
building operations, green engineering, and property
project management, which were offered by external
and internal lecturers, allowing employees to acquire
knowledge and improve skills to help them grow
together with the Company.

2021
2021%
Number of
employees
trained

Statistics on

employee
training

B2 s RIWAH B kS

By employee category

Average

training

Percentage’ hours (hour)
F19 23
B 81 (4 B¥)

RIR - HERERBRE

BPEMETERTML GEXIEBEINT
ERAFGEEBEBUR - BARE I
NEBNEZERIERETIRUAY  BR
HE BURERFAZTEINSZKE - W
EHA - RARRT - RIINE R RERE
JIRE EPEEREEE ANBERER-
BFLE IR KWEEBEESE
IR BHINERAMBEAETHER  EE
TEBME R BRRARKE -

2020
2020
Number of
employees
trained

Average

training

Percentage hours (hour)
Fi9 23
R 8 (4 )

ZIAR Ba

EEEERE S
Senior management 10 0.13% 120 11 0.16% 120
SREBAS
Technicians 385 5.00% 50 340 5.00% 50
BitAB
Ordinary employees 7,304 94.87% 48 6,452 94.84% 74
TimBE
By gender
ZHRE D
Male 3,252 42.24% 46 2,996 44.04% 66
S
Female 4,447 57.76% 47 3,807 55.96% 76
g

5 The percentage of employees trained for each category is 5 SEAMNEENZIEALFAERR A - BREHR

calculated as: Number of employees trained in the category
during the Reporting Period/total number of employees trained
in the category as at the end of the Reporting Period x 100%.

ZEANEENTIAE/ BEREHRZIEER
HBAE X 100% ©
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PROTECTING THE ENVIRONMENT,
GUARDING OUR HOME

Environmental Management

As a property management company, the Group has an
impact on the environment, which is mainly reflected
in the greenhouse gas emissions generated in the use
of energy and water resources, as well as the waste
generated in the operation process. For the sustainable
development of ourselves and the community, we have
always adhered to the tenet of “Caring for the Earth
and Protecting the Environment”, closely monitor the
development trend of environmental protection in the
industry, and implement environmental protection work
to build a beautiful China together with the community.
We strictly comply with relevant laws and regulations
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land, and generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste, and minimisation of significant
impacts on the environment and natural resources,
including the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC,
the Law on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution
of the PRC, the Law on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Wastes of the PRC, the
Energy Conservation Law of the PRC, the Regulation
on Property Management and the Regulations on the
Administration of Pollutant Discharge Permits. To reduce
our impact on the environment, we have obtained ISO
14001 Environmental Management Systems certification.
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We also formulate management systems such as
Environmental Factor Management Procedures in
accordance with the above-mentioned laws and
regulations, and regularly update internal management
policies to standardise the environmental factor
management process and clarify the responsibilities of
each department, so as to systematically identify and
evaluate environmental factors in our business activities
and service process, effectively control risk factors, and
provide a basis for the formulation of environmental
protection-related policies and goals. In order to
more effectively manage the energy performance of
our properties, our DBM continuously monitors the
energy usage data of the properties and implements an
intelligent environmental management system.

RIR - HERERBRE

BT EKR LR RERHECRERRE
BEF)SEEFE Y AEHEHARE
ERE HRERNZEEREETRSL 7
AEBANTERE EMAERGHBRARAN
SERNEEES  REBEFHRRERH
AIEFEIE ARMEHREBREE A
RIEREHBNERRLBES ERHEER -
RTEABMEERFE N ERRREN -
A AT 3 9 [DBM] BT ) X rOREIR (£ A Ui

THEEZE BTRREHLEERRK -

Environmental Factor Management Procedures
REREEERRF

Person/department in charge

BEANEEEM

Outline of procedures

Relevant documents/forms

MR RAS

Quality risk
management department
BEREE

Identification of
environmental factors

RIERERR R

Environmental Factors
Survey and Evaluation
Form

(RERZFHENFER)

Quality risk
management department
BERE

Integrated management
department
e EIEES

Quality risk
management department
BERAERD

Quality risk
management department
BEREX

Evaluation of
environmental factors
RIEAZE

Setting of environmental
objectives/targets
HE R E B IR/AER

Confirmation and update
of environmental factors
and significant
environmental factors
RBEREMEBEBEZIRER=
R B

Significant
environmental control

EERFES

List of Significant
Environmental Factors
(BEBEREBERKRFH)

Objectives and
Management Scheme
(BENERATR)

Environmental Factors
Survey and Evaluation
Form and List of Significant
Environmental Factors
(CREARZRFAERTER)
(BEERERRFE)

IR BEIERAERAR F3) 2021
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In addition, in order to reduce the negative impact
of emergencies on the environment, the Group has
formulated a series of accident emergency plans,
including the Contingency Plans for Environmental
Pollution, the Contingency Plans for Leakage of
Hazardous Chemicals, and the Contingency Plans for
Leakage of Toxic Gas, and set up a relevant emergency
response team, clarify the emergency handling
procedures, in order to minimise the impact of its
operations and services on the environment.

In response to the Notice Concerning the Implementation
Opinions on Accelerating the Upgrade and Renovation of
Small and Medium-sized Boilers in the Municipality issued
by the General Office of the Shanghai Municipal People’s
Government on 27 December 2018, we conducted
investigations on properties involving the use of boilers
under the management of the Company according
to requirements, promoted relevant upgrade and
renovation, and conducted environmental assessment
after completion of renovation, in order to ensure the
equipment’s satisfaction of emission requirements and
reduce exhaust gas emissions from such equipment.

During the Reporting Period, we were not aware of any
major violations of environmental laws and regulations.

Resources and Energy Management

The main resources used in the operations of Riverine
China and Hongxin include water, electricity, unleaded
gasoline and paper. In order to ensure efficient use of
resources, reduce carbon emissions and cut operating
costs, we implement various policies, including
the Regulations on the Administration of Energy
Consumption Reduction and the Regulations on the
Administration of Motor Vehicles, which clarify the
content of energy conservation, while implementing
unified vehicle management and a special maintenance
responsibility system to improve management and control
of resources and energy. As the water used by Riverine
China and Hongxin comes from the municipal network,
there are no issue in sourcing water. The wastewater
generated during the office process is preliminarily
treated by the sewage treatment facilities of the property
management firm of a building and discharged into the
municipal sewage pipeline.

54  RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

Rt 2o BEREREZHLSRRETRNE
TE AEETHETORRSREHE
=ERR) (ERELEMERESEAR) (B
SERBHEREREAR)FT RINEFHERAE
oYWK AMBEES A FTHEIKIER
FrERARA RRARERERMEER
REBEFHRRENTE -

E e LB WA RBAT A ER20185F12H27
B 3% 5 &9 CRE 5 N IR HE 3 AR T A /)N SR B 1R AR
NETEEREZEENBN)  RMEREE
KB AREREERNSREARBEOYEE
THE  WHERBARERETIE  REE
THREETRIIE BREBHREHERE
KoM ZERBEHERYEN -

BREHA - RALRABEMERRFREEA
EHEROEREM -

ERERERE
HITBEEAMRELETEANTIEERE
‘KB -BHAUBMNARAR - RME®
TRBRAERERE BB - 8D FR
MERREEERAE - BRE(EREREERE)
RCRBEEERE) JATHHNERSTT
ERE FARETERA —EEREARE
BES  AEZEBEREREEZMES - BT
FEMAMHOAKKETRES  ~FEXR
BAKRDEOEE: MM RABREPEENRE
KEBEBMEREMENSKEERE &
NI RBEBEATBIFKEE °



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIR - HERERBRE

During the Reporting Period, the Group has been ATENZEHWERAEENREFE W
awarded the environmental management system SHR G BHMNHLIE AHXSHAEEELS
certificate from the Shanghai Certification Center of AEMNYEETEHESTLEEERMRE
Quality Technology for the property management of HLUMBRREREBRZRBEZE o I &M
office buildings, public places and commercial complexes, 7N # i — R 51 B9 38 e LA IR 7+ 82 R R K B TR B9
hoping to better manage the environmental impact {FRKEANRBRIEZEY  AEREEELE

oo A= EEE A Bk

caused by the Group. Moreover, a series of measures HER K BZEREUEN - EDEEREENE
have been unveiled to improve the efficiency of energy 12 :

and water use and reduce waste, air and greenhouse gas

emissions from energy consumption, so as to achieve the

goal of energy conservation and emission reduction:

Electricity
consumption
management
REER

Cleaning the air conditioning air return filter quarterly to increase
the air volume as much as possible

BEEBATZARNRBEN HrRESRAE

Carefully calculating the monthly maximum demand value of
electricity to enable the monthly electricity consumption to be less
than the maximum demand value reported to the power supply
bureau

BLOAESRARERATERE EEAREEIRLELHRHEER
MR AR EE8E

Standardising the upper and lower limits of temperature adjustment
for exhibition halls

RERBRERAG TR

Monitoring the optimal setup of energy facilities

BB RRENXERERBR

Setting escalators at idle mode

BHEBREEGFERN

Turning off the air-conditioning and lighting left on by office
workers

N5 BB~ A B = B8 #Y 2= 58 A0 IR B

Turning off other lights in public areas except for the normal lights

& el B B~ k[ 135 B B R O Y EL ) AR AR

Employees in the equipment room should turn off the lights when
they leave the room

ERBREMIIABKE  BFEE

Switching off electric equipment immediately after use to avoid
idling

REXRBERATERFCANHERN BEgRTEHE

The cooling temperature of air conditioning in the building shall
not be lower than 26T, and the heating temperature shall not be
higher than 22

BAZERAE LTS TEN26T RBESTEMR22T

Priortising energy-saving and eco-friendly equipment when
purchasing new equipment

REFTRER BLZROERRERSE
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Water consumption
management i

RKE =

()

Avoiding any “dripping and leakage”, and preventing tap from
keeping running and lights from keeping on as well as “improper
utilisation of resources”

HBIEABR] BIERRK RABRIRKLBREINER
Reasonably adjusting the water inlet valve of sanitary fittings and
turning down the water output to make it just meet the needs of
use
EEARSRAEKAN BIHKE EZHFHEERFTR
The slogan, “Save water by turning off the tap”, is posted next
to taps in all washrooms, which are supervised and managed
by administrative staff. When using toilets and sinks, employees
shall save water and turn off the tap in time. If any abnormality is
found, informing the administrative personnel department or the
maintenance department to deal with it immediately
BAZTKEBRERMIHOBK BFEFAINZEE  BITERA
BEREEE BIRAGER AWHLE BIBHORK K
REMKER WMEREEBR CABANITHRAFTHREE
B 5 32

Depending on weather condition, we reasonably arrange watering
to prevent wastage
BEREERRXRBEAZETKRK 2BAK #2RE

Office supplies
management &

WARSEE /

Setting printing permissions

REITHER

Using electronic documents, verifying document accuracy before
printing to avoid printing waste, and using double-sided printing as
much as possible

EREFXH THIRBXHEELEBR2ITEHRE - R0
{5 A3 & [ 47 £l

Recycling waste paper

JBE 4% B8 7 A

Office waste such as ink cartridges, lamps, and batteries shall be
collected by administrative staff

BE RBE BSHAFPLEEVR —KHITHRABZHOEK

Vehicle

management ﬁ

REER

Encouraging the use of public transport and walking
SEERAARTBEITRLT

Reducing the use of fuel vehicles

B D R H B R R B

Replacing fuel vehicles with new-energy vehicles

R RER KR h &=
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As the property management business is service-oriented,
we have less adverse environmental impacts such as air
pollution and carbon emissions than the manufacturing
industry. However, as industry leaders, Riverine China and
Hongxin still start from themselves. In order to actively
respond to climate change and protect the ecological
environment, the Group has drafted the Environmental
Factor Management Procedures related to the industry.
Based on this, it will improve the efficiency of its
energy and water use to achieve the targets of reducing
pollutants and greenhouse gas emissions.

The following table shows the Company’s and Hongxin's
environmental performance in respect of resources
consumption and emission during the Reporting Period®:

RIR - HERERBRE

A ) 36 B IR BT R R 64 IR TS - R PTK
FSRERHERSRATANTREEREY
BTEE - ERTRARALRIERITENE

- RELRRE  BEETERITERENCR
SERXEERRF) TEAMAER . &8
EeRMOEREIKERECAN D  EER
LERDEBERBHRNBIE -

UTERRTARBARAMNRBERANEHE
TRE R R BE R e IR R A RS

Resources consumption

EREAE

Unit
B

Direct energy consumption

EERREE
Gasoline consumption MWh 1,115.83 72.31
RAE K E B
Gasoline consumption intensity MWh/vehicle’ 26.56 18.08
FomT = K BB 7
Indirect energy consumption
& 4 BE JFOH
Electricity consumption MWh 118.15 106.26
HES Ik B B
Electricity consumption intensity MWh/sq.m.8 0.05 0.05
RERE K EK T oKe

6 During the Reporting Period, the statistical scope of data about 6 REMAHBRERRNREK BE RHLOBAK -

water consumption, electricity consumption, office paper and
solid waste covers the Company’s Shanghai head office and
Hongxin. The statistical scope of data on gasoline consumption,
greenhouse gas emissions and vehicles’ air pollutant emissions
has been expanded, which covers the Company’s Shanghai head
office and Hongxin. The Company will continuously strengthen
and improve the data collection system to expand the statistical
scope of data.

7 The Shanghai headquarters of the Company and Hongxin have
42 vehicles.

8 The office area of the Shanghai headquarters of the Company
and Hongxin is 2,262.73 sq.m.

BEZVWHESABERSARALNLENE
MMAERAM-MAMAE BERBHERR
ERERSAVERBERABEEMER &
EHRABEASARRMRN BB MRAE R
R-ARRFEBNBRTEEHNRERE - AR
RBERAHE -

7 ARARLEBERBPRRAERDMAERL2ZBER -

8 ARALEGBRAE

AR #t A E & B2,262.73
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Resources consumption

BERERE

Unit
B

Other resource consumption

H &R HE

Water consumption Tonne 1,359.00 1,292.00
KB Mg
Water consumption intensity Tonne/sq.m. 0.60 0.57
KB Wa ¥ 75K
Paper usage Kg 660.00 170.40
/NS TR
Paper usage intensity Kg/person?® 6.95 2.05
RETE Fr/A°

Greenhouse gas emissions
BERBERE

Unit
By

Direct emissions (Scope 1)1% Emissions from

vehicles Tonne of tCO2e 3,325.87 18.07
BEER(EE ) TEHNE WAL E 8
Indirect emissions (Scope 2)'": Emissions

from electricity consumption Tonne of tCO2e 68.64 24.97
RSN (GE ) BN A NE WAL EE
Total greenhouse gas emissions Tonne of tCO2e 3,394.51 43.04
BRERBEEWME WAL EE
Total greenhouse gas emission intensity Tonne of tCO2e/person'® 35.73 0.90

REERBHREE &R EE A

9 The Company’s Shanghai head office and Hongxin have a total 9 AAR EBBBPRAERIMEBISHRETL

of 95 employees.

10 The greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) are calculated with 10

reference to the Guidelines for Accounting and Reporting of
Greenhouse Gas Emissions from Land Transportation Enterprises
(Trial) published by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of
the PRC.

1" The greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2) are calculated with
reference to national grid average emission factors in the Guide
for Accounting and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions from
Enterprises — Power Generation Facilities (2021 revised edition)
published by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the
PRC.
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Emissions of air pollutants from vehicles™

EWERSRDEHRE

Unit 2021

B 20214
Carbon monoxide (CO) emissions Kg 7,013.73 55.98
— & LB (CO)BE R 2 Fr
Nitrogen oxide (NOX) emissions Kg 13,896.55 2.07
REWINO)BER £ Tr
Sulfur oxide (SOX) emissions Kg 680.44 0.12
HE (SO e & T
Particulate matter (PM2_5> emissions Kg 208.48 0.37
FERL W) (PM2s) BE IR = TR
Particulate matter (PM, ) emissions Kg 231.31 0.37
BRI (PMo) BERL = T

Waste Management BEEYEE

As stipulated by the Regulations on the Administration
of Domestic Waste of Shanghai Municipality, domestic
waste shall be classified into recyclables, hazardous
waste, wet waste and dry waste. The Group disposes
of office domestic waste and production waste in strict
accordance with the regulations. The Group laid down
the Waste Management Regulations in accordance with
the Law on the Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Wastes of the PRC, the National
Catalogue of Hazardous Wastes and the Measures for the
Prevention and Control of Pollution by Hazardous Wastes
of Shanghai Municipality. Waste is recycled and disposed
of according to the impact of waste on the environment
and the regulatory requirements for waste classification.
Irregular inspections on waste classification are
conducted through the quality risk control department
and an external third-party inspection agency. Guidance
instructions are given on the collection, storage and
treatment of waste to standardise the operation process.

12 The emissions of air pollutants are calculated with reference
to the Technical Guide for Air Pollutant Emission Inventory for
Road Vehicles (Trial) published by the Ministry of Ecology and
Environment of the PRC.

(BB M A& TE SR E BB Z K £ &
RILRA WY - BELR  REIRAME
FOBRESREFN: ARETERBIERAR
ERERAEFLRMNEELSE ANEER
BCPEARAMBEEREYRERENEE) (B
ReERENRE) (LEBMBRYISADA
MEIBET(ERMERRT) ARER
MHRENTERE R F o ENEEEL
e FEEERY BRMEELLEERES
RINBE=ZTERBHERBNUK D E
ITEETIAESRE  YHEZDOERE -
EFMEIERMHEGUESRE - URBIRER

12 e

12 RERSFAMARHMBENGESEZ2EZ8HhE
ARANMBERREREGROCERB B ITRIR
PR E RS R EE (HT) -
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The non-hazardous wastes generated by the Company
and Hongxin include office domestic wastes and
production wastes, that are, waste materials, waste
equipment components and waste building materials
generated during the processes of service, maintenance,
construction and storage. The Waste Collection and
Treatment Procedures have been in place to regulate the
collection and storage of waste. Waste containers are
placed in our waste storage points, on which posters of
waste classification are put up for employees to collect,
classify and store office domestic waste. The waste is
cleaned up and transported by cleaners. The production
waste is centralised, classified, identified and managed
by the engineering personnel, and placed in the
designated waste collection area with the compatibility
of wastes taken into account. A local environmental
sanitation management bureau is entrusted to uniformly
dispose of non-hazardous waste. In order to ensure
safety, fire-fighting equipment is installed near the
collection area, and there must be obvious safety signs.
If necessary, measures such as erecting indoor walls can
be taken to prevent scattering and leakage. Shanghai
Pujiang Property Company Limited obtained the
eight-star domestic waste classification service capability
certification of GB/T 19095-2019/GHSC011-2020.

13 As their business is property management, the Company
and Hongxin did not use any packaging materials during the
Reporting Period.
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The hazardous wastes currently produced by the
Company and Hongxin include waste toner cartridges
and ink cartridges generated in office activities, waste
lamps and oil-containing fabrics generated in property
service activities, which are all centrally stacked in
temporary storage points with relevant signs. When
the wastes reach a certain amount, they will be handed
over to a qualified unit for centralised disposal. The
hazardous wastes generated in outsourcing activities
shall be brought back by the outsourcing party and
handed over to a professional unit for disposal. Our
management office has signed a letter of commitment
on environmental and occupational health and safety
management with the unit, and the contract sets out
terms on disposal of hazardous wastes and related
matters.

The property management office periodically checks
whether each type of waste is stored subject to
requirements on a monthly basis, and requires correction
of violations and timely improvements to reduce the
pollution of waste to the ecological environment.

We have listed the relevant environmental management
procedures in the Environmental Factor Management
Each functional department and
management office of the Company should first identify
the environmental factors related to their own working

Procedures.

environment and fill in the Environmental Factor
Identification and Evaluation Form, and then prepare
the List of Significant Environmental Factors based on
the completed environmental factor evaluation results,
report it to a relevant department and get approval
from superior leaders, including waste disposal. We will
continuously manage the waste generated by ourselves
in accordance with relevant procedures, and expect to
achieve the goal of further increasing the recycling rate
and reducing waste in the future.

RIR - HERERBRE

HIFRBEEAMRBENEENEESEEZY B
WMOAERHPELNBERSIANRE  WER
BEBHTFELANERRE 2H8DFS
REBEREFERNRERRFFRE  FRE7F
E-ETER XHEHBEERNREEEMS
TRE - IBEBTELENEZEEDHI
BAR—wE REBEXBEURE - LN
ERREEEEVDRIRRENBERER
2EBAXE YESRDINABNHINE
TREEEEZEVYMRBABEENOE -

RREZVERVNERAFTEER BMXE
ERNEBAETERRE  XHERBR
RHME REBNXE BLBEEVH LR
RIBHIFR -

ZHECRREAZREERF)TEIAMBHER
BEENERF ARSRENFIREEREE
EHAEES TIFRTEBNRERER A
R(RERZFHNLFER) BRESBEE
FEHNRERZIFIEZARGEEEZRERE
BE) ERAMAHMYLE ERBAEHE B
MTEEEEMONRE - BMNeRHECLANE
BREFEEAEEELANERY AHER
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The following table shows the environmental
performance data of the Company's Shanghai head

office and Hongxin in relation to waste discharge during

the

Reporting Period:

Solid waste generation

EREERNELE

Non-hazardous waste

BEBREY

Waste paper generation
BEEARELEE

Office waste generation
MAENRELESE

Total non-hazardous waste generation
BEBERVELRE

Non-hazardous waste generation intensity
BEERVWELATE

Hazardous waste

BEEEEY

Waste ink cartridge generation
BERIELE

Waste ink cartridge generation intensity
BEBAELTE

Waste fluorescent tube generation
BEXABEELES

Waste fluorescent tube generation intensity
BEAXABEELETE

Waste battery generation

BHLELE

Waste battery generation intensity

BHELATE

Unit
B

Tonne
i

Tonne/person

WE A

Piece

1&
Piece/person
@,/ A
Tube

X
Tube/person
/A
Piece

1&
Piece/person

&, A

UTR/ARE LB
HABABEZMERNIRE G WEE:

A N =

0.24

128.6

128.84

1.36

33

0.35

"

0.12

50

0.53

Bh TR R ¥R

0.03

136.00

136.03

1.64

41

0.49

21

0.25

52

0.63
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Climate Change

Climate change has become an important issue that
cannot be ignored by enterprises, as the risks and
opportunities it brings have a close impact on the
sustainable development of enterprises. Climate change
may increase the frequency of extreme weather events,
and may also cause serious natural disasters, including
rainstorms and typhoons, which can cause floods and
physical damage to properties, and may even endanger
the safety of customers and employees. As a property
management company, the Group has formulated the
Emergency Response Plan against Typhoons and Floods,
which set outs the emergency measures to be taken by
management and different departments in the event of
typhoons and rainstorms, including safety inspection of
facilities and evacuation of people in case of emergency,
with a view to ensure the safety of customers and
employees.

Our Board and management also actively participate in
the management of climate change. Risk identification
and policy formulation related to greenhouse gas
emissions and climate change must be reported to
the Company's management, and then reviewed and
approved by the Board. Whenever the meteorological
department issues a typhoon or flood warning, the
management will discuss the response plan, and
supervise and guide the typhoon and flood prevention
work when a typhoon or flood strikes. After typhoons
and floods, members of the Board and management will
go to the frontline of projects on behalf of the Company
to express condolences to employees.

We believe that in the face of extreme weather events
such as typhoons and floods, we can minimise the
potential property losses and casualties as long as we
take precautions in advance. The reinforcement of
outdoor facilities and equipment and the protection of
low-lying terrain require a lot of manpower and material
resources. Therefore, the top-down management of
the Company's Board and management, as well as the
bottom-up participation of grass-roots employees are
inseparable in managing climate risks.

RIR - HERERBRE

R iz 21
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CONTRIBUTING TO THE COMMUNITY,
SHARING THE LOVE

As a leading property management company in China,
the Group is well aware of its social responsibilities.
So, we have always insisted on doing our best to give
back to the surrounding communities and leverage our
business advantages to create value for the communities
in different fields. We promote the collaborative projects
with different industries and enterprises to contribute to

ERMHEE 2ERE

T’Eﬁ'ﬁllﬁ EMEREELE  AKEFRAHE
e B R BEMA - EBRHERMAEE

ﬁaﬂi%zilu:u I%ﬁi@%%i‘*@ N
B AHEBRAIEEE: BBREETRITE
MOE¥EMEEZAEEER  AEMHEELE

Bl-AFE RANHREMEIZENAH
BREANEPEREL AR - BEH

local communities. This year, the main purpose of our W ' FME S TSA 8000 : 204 ¥ L& F
community contribution is to care for the elderly and EEEEZRE °
help the country build a civilised community. During the
Reporting Period, we also obtained the SA 8000:2014
CSR management system certification.
|
I Guang Hui
e BEERGRINEES
i S BI00A
] EwmRe: :}:::-anzmm!
; agt oo TR
A LT
E] WErCTS | | TR RO FTISE | SR
Do B
In 2021, our management office of Jiushi West Suburb  72021F * EMHAETABEERERERE

Garden organised an elderly-related activity and led
the elderly in the community to visit Tangyu Village in
Qingpu and Zhujiajiao, an ancient water town, to enjoy
the autumn and celebrate the Double Ninth Festival.
It provides an opportunity for the elderly to enjoy the
beautiful scenery in Tangyu Village and strengthen the
bond between property owners and between property
owners and us.
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Moreover, March is a month of our learning-from-Lei
Feng activities. We arrange for young people and
volunteers who are Party members and league members
to take part in service activities. They actively participate
in various volunteer activities, including volunteer service
activities organised by sub-districts. We have set up
a service point on Nanjing Road Pedestrian Street to
provide passengers with services about giving directions,
consulting, charging, etc. We carried out a volunteer
service activity for Party members at Maglev Airport
Station to assist passengers with ticket checking and
passengers with large luggage in entering the station.
Meanwhile, the property management centre of Nanjing
Qigiaoweng Wetland Park assigned employees to hold
a voluntary haircut activity for residents of nearby
communities, sharing warmth.

Service point

Nanjing
MR ITHRBEE

AN W s

Volunteer service activity

Maglev Airport Station
Tt )% 7 R 5 T FE R 7%

RIR - HERERBRE

N - 3AMARMONEBEEZEESH A - &AM
MEREEETEREREFTABZ2ERS
AR PER2EXEREE  BREEE
MEBNSRERELES  ERRBEPTER
ETHRBH RERERE[E #HH RE
ER% - BRMEMRIHERESTHRTES
ERREED  HHRERESFRETFN
FEHEY - BUFRE  tHERBEERAE
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Voluntary hair activity
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Huangpu District started its work to build itself into
a national civilised district at the end of August 2021.
As a part of Huangpu District, our Party members and
employees devoted a week to actively participate in the
work and joined a volunteer service activity themed on
“civilised traffic behaviour starts with me”, in which
they stood guard at the crowded intersection of South
Huangpi Road and Middle Huaihai Road to remind
passers-by to obey traffic lights to maintain traffic safety
and raise public awareness of traffic safety.

HSAK 202156 mmE Al 22 B XA MR
TR ESEBRRO—HTF RMANE
EMBIRMT-BANKBEEGRS2EAZT
1 IATSGBXE - IR IMAE | EREE RS -
EAREENREWEEESTEOSREST -
REBABTRBERET. #EXBRE [
BRATRAIBLZENER °

Volunteer service activity theme “civilised traffic behaviour starts”

(328 XE - (e RHOR | ERE RS
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Mr. Xiao Xingtao HEE L &
Chairman E &

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Riverine China
Holdings Limited together with its subsidiaries, | would
like to present the annual report of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

ANNUAL REVIEW

The Group continued to press ahead with the operating
strategies in 2021 under the principle of “enhancing the
foundation of property services, optimizing the layout
of urban services, improving the overall service capacity
and promoting the market of science and technology
products” with expected goals achieved.

For property services, the Company continued to improve
its nationwide geographical layout, enrich the product mix
of property services, improve service quality and customer
experience, as well as expand the size of its core business
and improve its professional service capacity.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ETRBEE

B e R

AANERRBIPRERERATIESTS E
REMBARMAREZANEREE =20219F12
A3BIEFEMFERSE

FEEE
AEEBEBEUNRAMERBEER - BB
MREHE - RABECRBEE N HERK
EMME]ARERNIT201FMKLLEREE - I
IRSTEEHMNBIE -

EWMERBGES  #EZTZAPNE2ELRE
i HELEVERBERSE  @E
REREEENEPHOREET  HEEX
TERBRE BERATRANZEZLRS

&b,
BE °©
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
B

In the field of urban services, the Group achieved the
steady growth with business in existed geographic
areas and progressively seeking for market chances
in new areas. Meanwhile, the Company is proactively
promoting the development of comprehensive urban
service business integrating property, sanitary, public
parking operation and intelligent building, laying a
solid foundation for building the Company into a
comprehensive provider of urban sanitary services.

For science and technology services, while enhancing
investments, the Company applied and optimized the
information technology system for building services
based on the Internet of Things and cloud computing
which was profoundly applied in property service projects
with breakthroughs achieved in overseas markets. In the
meantime, we invested resources into the development
and application of information tools for project operation
and maintenance business in property management to
strengthen the building of its core competitiveness.

Meanwhile, the Company continued to carry out
resources preparation and business exploration in asset
management, corporate service and other fields.

The Company had positive performance in the process of
epidemic prevention and control. All the projects under
management have weathered the epidemic steadily
and received praise from the media and owners of
certain projects. The Company has also established an
emergency management mechanism to respond to public
emergencies through the summarization of epidemic
prevention and control.
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Through effective business layout and active cost control,
the Company has maintained stable gross profit margin
while expanding its business scale and maintaining
customer stickiness. With the maturity of information
and technology products, the investment in technological
development will continue to fall; the application
of information and technology products will further
improve corporate efficiency; the sales of information
and technology products will realise contribution of
revenue from information and technology products.
With the better synergy of sanitary business and public
parking operation services with property management
services, together with the growth of leases services of
commercial buildings, the Group is full of confidence in
its future development prospects and profitability.

ANNUAL RESULTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s
total revenue was approximately RMB885.5 million,
representing an increase of approximately 15.9% from
RMB763.8 million for the previous year. For the year ended
31 December 2021, net profit was approximately RMB53.0
million, representing an increase of approximately 43.3%
from RMB37.0 million for the previous year.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.035 per Share for the year ended
31 December 2021 (the “2021 Final Dividend”) with
a sum of approximately HK$14.2 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB11.5 million which is subject to
Shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 2021 annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,
10 June 2022 (the "AGM"). The 2021 Final Divided, if
approved, will be distributed on or about Monday, 18
July 2022 to shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Friday, 24 June 2022.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
B

OUTLOOK

Looking forward, the Group will continue to provide quality
property management services as well as value-added
services targeting the commercial interests of customers,
and develop and provide quality sanitary services for
urban management. The Group plans to continuously
grow its business efficiently and strategically through
acquisitions and mergers, investments, joint ventures and
business collaboration. The Group will expand its business
vertically along the industry chain and the supply chain
of the property management industry. In addition, the
Group will strengthen the application of its information
technology system as well as enhance its service quality
for the customers and users of the properties under
its management while launching the marketing of its
information technology system to generate more revenues
for the Group. Last but not least, the Group will promote
the mechanism within the Company’s departments and the
mechanism to coordinate subsidiaries in different regions to
improve its operating efficiency. With the in-depth strength
of the Group in capturing market opportunities, its well-
established brand name in the industry and the strong
growth potential in the property management industry and
sanitary industry, the Directors believe that the Group’s
business will continue to grow thereby further driving the
growth of its market share and profits.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to express my
gratitude on behalf of the Board to the Shareholders,
business partners, customers and suppliers for their
great support and trust. | would also like to express my
appreciation to the management and all the staff for
their contributions and efforts during the past year.

Xiao Xingtao
Chairman
30 March 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The urbanization development of the PRC has been
gradually accelerating since 1980s with urbanization
rate increasing from only 19.4% in 1980 to 64.7% in
2021. As compared with the average urbanization rate
of approximately 70% in developed countries, there
are further potential for urbanization development in
the PRC. Improved urbanization has led to an increased
demand for residential and other property projects,
resulting in an increased demand for comprehensive
urban public services including property management
services, sublease services from investment properties
and urban sanitary services.

The fast-growing economy in the PRC has spurred
continuous growth in annual disposable income
per urban capita. According to the National Bureau
of Statistics of China’s preliminary calculation, the
annual disposable income per urban capita increased
from RMB43,834 in 2020 to RMB47,412 in 2021. The
increasing demand for better living conditions is another
reason for the growth of property management industry.

In line with the economic growth and urbanization of
the PRC, there are increasing supply of public facilities
such as museums, arenas and stadiums as well as newly-
constructed urban road areas to cater for the increasing
demand from city dwellers of the PRC. Meanwhile, the
increased urban population is promoting the demand for
refuse treatment both in qualities and quantities.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group, through its operating subsidiaries and
investments in associates, provides a wide range of
comprehensive urban public services, including property
management services with valued-added services to a
variety of properties in the PRC, sublease services from
investment properties and urban sanitary services to
various areas.

The properties managed by the Group are mainly located
in Shanghai and expanded to Tianjin, Anhui, Zhejiang,
Jiangsu, Shandong, Jiangxi, Fujian, Sichuan, Henan,
Hubei and Hunan provinces. The urban sanitary services
are mainly performed in Fujian and Sichuan provinces.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFmR DM

During the Period, the Group through its subsidiaries and
investments in associated companies had entered into
550 property management agreements for the provision
of various kinds of property management services for
the properties in the PRC, representing an increase of
approximately 10.2% as compared to 499 property
management agreements in the same period of 2020.

During the Period, approximately 69.4% of total
revenue was generated from the provision of property
management services, of which approximately 87.4%
was attributable to non-residential properties whereas
the remaining approximately 12.6% was generated
from residential properties and other services. Also,
approximately 30.5% of the Group’s total revenue was
generated from the provision of urban sanitary services,
and approximately 0.1% of the Group’s total revenue
was generated from sublease services from investment
properties.

The Group’s property management services have been
and will continue to be strategically focused on high-
end non-residential properties in the PRC and the
Group’s urban sanitary service is an important part of
the comprehensive urban public services. Meanwhile, the
sublease services from investment properties will be the
Group's important new point of business growth.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENmRE DM

The table below sets forth a breakdown of revenues by

type of services provided for the period indicated.

@AM -

For the year ended 31 December

TREJN LA RERE SRS ERE D0

BZ1N2A3MALEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Revenue % of total Revenue % of total
LB hBE
g B I & BOL
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR TR ARBTTT
Property management services £ & il ¥ % & 12 iR
on the lump sum basis 7 612,757 69.2% 509,149 66.7%
Property management services Bl & %Il ¥ 2 & 12 AR
on the fix remuneration 7%
basis 1,349 0.2% 4,947 0.6%
Urban sanitary service Yk $E IR # AR 7% 270,313 30.5% 249,712 32.7%
Sublease services from KEMBEMESEME
investment properties Ak %5 1,120 0.1% — —
Total #Et 885,539 100% 763,808 100%

The table below sets forth a breakdown of revenues
from providing property management services by type of

managed properties for the period indicated.

For the year ended 31 December

TR EMAHEEENERELE N KB
REDMEEERBHOIKREAMA -

BEZ12A31ALEE
2021 2020
202145 20204
Revenue % of total Revenue % of total
ECE hBE
& Bol g & BAlk
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTTT
Commercial establishments & X4 & 8B &
office buildings maKE 410,301 66.8% 312,223 60.7%
Public properties NRYE 126,732 20.6% 106,335 20.7%
Residential properties FEWE 56,517 9.2% 50,399 9.8%
Others H h, 20,556 3.4% 45,139 8.8%
Total HBEt 614,106 100% 514,096 100%

IR BEIERAERAR F3) 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFmR DM

The table below sets forth a breakdown of revenues from
providing urban sanitary services by various areas for the
period indicated.

TNREY R AR HIRE AR R E kA 1R
PSR IR AT AR A B W s B AR o

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12831ALEE
2021 2020
20215 20204
Revenue % of total Revenue % of total
G H A%
g Bok U % Bl
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ TR ARBEF T
Fujian mE 171,229 63.4% 165,672 66.3%
Sichuan g )l 92,493 34.2% 77,402 31.0%
Others H b 6,591 2.4% 6,638 2.7%
Total 4t 270,313 100% 249,712 100%
HUMAN RESOURCES ADER

The Group employed 5,135 employees and dispatched
staff as of 31 December 2021. The Group also
subcontracted part of the labour intensive work, such
as security, cleaning and gardening services and certain
specialized engineering repairs and maintenance works
to sub-contractors. The employment contracts either
have no fixed terms, or if there are fixed terms, the terms
are generally up to three years, after which the Group
evaluate renewals based on performance appraisals.
All of the full-time employees are paid a fixed salary
and may be granted other allowances, based on their
positions. In addition, discretionary bonuses may also
be awarded to employees based on the employee’s
performance. The Group conduct regular performance
appraisals to ensure that the employees receive feedback
on their performance.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROSPECTS

Following the listing on the Stock Exchange on 11
December 2017, the Group, by leveraging on its capital,
has striven to develop as an operator for systematic
urban management engaging in environmental and
property management businesses in core regions
around the country. Currently, the Group has been
actively developing its business in the cities along the
eastern coast, as well as the regions along the Yangtze
River by extending the horizontal development of
complementary products and vertical development along
the industrial chain. The Group has gradually kick-started
its acquisition and investment activities. Against the
backdrop of global economic downturn, the Group will
carry out its acquisition activities in a prudent manner,
and focus more on those businesses of superior synergy
effects with comprehensive urban public services, such
as sublease services from investment properties and
operation of urban public parking resources.

As a leading service provider in the non-residential
property management service industry, the Group
will continue to build up its core competitiveness
in engineering technology. We endeavor to achieve
innovative development in engineering technology
with our ability to operate and maintain the online and
offline integrated engineering equipment and facility for
Shanghai Bund Ke Pu as well as professional resources
synchronization mechanism.

Furthermore, based on various technologies, such as
the Internet of Things, the Internet, 3D technology and
big data, the Group will continue to utilize its property
management business as a pilot business to develop a
self-owned open source smart building system, “Dynamic
Building Matrix" (“DBM") to manage the data of basic
status of buildings, which allows the provision of data
and information as well as professional services to
relevant parties, including property owners, property
users, managers and regulators. In 2021, we continued
to achieve the sales of this system to customers at home
and abroad. The Group will ensure the stability and
reliability of our advanced technology, prudently expand
the market at home and abroad and gradually realize the
output effect of our technology investment in China.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFmR DM

Since the outbreak of COVID-19 in China in January
2020, the Group has taken active measures to implement
the regulations and requirements issued by the local
government on the prevention and control of COVID-19,
and carry out all epidemic prevention work, focusing on
the health of the customers, users and employees and the
public security and social responsibilities. Although this
outbreak had a huge impact on the global economy, and
may inevitably continue to spread and affect the upstream
and downstream enterprises of the Group to varying
degrees, however, according to the current guidance of
domestic policies, the important role of sanitation and
property management in urban comprehensive services
in the epidemic will be recognized by the community and
there is increase in demand for environmental sanitary
services. The Group will continue to deepen its strategic
positioning, assess and measure the risks posed by the
outbreak, and identify and seize the opportunities in this
crisis.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately 15.9%
to approximately RMB885.5 million for the year ended
31 December 2021 from approximately RMB763.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The increase in
revenue was mainly attributable to (i) the increase in
revenue generated from environmental sanitary services
from approximately RMB249.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 to approximately RMB270.3 million
for the Period, (i) the increase in revenue generated
from property management services increased from
approximately RMB514.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB614.1 million for
the Period, and (iii) the newly initialized rental income
generated from sublease services from investment
properties, which amounted to approximately RMB1.1
million.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Cost of services provided

The Group’s cost of services provided increased by
approximately 17.4% to approximately RMB759.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from
approximately RMB646.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. The increase in cost of service
provided was primarily due to (i) the increase in property
management services income which leads to the increase
in staff costs and sub-contracting staff costs; (ii) the
increase in environmental sanitary services income which
leads to the increase in labour costs; and (iii) the Group
continues to recruit more talented staff and provide
training for the existing staff to cope with the expansion
of operations.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The Group's gross profit increased by approximately
8.0% to approximately RMB126.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 from approximately RMB117.2
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 due to
an increase in revenue despite being partially offset
by the increase in the cost of services provided. Gross
profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2021
was approximately 14.3% which is lower than gross
profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2020 at
approximately 15.4%. The decrease in gross profit margin
was primarily attributable to the termination of social
insurance relief policy.

Other income and gains

The Group’s other income and gains increased by
approximately 128.6% to approximately RMB22.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from
approximately RMB9.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. The increase in net other income and
gains was primarily due to the investment gain from
disposal of Shanghai Xin Shi Bei during the year ended
31 December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFmR DM

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses increased by
approximately 21.3% to approximately RMB15.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from
approximately RMB12.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. The increase in selling and distribution
expenses was primarily due to expanding travelling and
entertainment activities with the recovery of COVID-19,
which also kept in line with the Group’s expansion in
business scale.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses generally kept stable at
approximately RMB70.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 as compared with the administrative
expenses of approximately RMB71.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Interest expenses

The interest expenses decreased to approximately
RMB5.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
from approximately RMB5.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. The decrease in the interest expenses
was due to the decrease in average interest rate of bank
borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures
Share of profits of joint venture increased to
approximately RMB2.7 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 from approximately RMB1.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020, which was primarily
due to the increase in profits shared from Hefei Zheng
Wen amounted to approximately RMB4.0 million despite
being partially offset by the decrease in profits shared
from Zhong Min Zhi Da amounted to approximately
RMB1.3 million.

Share of profits and losses of associates

Share of profits of associates decreased to approximately
RMB10.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
from approximately RMB11.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2020 which was primarily due to the
decrease in profits shared from Shanghai Xin Shi Bei, as
the Company disposed the equity interests in Shanghai
Xin Shi Bei on 16 June 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Income tax expense

The income tax expenses increased to approximately
RMB17.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
from approximately RMB12.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. The increase in income tax expense
was primarily due to the increase in profit before tax.

Profit for the period and net profit margin

As a result of the foregoing, the net profit increased
by approximately 43.3% to approximately RMB53.0
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 from
approximately RMB37.0 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 and the net profit margin increased to
6.0% for the year ended 31 December 2021 from 4.8%
for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Intangible assets and goodwiill

The intangible assets and goodwill primarily included
customer relationship and goodwill obtained from a
business combination. The intangible assets decreased to
approximately RMB69.8 million as at 31 December 2021
from approximately RMB76.8 million as at 31 December
2020, which was primarily due to the amortization of
customer relationship.

Trade Receivables

The trade receivables increased by approximately 33.1%
to approximately RMB190.3 million as at 31 December
2021 from approximately RMB143.0 million as at 31
December 2020, which primarily kept in line with the
increased revenue. The trade receivables turnover
(average trade receivables divided by revenue multiplied
by 365 days) was 68.7 days (2020: 58.1 days).

Prepayments and other receivables

The prepayments and other receivables increased by
approximately 38.8% to approximately RMB91.3 million
as at 31 December 2021 from approximately RMB65.8
million as at 31 December 2020. The increase in
prepayment and other receivables is primarily due to the
increase in payments on behalf of residents.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFmR DM

Trade payables

The trade payables increased by approximately 8.6% to
approximately RMB116.8 million as at 31 December 2021
from approximately RMB107.6 million as at 31 December
2020, which was mainly due to the increase in cost of
services provided with business expansion. The trade
payables turnover (average trade payables divided by
cost of services provided multiplied by 365 days) increase
slightly to 54.0 days (2020: 51.5 days).

Other payables and accruals

The other payables and accruals increased by
approximately 48.6% to approximately RMB123.0 million
as at 31 December 2021 from approximately RMB82.8
million as at 31 December 2020. The increase was mainly
due to the increase in advance payment received on
behalf of the building residents, which kept in line with
the Group’s enlarged business scale.

Cash Flow

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the net cash
from operating activities was approximately RMB33.7
million. The net cash from investing activities for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB15.9
million, which was primarily due to the consideration
received from the disposal of Shanghai Xin Shi Bei
and redemption of wealth management products and
partially offset by the payment of acquisition for a target
company engaging in sublease of investment properties,
which focus on commercial buildings. The net cash from
financing activities for the year ended 31 December 2021
was approximately RMB2.6 million, which was primarily
due to the increase in bank loans and other borrowings
amounted to approximately RMB16.7 million, which
partially offset with dividends paid, interest paid and
principal portion of lease payment.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Certain property, plant and equipment with carrying
amount of approximately RMB13,592,000 as at 31
December 2021 (31 December 2020: RMB6,320,000) was
pledged to financing institutions. No trade receivable
has been pledged to secure certain of the other
borrowings as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
RMB4,098,000).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND
CAPITAL STRUCTURES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB177.8 million. The
total interest-bearing bank loans and other borrowings
increased to approximately RMB116.8 million as at 31
December 2021 from approximately RMB100.1 million
as at 31 December 2020. The gearing ratio (total debts
divided by total equity) as at 31 December 2021 was
approximately 32.5% (31 December 2020: 30.0%). The
current ratio (total current assets divided by total current
liabilities) as at 31 December 2021 was 1.3 (31 December
2020: 1.2).

Financial management and policy

The management has designed and implemented a risk
management policy to address various potential risks
identified in relation to the operation of the businesses,
including financial, operational and the interest risks
from the property management agreements. The risk
management policy sets forth procedures to identify,
analyse, categorise, mitigate and monitor various risks.

The Board is responsible for overseeing the overall risk
management system and assessing and updating, if
necessary. The risk management policy is reviewed on
a quarterly basis. The risk management policy also set
forth the reporting hierarchy of risks identified in the
operations.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2021, the Directors was not aware
of any significant events that would have resulted in
material contingent liabilities.

Subsequent Event

The Group does not have any material subsequent event
after 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEFmR DM

FINAL DIVIDENDS

The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.035 per Share for the year ended
31 December 2021 (the “2021 Final Dividend”) with
a sum of approximately HK$14.2 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB11.5 million which is subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 2021 annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,
10 June 2022 (the "AGM"). The 2021 Final Divided, if
approved, will be distributed on or about Monday, 18
July 2022 to Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Friday, 24 June
2022.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 7
June 2022 to Friday, 10 June 2022, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the above meeting, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 6 June
2022.

Subject to the approval of the proposed 2021 Final
Dividend from the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Wednesday, 22 June 2022 to Friday, 24 June 2022,
both days inclusive, during which period no transfer of
Shares will be registered for ascertaining Shareholders’
entitlement to the proposed 2021 Final Dividend. In
order to qualify for the proposed 2021 Final Dividend,
all transfer of Shares, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong. Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong for registration no later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 21 June 2022.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY
Quality and committed staff are valuable assets to the
Group's success. The primary objective of the Group’s
remuneration policy is to ensure there is an appropriate
level of remuneration to attract and retain experienced
people of high calibre to join the Group. The Group
links the remuneration of its employees to both the
Group's performance and individual performance, so
that the interests of the employees align with those of
the Company’s shareholders. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group employed approximately 5,135 employees.
To enhance the performance of the employees, the
Group provides its employees with adequate and
regular trainings. Employees’ remuneration package
comprises fixed and variable components including
salary, discretionary bonus and share options that may
be granted to eligible staff by reference to the Group’s
performance as well as individual’s performance.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHREEE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Xiao Xingtao (E #i®), aged 72, a co-founder
of our Group with Mr. Fu. Mr. Xiao was appointed as
our Director on 27 July 2016, as the chairman of our
Board and re-designated as our executive Director on
24 October 2016. Mr. Xiao is responsible for strategy
planning and business development of our Group. He is
also the chairman of the nomination committee of our
Group. Mr. Xiao is the father of Mr. Xiao YQ.

Mr. Xiao obtained a diploma degree in Chinese Language
from Shanghai Institute of Education* (/8% & 2F5x)
in the PRC in July 1985. He attended a training course
in economic study organised by the Graduate School of
Shanghai Academy of Social Sciences* (/&4 & £l 23
fiff 7T & ZB) in the PRC in March 1997. Mr. Xiao obtained
the qualification of senior economist upon completion of
the Integrated Economic Management Programme* (£
4R & B 32) organised by Shanghai Accreditation Board
for Senior Professionals in Economics (Production sector)*
(LBTRBRIN(EEER) SREERMBEERE
BFEZEE)in July 2003.

Prior to the establishment of our Group, Mr. Xiao had
worked in several state-owned enterprises. He joined
Jiangnan Shipyard* (T & & &) (now known as Jiangnan
Shipyard (Group) Company Limited* GLEEM (@) B
PR & E 2 F])) in November 1968 and acted as head of its
publicity department from October 1992 to June 1995. Mr.
Xiao first encountered the property management industry
when he served as an officer director of Shanghai Jiu Shi
Company* (L8 AHERF]), deputy general manager of
Shanghai Jiushi Company Bund Zhihuan Headquarters*
(EBAERR NGB B B I0) responsible for overall
operation and general management of Shanghai Bund
Housing Replacement Property Company Limited* (/&
NEEEEBRYEEFRAR) (now known as Shanghai
Bund) from May 1995 to October 2002.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

With his knowledge and experience gained in property
management industry, Mr. Xiao established Pujiang
Property jointly with Mr. Fu in December 2002 for
carrying out property management business and served
as the chairman of the board and general manager since
its establishment. With the growth and expansion of our
Group, Mr. Xiao and Mr. Fu later established or acquired
other property management companies for carrying out
various property management projects and also set up
Pujiang Holding in June 2007 as their investment holding
vehicle for various property management companies and
other companies carrying out investment management
business and has been acting as its chairman since then.
Mr. Xiao currently holds directorships in Pujiang Property
and Shanghai Bund of our Group.

Mr. Xiao was awarded the independent innovation leading
talent* (B £ &I %8 % A7) by Shanghai Luwan District
Government* (/8 E &[@ A R BUT) in April 2008, the
golden prize of outstanding contribution to Shanghai Property
Management Industry* (E/8 ¥ ¥ EEITHE R EHER 2 12)
in January 2011 and the outstanding individual* (£ H A %) 2%)
by Shanghai Property Management Industry Society* (/&%)
EEBITEHE) in January 2015.

Mr. Fu Qichang (B X &), aged 64, a co-founder of
our Group with Mr. Xiao and was appointed as our
executive Director and vice chairman of our Board on 24
October 2016. He is responsible for strategic planning
and business development of our Group. Mr. Fu is also a
member of the nomination committee and remuneration
committee of our Group.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHREEE

Mr. Fu obtained a diploma degree in Accountancy from
Lixin Accountancy College of Professional Studies* (37
=& E R E) in the PRC in July 1983 and a Master
degree in Business Administration from Macau University
of Science and Technology (by distance learning) in
Macau, in February 2004. He obtained an executive
Master of Business Administration (Service Management)
(by distance learning) in Shanghai, the PRC offered by W.
P. Carey school of Business of Arizona State University in
May 2013.

Mr. Fu obtained the accountant qualification awarded by
Shanghai Accreditation Board for Middle Level Professionals
(Accountants) of the Shanghai Moto Industry Holding
Company* (EBMAETEBL ARG RIFREER
MBS ERTEELZED) in June 1992 and attended a
corporate finance course organised by Sino-Euro International
Business school* (FPEXEBR T &%) in August 1999. He
obtained the qualifications of senior business manager* (/= 4%
% E R AL A EE) awarded by Shanghai Business Talents
Training Center* (L8 M 2 A #F3I#H ) and Shanghai
Desirable Talent Training Projects Joint Conference Office* (=
BERATEINIEBEEZI L E) in February 2004
and corporate manager of national property management
upon completion of the National Property Management for
Corporate Manager Programme* (% B4 3 & 12 1 £ 48 12)
organised by Shanghai Property Industrial Education Centre* (=
BTEMEITEZHEFR L) in December 2001. Mr. Fu was
awarded the chief financial officer qualifying training certificate
by Shanghai National Accountants Institute in July 2013.

Prior to the establishment of our Group, Mr. Fu acted
as the deputy general manager and chief accountant in
Pudong Company of Shanghai Jiu Shi Company* (£ &
AZEAEAHEAA) and the deputy general manager of
Property Company of Shanghai Jiu Shi Company* (&
AE QT E QA from July 1997 to March 2003.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Fu currently holds directorships in several subsidiaries
of our Group, including Pujiang Property, Shanghai Bund,
Shanghai Bund Green, Shanghai Rui Zheng and Hong
Xin.

Mr. Fu was awarded the role model of the Shanghai
Labour Force* (LB M4 E)1E %) by Shanghai People’s
Government in April 2010, national role model of
the industry* (% Bl 17 2 & 2 ) by National Property
Management Society* (2B ¥ % B2 %) in September
2011, veteran professional manager of the Shanghai
property service industry* (/8T ¥ ¥ R ¥ & R B
#4318 A) by Shanghai Property Management Industry
Society in January 2012, Shanghai Huangpu district
professional and technical talents* (Z % & fiT L A )
by Shanghai Huangpu District Government* (/&M=
e ARBAT) in September 2012 and the outstanding
individual by Shanghai Property Management Industry
Society in January 2015.

Mr. Xiao Yuqiao (B F &), aged 39, was appointed as
our executive Director and chief executive officer on 24
October 2016. He is responsible for the overall operation
and management and execution of the policies of our
Group. Mr. Xiao YQ is also member of the remuneration
committee of our Group. Mr. Xiao YQ is the son of Mr.
Xiao.

Mr. Xiao YQ obtained a double degree in Philosophy and
Business Management from the State University of New
York at Stony Brook in the United States in May 2005.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHREEE

Mr. Xiao YQ has over ten years of experience in the
property management industry. He joined our Group in
February 2006 and had served as the general manager
of Shanghai Pujiang Sanging Property Co. Ltd* (L&
L= BYWHEABMRAF) (now known as Shanghai Rui
Zheng) until May 2012. He was the general manager of
Ningbo Plaza from May 2012 to December 2013. Mr.
Xiao YQ had served as the deputy general manager in
Pujiang Property since May 2012 and was subsequently
appointed as its director on 11 March 2016. He has been
the deputy general manager of Shanghai Bund since May
2012 and a director of Shanghai Jie Gu since May 2016.
Mr. Xiao YQ has also served as an executive director of
Pujiang Holding since January 2014. He is also a director
of Shanghai Bund Ke Pu, Shanghai Jiu Yi, Anhui Pu
Jing, Nantong Pu Sheng, Bengbu Zhi Xin, Shanghai Rui
Zheng, Hong Xin and Qidong Xingiao Property Company
Limited*(BUR 1 & W E B R 2 7).

Mr. Xiao YQ was awarded the outstanding individual
(15th anniversary) by China Property Management
Magazine* (R Bl % & B ) 35 4L) in July 2016.

Mr. Jia Shaojun (B 4 E), aged 52, joined our Group
in December 2014 and has served as a deputy general
manager and chief officer of department of operation
and administration in Pujiang Property and Shanghai Bund
since then. He was appointed as our vice president on 24
October 2016, as our executive Director with effect from
7 May 2018, and as our joint company secretary of the
Company with effect from 20 May 2019. Mr. Jia is also
the director of Nantong Pu Sheng, Shanghai Bund Ke Pu,
Shanghai Jiu Yi, Anhui Pu Jing, Hong Xin and Qidong
Xingiao Property Company Limited* (AR #FT S W EER
~al).

Mr. Jia graduated with a bachelor’s degree in ship
engineering from Dalian University of Technology* (X
EIE T KEZ) in July 1992 and a master’s degree in
professional accountancy from the Chinese University of
Hong Kong (by distance learning) in December 2011. He
obtained the chief financial officer qualifying certificate
from the Shanghai National Accounting Institute in
August 2010.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Jia has over 20 years of experience in strategy
planning and corporate management before joining our
Group in December 2014. He was a deputy head of the
department of operation and management of Shanghai
Waigaogiao Shipbuilding Company Limited* ( £ /& 4p
=EEMARADF) from June 1996 to October 2005.
He served as an assistant to the president and head
of planning and management department of Jiangsu
Rongsheng Heavy Industry Company Limited* (JT &k /& 8%
BT AR AT from November 2005 to March 2008 and
was its deputy president from April 2008 to March 2010.
Mr. Jia was the president and head of economics and
operation department of Rongsheng Machinery Company
Limited* (/& BX # # & R 2 A1) from March 2010 to
March 2011 and its president from May 2013 to June
2014. Mr. Jia was a deputy general manager of Zhonglian
Heavy Machinery Company Limited* (B 2 # % 15 A IR
2~ \]) from July 2014 to November 2014.

Ms. Wang Hui (£ £), aged 48, was appointed as our
executive Director on 20 November 2020.

Ms. Wang has obtained a degree in Economics
Management from the University of Science and
Technology Beijing* (dt R E £ K 2) in 1997. She is
currently part of the Executive Committee of Fuzhou
Federation of Industry and Commerce, the Executive
Vice President of Dazhou General Chamber of
Commerce and a member of the Eighth Committee of
Taijiang District, Fuzhou City, Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference. On 5 July 2000, Ms. Wang
founded Hong Xin (formerly known as Fuzhou Hongxin
Cleaning Company Limited* (& /N34 fRIR R A R A Al),
Fuzhou Hongxin Pest Control Company Limited*
(FBMELIRB E £ 88 R A F]) and Fuzhou Hongxin
Environmental Cleaning Service Company Limited* (&
ML FRIR R E R IR B BR 2 7)) and she has been
acting as the director and the legal person since its
incorporation. On 3 January 2020, the Group acquired
51% equity interest in Hong Xin. Since then, Hong Xin
has become an indirect non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company and Ms. Wang has also been acting as the
chairperson of Hong Xin.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHREEE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Zhang Yongjun (5 # ¥), aged 46, has been
appointed as our non-executive Director with effect from
7 May 2018.

Mr. Zhang graduated from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University* (_E/8 X @ X&) with a bachelor's degree
in cranes, transportation machinery and mechanical
engineering in July 1996 and a master’'s degree in
business administration in July 2003.

Mr. Zhang has extensive experience in investment and
corporate management. Prior to joining our Group, he
worked as the senior investment manager in Shanghai
Galaxy Digital Investment Co., Ltd.* (£ /8 E A &B L E
B R A R]) from January 2003 to March 2006. He served
as the assistant director of the investment department
at Shanghai Industrial Investment (Shanghai) Company
Limited* (FEEIE (L8 BR A from April 2006
to April 2008. He was the deputy general manager of
Runfeng Investment Group Shanghai Investment Co.,
ltd* (LR EEB LB REBRAT) from April
2008 to May 2009. He was the director and head of the
investment department of Shanghai Industrial Investment
(Shanghai) Company Limited* (EEEE(LB)BRA
a]) from June 2009 to March 2019. He has served as the
assistant president of Shanghai Overseas International
Trading Company Limited* (_ /&8 52 &) since January
2019.

Currently, Mr. Zhang serves as a director of Weifang City
Water Supply Company Limited* (437 T EEKKBER A
Al), Shanghai Qingpu Second Sewage Treatment Plant
Company Limited* (EB S BE 5 KEERERA
7l), SIIC Properties Group (Shanghai) Limited* (EE &
¥ £ E(LF)BBR2AA) and Shanghai SIC Investment
Development Company Limited* (/8 FE &R & % R
B BR/A7F]). He also serves as the vice board chairman
of Qihua Company Limited* (B{ZE B R A Al), the board
chairman of Shanghai Nanyang Plywood Company
Limited* (E/SMFBAERAER 2 F) and Lu An Xinshi
Asset Management Company Limited* (N &ZEEEEE
B AP AA]). He is also on the board of supervisors of
SIC Environment Holdings (Wuhan) Company Limited.*
(FERBER(ERZE)EBR AR, a subsidiary of SIIC
Environment Holdings Ltd. (a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 807) and the Singapore Exchange
Limited (stock code: BHK)).
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Cheng Dong (& ®), aged 59, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 15 November
2017. He is responsible for overseeing the management
of our Group independently. He is also the chairman of
the remuneration committee and a member of the audit
committee and nomination committee of our Group.

Mr. Cheng graduated with a Bachelor degree in
management engineering from Tongji University
(FlE X&) in the PRC in July 1984 and Master degree
in economic informatics from Academy for Computer
Science and Computer executives* (Akademie fur Fach-
und Fihrungskrafte der Informatik) in Germany in May
1995.

Mr. Cheng was accredited as an organisational
programmer and economic informatics scientist by the
Chambers of Industry and Commerce Region Stuttgart*
(Industrie-und Handelskammer Region Stuttgart) in
Germany in November 1992 and December 1992
respectively.

Mr. Cheng was a teacher at the school of economics and
Management at the Tongji University (&% XZ) from
July 1984 to January 1990. From March 1992 to June
1995, he served as an software engineer and project
manager at Yingta Information technology Company
Limited, Germany* ({2 B & % #% 1 £ % {» 2 7)) and was
the company’s chief representative at its representative
office in PRC between June 1995 and May 1998. He
had served as the general manager of Shanghai Yingta
Information Technology Company Limited* (/&&=
BT ABR Q7). Mr. Cheng is currently holding senior
positions in several companies in the PRC including legal
representative (J& AfX ) of Shanghai Entai Business
and Trading Company Limited* (EF /5B ZBHEBRA
A]) since May 1996, chairman of Shanghai Yingta Health
Management Company Limited* (- /5 %5 £ 2 fF & 8
B R AT since November 2008, general manager of
Anpac Bio-Medical Science Company Limited (&K &t
Ay BEER (L) ARAQT) since April 2014, and
chairman of Shanghai Liufu Training School Company
Limited* ( E/8 B RIFI ER B R A A) since March
2021.
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EENGHREEE

Mr. Weng Guogqiang ($ B &), aged 61, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 15
November 2017. He is responsible for overseeing the
management of our Group independently. He is also
member of the audit committee, nomination committee
and remuneration committee of our Group.

Mr. Weng graduated with a Bachelor degree in Applied
Mathematics from the Tongji University in the PRC in July
1982 and a Master degree in Public Administration from
the University of Macau in Macau in September 2003.

Mr. Weng was accredited as a National Vocational
Qualification Level 2 Vocational Management
Professional* (BIXB X ER —HABE L A) in May
2003 and a Level 1 Senior Vocational Management
Professional* (— # = A B 2 «£ 32 A) in September 2004
by the Shanghai Vocational Skill Testing Authority* (I
T B 2 R REZE F H ). Mr. Weng was also accredited
as a Certified Property Manager by the Personnel
Department of Shanghai* (LMW AE/®E) in October
2006 and an Advanced Economist* (75 & £ & Bl) by the
Personnel Department of Jiangsu Province* (T & & AS
EE) in September 2009.

Mr. Weng has extensive experience in the property
management industry in Shanghai for over 18 years.
He had served as a general manager of Shanghai
Lujiazui Property Management Co., Ltd. (/& FE R
MEEEABRAF) from October 1999 to May 2008
and as a general manager of Wuxi Dongzhou Property
Management Company Limited* (£ 5 &R M ¥ % & 2
BB AR from May 2008 to December 2009. Since
January 2010, Mr. Weng has taken up the positions of
general manager and subsequently executive director at
the Shanghai Tonglai Property Management Company
Limited* (E/BRAMEERBBERAF]).
independent non-executive director of A-Living Smart
City Services Co., Ltd.* (M4 & & E W MR % K H
R~ 7)) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange with
stock code 03319) since January 2022.

He is also an
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence (£ # X), aged 49, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director
on 15 November 2017. He is responsible for overseeing
the management of our Group independently. He is also
the chairman of the audit committee and member of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of
our Group.

Mr. Shu graduated with a Bachelor degree in Business
(Accounting) from Deakin University in Australia in
September 1994. He became an associate of the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants in September 1997. Mr. Shu
attended the chief financial officer programme offered
by China Europe International Business School from July
to November 2009.

Mr. Shu has over 20 years of experience in audit,
corporate finance and financial management. He joined
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu (“Deloitte”) as an accountant
in March 1994 and later became a manager of Deloitte’s
reorganisation service group in April 2000. Mr. Shu
joined Deloitte & Touche Corporate Finance Limited
and served as its manager from July 2001 to November
2002. Mr. Shu worked as an associate director in
Goldbond Capital (Asia) Limited from November 2002 to
April 2005. He served as the chief financial officer and
company secretary of Texhong Textile Group Limited (X
W44k EBE AR AR (@ company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 02678) from May 2005 to
July 2008. Mr. Shu was employed as the chief financial
officer of Jiangsu Rongsheng Heavy Industries Company
Limited* (/T & /&8 B8 & T A [R 2 A ) overseeing its
financial management functions and corporate finance
activities as well as the daily management of its finance
department from July 2008 to June 2010. Mr. Shu served
as the chief financial officer of Petro-king Qilfield Services
Limited (B # M ERB BR 2 F) (@ company listed
on the Stock Exchange with stock code 02178) since
July 2010 to July 2018. Mr. Shu has served as the chief
financial officer of Brainhole Technology Limited (formerly
known as Top Dynamic International Holdings Limited)
(@ company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock
code: 02203) since August 2018 to November 2019. Mr.
Shu is currently the chief financial officer of Contiocean
Environment Tech Company Limited* (_E /3 [& f 38 (R
£t # & BR A 7)), primarily responsible for its financial
and investment division. He is also an independent non-
executive director of Chengdu Expressway Co., Ltd. (X &P
S RN AR QR (@ company listed on the Stock
Exchange with stock code 01785), Twintek Investment
Holdings Limited (Z @& EE R AR A F]) (@ company
listed on the Stock Exchange with stock code 06182)
and Goldstream Investment Limited (£ EBRQ
Al) (@ company listed on the Stock Exchange with stock
code 01328) since November 2016, December 2017 and
December 2019 respectively. He has been served as a
member of the Hong Kong Independent Non-Executive
Director Association since May 2019.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHREEE

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Company Secretary

Ms. Cheung Kam Mei, Helen (3& £ %), aged 60, was
appointed as the company secretary of the Company on
1 May 2019.

Ms. Cheung obtained a Bachelor of Laws from University
of London in 1999 and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
from University of Hong Kong in 2000. She is a qualified
solicitor in Hong Kong, a member of the Law Society of
Hong Kong since 2002, a member of the Law Society
of England and Wales since 2003 and a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since 2005.
Ms. Cheung has 3 years of experience in the corporate
governance and company secretarial field.

Mr. Jia Shaojun (E 2 &), aged 52, was appointed
as the joint company secretary of the Company on 20
May 2019. The biographical details of Mr. Jia are set out
under the paragraph headed “Executive Directors” of the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management”.

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Cai Yufei (£ # M), aged 37, joined our Group
in August 2017 as assistant to chief financial officer
and was appointed as our chief financial officer on 1
May 2019. He is responsible for overseeing accounting
activities.

Mr. Cai obtained a bachelor’s degree in Economics with a
major in Finance from Tongji University ([F] & X £2) in 2007.

Mr. Cai has over ten years of experience in auditing,
financial management and corporate financing. Prior in
joining our Group, he worked as a senior associate at
PricewaterhouseCoopers Zhongtian LLP from August 2007
to January 2010. He served as deputy director of finance
department in Tat Hong Zhaomao Investment Holding Co.,
Ltd.* (FE LXK EARAQAF) from January 2010 to
November 2016 and was its head of corporate financing
department from December 2016 to August 2017.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Vice President
Ms. Zhu Hong (% 4L ), aged 57, is responsible for
managing the operations of Shanghai Xin Di.

Ms. Zhu graduated with a diploma degree in Basic
organic synthesis from Shanghai Chemical Industry
College* (E/B{LETEERERK) in the PRC in July
1984 and a Master degree in Business Administration (by
distance learning) from Macau University of Science and
Technology in June 2004.

Ms. Zhu qualified as a corporate manager of the national
property management upon completion of the National
Property Management for Corporate Manager Programme
organised by Shanghai Property Industrial Education Centre
in May 2003, a national property manager by the Shanghai
Human Resources and Social Security Bureau* (/& A 7
BRMEZRER) in September 2011 and an engineer
by Shanghai Engineering Technology Management Middle
Level Professional and Professional and Technical Title
Qualification Evaluation Committee* (_F /& L2 R 5l
BEREETREXERMBEEBRERITETEES) in
November 2014.

Ms. Zhu had been engaged in the property management
business for nearly 20 years. Ms. Zhu served as an
assistant to the general manager in Shangshi Property
Management Company Limited* (/8§ FEW¥ERE
fR 22 ®]) from July 1996 to January 2001.

Ms. Zhu joined our Group and was appointed as the
office director of Pujiang Property in August 2003,
deputy general manager of Pujiang Property and
Shanghai Bund since April 2006. Ms. Zhu was appointed
as a deputy general manager of Anhui Bund on 1 January
2013 and became its director on 15 February 2016. She
has served as an assistant to the director of Pujiang
Holding since January 2009. Ms. Zhu was appointed as
our vice president on 24 October 2016.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENGHREEE

Ms. Zhu was recognised as an expert for the Shanghai
Property Management Bidding and Tendering*
(EBETYREERBKREFEFZEEZER) by the Shanghai
Housing and Land Resources Management Bureau*
(EFBmMERLHEREIEB) from September 2006 to
September 2008 and a procurement evaluation expert
of Shanghai People’s Government* (/& ™ B fF £% B8
% B X) by Shanghai Finance Bureau* (L& B
/&). She was awarded the veteran professional manager
of Shanghai Property Service Industry by Shanghai
Property Management Industry Society in January 2012
and the outstanding individual by Shanghai Property
Management Industry Society in January 2015.

Mr. Bai Min (B ), aged 50, is responsible for managing
business development and day-to-day business of our Group.

Mr. Bai graduated with a Bachelor degree in Business and
Corporate Management from Hubei Province economic
Management Cadre Institute* (J# 4t & & 7% & 12 % 30
E2[%) in the PRC in January 2009, a Bachelor degree in
Business Administration (Marketing) from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University in the PRC in January 2012 and a Master
degree* (F/B% B KE) in Business Administration (by
distance learning) from City University of Macau in July
2015.

Mr. Bai obtained the qualification of national property
manager by Shanghai Human Resources and social
security Bureau in October 2010.

Mr. Bai had worked in various property management
companies in Shanghai for over 10 years before joining
our Group in April 2009. Mr. Bai was a property manager
of Shanghai Yuntai Property Management Company
Limited* (E /B ERMEETIEBRAA]) from April 1997
to August 2000. He was a senior director in Shanghai Kai
Shing Property Management Service Company Limited*
(EBRBYWEETERBERAF) from August 2000
to December 2000. He was employed as an assistant to
general manager of the integrated centre and deputy
general manager of the property department of Shanghai
Minghua Property Company* (/8B ZE Y % QA &]) from
February 2001 to July 2005. He was the general manager
of Yangshan district and deputy general manager of the
quality control department of Shanghai New Century
Property Service Company Limited* (/& 1t 42 &5 & IR
% A BR A A]) from August 2005 to March 2009.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Bai joined our Group as the general manager of our
estates management office of Industrial and Commercial
Bank of China in April 2009 which was managed by
Pujiang Property. He was then seconded to serve as the
general manager of the Shanghai World Expo in January
2010. Since January 2011, he has served as an assistant
to the general manager and chief property officer in
Pujiang Property. Mr. Bai has been serving as a deputy
general manager of Anhui Bund since 1 January 2013,
and director and deputy general manager in Shanghai
Xin Di since June 2015. Mr. Bai was appointed as our vice
president on 24 October 2016.

Mr. Bai was awarded the outstanding individual by
Shanghai Property Management Industry Society* (/&
YIHEERITEWE) in January 2015 and is an expert of
5th Council of Shanghai Property Management Industry
Society* (LB X ERBTEMEELEESS)
since December 2015.

Mr. Xu Wenzhang (# X &), aged 52, is responsible
for managing development and day-to-day business of
our Group.

Mr. Xu graduated with a Bachelor degree in Power
Mechanical Engineering from Shanghai Jiao Tong
University in the PRC in July 1983 and a Master degree in
Management from Norwegian School of Management B
in Norway (by distance learning) in January 2000.

Prior to joining our Group in November 2015, Mr. Xu
had worked at a number of international corporations
in property management sector for over 25 years. Mr.
Xu was the property engineering senior manager in
American International Group (AIG) from March 1990
to February 2005. He was the chief property officer in
Shanghai Alison Group Company Limited and general
manager in Shanghai Alison Property Management
Service Company Limited from February 2005 to January
2007. Mr. Xu held the position of national facilities
manager (associate director) in Jones Lang LaSalle
Surveyors (Shanghai) Company Limited from February
2007 to September 2008. He served as a director of
facilities management of Accor Greater China in Accor
Hotels Group from September 2008 to December 2015.
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EENGHREEE

Mr. Xu joined our Group in November 2015 and has
served as the chief technical officer in Pujiang Holding
since then and deputy general manager of Pujiang
Property since January 2016. He was appointed as our
vice president on 24 October 2016.

Mr. Chen Jie (BR2), aged 52, is responsible for the
operation of engineering facilities’ management services
of our Group.

Mr. Chen graduated with a bachelor degree in industrial
and civil engineering from Tongji University ([ & A &)
in 1992. He is currently a member of Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors (RICS) . During the period from
2016 to 2018, he acted as the vice minister of facility
experts’ committee of Shanghai Property Management
Industry Society* (L BMEEERHERBEREER
Z E=). From 2010 to 2011, he was engaged in the
compilation of Shanghai local standards of Property
service specification of hospital DB31/T502-2010 (& Pt
) % R 7% #8 81DB31/T502-2010)) and Property service
specification of industrial zone DB31/T562-2011 ({ T %
B & ) 3 IR 7% & ¥ AR $8DB31/7562-2011)).

Mr. Chen joined our Group in July 2018 and was
appointed as our vice president in January 2020. Mr.
Chen has worked in the property management industry
for over 20 years. From 1998 to 2003, he served as a
regional manager of Guanghua Service Industry (China)
Company Limited* (X ZERBE X (FE) BRAF) and
thereafter, he served as the general manager of Shanghai
SF Service Industries Company Limited* (/8 FE¥ %
AR 75 A% 15 B BR 2 A1) from 2003 to 2018 until he joined
our Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to establishing good corporate
governance practices in accordance with the Listing Rules
and ensuring integrity, transparency and comprehensive
disclosure. The Board believes that such commitment is
beneficial to safeguard the interests of the Company and
its shareholders.

The Board has adopted the CG Code as set out in of the
Listing Rules.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange since 11 December 2017 (the “Listing
Date”). The Board is pleased to report compliance with
the code provisions of the CG Code from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors. In response to specific enquiry made by the
Company, each of the Directors confirmed that he had
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code from the Listing Date to 31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board comprises:
Executive Directors Mr. Xiao Xingtao
(Chairman)
Mr. Fu Qichang
Mr. Xiao Yugiao
(Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Jia Shaojun

Ms. Wang Hui
Non-Executive Director : Mr. Zhang Yongjun
Independent : Mr. Cheng Dong

Non-Executive Directors  Mr. Weng Guogiang
Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence

Mr. Xiao is the father of Mr. Xiao YQ. Save for the family
relationship between Mr. Xiao and Mr. Xiao YQ, there
was no financial, business, family or other material
relationship among the Directors.
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AREARE

Each of the three independent non-executive Directors
has confirmed his independence of the Company and
the Company considers each of them to be independent
in accordance with the guidelines of assessing
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL
MEETINGS

According to code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, board
meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with active participation
of the majority of the Directors, either in person or
through electronic means of communication.

The Company generally convenes at least four regular
Board meetings a year. During the Period, four Board
meetings were convened for the following purposes:

1. reviewed and approved the 2020 annual report of
the Company and its related results announcement
and documents;

2. reviewed and approved the 2021 interim report of
the Company and its related results announcement
and documents;

3. reviewed and considered various projects and
investment opportunities that have arisen and/or
undertaken by the Company during the Period; and

4. reviewed, discussed and considered the Group’s

affairs, including strategic plans, financial affairs,
progress and updates of business performance.
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ARERES
Attendance at Meetings of the Board and EEERESZESCERLERE

Board Committees

Number of meetings attended/eligible to attend for the year
ended 31 December 2021

B £2021F12A31HLLFE
HE EEREESRARE
Annual

Audit Remuneration General
Name of Director Board Committee Committee Meeting
Exns Exe ERERS FMZEEE RRBFKE
Executive Directors
HiTEE
Xiao Xingtao 4/4 N/A N/A 171
H ¥ A58 H 3 A
Fu Qichang 4/4 N/A 2/2 11
BHE i A
Xiao Yugiao 4/4 N/A 2/2 171
HTS A58 H
Jia Shaojun 4/4 N/A N/A 11
BELE 3 A T3
Wang Hui (Note) 4/4 N/A N/A 11
TEH ) i B I iE R
Non-executive Director
FHTEF
Zhang Yongjun 4/4 N/A N/A 11
R HEE i@ A @M
Independent Non-executive Director
BUHHTEE
Cheng Dong 4/4 2/2 2/2 171
BE
Weng Guogiang 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1
5 B 98
Shu Wa Tung Laurence 4/4 2/2 2/2 11
HER
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AREARE

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the management of the
Company, which includes formulating business strategies,
directing and supervising the Company’s affairs. The
Board reserves power for decisions concerning all
major matters which include, inter alia, the approval
and monitoring of all policy matters, overall strategies
and budgeting, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those
which may involve conflict of interests of Director(s) or
substantial shareholder(s)), appointment of Directors and
other significant financial and operational matters.

The Board is also entrusted with the overall responsibility
of developing, maintaining and reviewing sound and
effective corporate governance policies within the Group
and is committed to ensuring that corporate governance
functions are carried out in accordance with the CG
Code, including continuously reviewing and improving
the corporate governance practices within the Group.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the
information of the Company as well as the services
and advice from the company secretary and senior
management. The Directors may, upon request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstances at the Company’s expenses for discharging
their duties to the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

No corporate governance committee has been
established and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance functions such as developing
and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices
on corporate governance, training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc.

Every Board member has full access to the advice
and services of the company secretary with a view to
ensuring that Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations are followed.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
As at the date of the report, Mr. Xiao Xingtao is the
Chairman while Mr. Xiao Yugiao is the chief executive
officer of the Company. Mr. Xiao Xingtao is the father of
Mr. Xiao Yugiao.

The Chairman provides leadership and is responsible
for the effective functioning and leadership of the
Board. The chief executive officer focuses on the overall
operation and management and execution of the policies
of our Group. Their respective responsibilities are clearly
defined and set out in writing.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All executive Directors and non-executive Director
have entered into a service contract with our Company
for an initial fixed term of three years and renewable
automatically until terminated by not less than three
months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other expiring at the end of the initial term or any time
thereafter. All independent non-executive Directors are
appointed from the date of the Listing until terminated
by not less than three months’ notice in writing served
by either the Company or the respective Director.

The current articles of association of the Company
provide that subject to the manner of retirement by
rotation of directors as from time to time prescribed by
the Listing Rules, at each annual general meeting, one-
third of the directors for the time being shall retire from
office by rotation and that every director shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at least once every 3 years. The
retiring Directors shall be eligible for re-election at the
annual general meeting of the Company.

PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

To assist Directors’ continuing professional development,
the Company recommends Directors to attend relevant
seminars to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. All Directors also participate in continuous
professional development programmes to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills in relation to their
contribution to the Board.

All the Directors have confirmed in writing they had
participated in continuous professional developments
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as
directors during the Period.
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The below table summarises the participation of Directors TXRBMEZ AL EHB A2 NS RFE
in training and continuous professional development ZHEZERMNIB N o
during the Period under review.

Types of Continuous Professional Development
Received an
introduction
regarding the

Reading responsibilities
Material regarding and obligations
regulatory update under the Listing Attending
and corporate Rules and seminars/
governance relevant statutory conferences/
Name of Directors matters requirements forums
EERE
EwRAK
REEHEEE HEEEER
EHREEER EAENBER HEAwRE
EEn EHEH MR BEEFH 28 WiE
Executive Directors
BITES
Mr. Xiao Xingtao v v v
HBESELE
Mr. Fu Qichang v v Ve
BEESLE
Mr. Xiao Yugiao v v v
HT&%h4E
Mr. Jia Shaojun v v v
BELERAE
Ms. Wang Hui 4 v v
FTELL
Non-executive Director
FHITES
Mr. Zhang Yongjun v v v
REEE R L
Independent non-executive
Directors
BYFBITES
Mr. Cheng Dong v v v
BREE
Mr. Weng Guogiang v v v
B 98 kA4
Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence v v v
FEREE
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) was established on 15 November 2017
comprising 3 independent non-executive Directors, who
have reviewed the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended 31 December 2021. All of them have
appropriate professional qualifications and one of them
has accounting expertise. Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence is
the chairman of the Audit Committee. No member of the
Audit Committee is a member of the former or existing
auditor of the Company. The terms of reference of the
Audit Committee are available at the Company’s website
and on the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for, inter alia,
the following matters:

(@) overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
system, internal control procedures and risk
management;

(b) reviewing the terms of engagement and making
recommendation to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor
of the Company;

(¢) reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and the effectiveness
of the audit process in accordance with applicable
standard; and

(d) monitoring the integrity of financial statements of
the Company and the Company’s annual report
and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared for
publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing any
significant financial reporting judgments contained
in them.
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AREARE

During the Period, the Audit Committee convened two
meetings and performed the following work:

1. reviewed the 2020 annual report and the 2021
interim report of the Company and their related
preliminary results announcements;

2. reviewed and discussed the auditor’s report to the
Audit Committee in respect of 2020 annual audit;

3. reviewed and recommended the re-appointment
of the external auditors, taking into account its
independence;

4. reviewed and discussed the internal control reports;

5. reviewed and discussed the 2021 annual audit plan
of the Group.

The Audit Committee has met with the external auditors
once during the Period without the presence of the
executive Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company
(the “Remuneration Committee”) was established on
15 November 2017 comprising five members, namely
2 executive Directors, Mr. Fu Qichang and Mr. Xiao
Yugiao and 3 independent non-executive Directors,
Mr. Cheng Dong, Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence and Mr.
Weng Guogiang. Mr. Cheng Dong is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee. The terms of reference of the
Remuneration Committee are available at the Company’s
website and on the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for,
inter alia, the following matters:

(@) establishing and reviewing the Company’s policy
and structure for all remuneration of directors and
senior management and making recommendations
to the Board on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing policy on such
remuneration;
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(b) determining the specific remuneration packages
of all executive directors of the Group and senior
management;

() reviewing and approving compensation
arrangements relating to dismissal or removal
of directors for misconduct to ensure that such
arrangements are determined in accordance
with relevant contractual terms and that any
compensation payment is otherwise reasonable and
appropriate; and

(d) advising shareholders of the Company with respect
to any service contracts of directors that require
shareholders’ approval under the Listing Rules.

During the Period, the Remuneration Committee
convened two meetings and performed the following
work:

To review the draft plan and final adoption plan of grant
of Shares to selected employees of the Group under the
Share Award Scheme adopted by the Company on 30
August 2018 and made recommendations to the Board.

Details of the fees and other emoluments paid or payable
to the Directors and the details of the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (excluding
Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in details in Notes 8 to the audited consolidated
financial statements contained in this annual report.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company
(the “Nomination Committee”) was established on
15 November 2017 comprising five members, namely
2 executive Directors, Mr. Xiao Xingtao and Mr. Fu
Qichang and 3 independent non-executive Directors, Mr.
Cheng Dong, Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence and Mr. Weng
Guogiang. Mr. Xiao Xingtao is currently the chairman of
the Nomination Committee. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee are available at the Company’s
website and on the website of the Stock Exchange.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for,
inter alia, the following matters:

(@) reviewing the structure, size diversity and
composition of the Board;

(b) developing and formulating relevant procedures for
nomination and appointment of Directors;

() making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors.
The criteria to be applied in considering whether a
candidate is qualified shall be based on a number
of factors, including gender, age, educational
background, qualifications, regional and industry
experience, skills, length of service and his or her
ability to devote sufficient time and attention to the
affairs of the Company and if the appointment will
contribute to the diversity of the Board;

(d) assessment of the independence of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors in accordance with, among
other things, the factors as set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules, subject to any amendments as may
be made by the Stock Exchange from time to time
and where applicable, whether he or she has the
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise for filling
the office of an independent non-executive director
as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules;
and

(e) set any measurable objectives for implementing
the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and the progress made
towards achieving those objectives.
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The Nomination Committee carries out the process of
selecting and recommending candidates for directorships
by making reference to the balance of expertise, skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity
and time commitments of such individuals, business
requirements of the Group and other relevant statutory
requirements and regulations.

During the Period, the Nomination Committee did not
hold any meeting.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve diversity
of the Board. The Company embraces the benefits of
having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. Pursuant to the board diversity policy, the
Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the
consideration of a number of aspects, including, but
not limited to, gender, regional and industry experience,
skills, knowledge and educational background. All
board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria,
having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board. The Company will also take into consideration its
own business model and specific needs from time to time
in determining the optimal composition of the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises 9
directors. Three of them are independent non-executive
directors, thereby promoting critical review and control of
the management process. The Board is also characterised
by significant diversity, whether considered in terms of
age, industry experience, professional background and
skills. The following tables further illustrate the diversity
of the Board members as of the date of this annual
report:
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A E-= VAN
NAERRE
Age Group Ethnicity
FirR A =3
Other,
Name of Director 30 to 39 40 to 49 50 to 59 Above 60 Chinese if applicable
BExps 302395 40F49m 50E59m  60m U E EH HM(WER)
Xiao Xingtao 4 v
HER
Fu Qichang v v
BHE
Xiao Yugiao v v
BET®
Jia Shaojun 4 v
gE4F
Wang Hui v v
Zhang Yongjun v v
REE
Cheng Dong v v
Y
Weng Guogiang 4 v
HEE
Shu Wa Tung Laurence v v
HER

The Board delegated certain duties under the Board
Diversity Policy to the Nomination Committee. The
Nomination Committee will discuss and review
the necessity to set any measurable objectives for
implementing the Board Diversity Policy from time to
time to ensure their appropriateness and the progress
made towards achieving those objectives.

The nomination committee will review the Diversity
Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities (as set
out in the Independent Auditor's Report) for preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group
that give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of
the Group. The Board was not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
might cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and the Board has prepared
the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis. The responsibility of the external auditor is to
form an independent opinion, based on their audit, on
those consolidated financial statements prepared by the
Board and to report their opinion to the Shareholders. A
statement by auditor about their reporting responsibility
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board has developed the Group's internal control,
risk assessment and management systems and has
overall responsibility for reviewing and maintaining an
adequate and effective risk management and internal
control systems to safeguard the interests of the
Shareholders and the assets of the Group. It evaluates
the effectiveness of the systems at least annually to
ensure the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Group's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring
and management of risks associated with its business
activities. The Group’s internal control system is designed
to provide reasonable assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate
risks of failure in operational systems and fulfillment
of business objective. The system includes a defined
management structure with segregation of duties and a
cash management system such as monthly reconciliation
of bank accounts.
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NRIERWE

The Board reviews the effectiveness of the Group’s
material internal controls and is of the opinion that the
resources for and qualifications of staff of the Company’s
accounting and financial reporting function are adequate
and sufficient. Based on information furnished to it
and on its own observations, the Board is satisfied with
present internal controls of the Group.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

A deed of non-competition (the “Deed of Non-
Competition”) was entered into by Partner Summit, Vital
Kingdom, Mr. Xiao, Source Forth, Mr. Fu, Pine Fortune
and Mr. Chen, the Controlling Shareholders in favour
of the Company on 28 November 2017, pursuant to
which each of the Controlling Shareholders will not, and
will procure any of its/his associates and any company
directly or indirectly controlled by him/it (not include
any member of the Group) not to either on his/its own
or in conjunction with any body corporate, partnership,
joint venture or other contractual agreement, whether
directly or indirectly, whether for profit or not, carry
on, participate in, hold, engage in, acquire or operate,
or provide any form of assistance to any person, firm
or company (except members of the Group) to conduct
any business which, directly or indirectly, competes or
may compete with the business presently carried on
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries or any other
business that may be carried on by any of them from
time to time during the term of the Deed of Non-
Competition, in Hong Kong or the PRC and such other
places as the Company or any of its subsidiaries may
conduct or carry on business from time to time, including
but not limited to provision of property management
services and other related services. Details of the Deed
of Non-Competition are set out in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the
prospectus of the Company dated 28 November 2017.
In order to ensure that the Controlling Shareholders
have complied with the Deed of Non-Competition, the
independent non-executive Directors had reviewed
the status of compliance by way of confirmation by
individual Controlling Shareholder and confirmed that
the Controlling Shareholders have complied with all the
undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition for
the year ended 31 December 2021.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company in respect of audit for the year ended 31
December 2021 amounted to approximately RMB1.7
million.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Cheung Kam Mei (“Ms. Cheung”) was appointed as
the company secretary of the Company on 1 May 2019.
Mr. Jia Shaojun (“Mr. Jia”) was appointed as the joint
company secretary of the Company on 20 May 2019.
The biographical details of Ms. Cheung and Mr. Jia are
set out under the section headed "“Directors and Senior
Management”.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2021,
Ms. Cheung and Mr. Jia have complied with Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules and taken no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide
an opportunity for communication between the
Shareholders and the Board. An annual general meeting
of the Company shall be held in each year and at the
place as may be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM").

— Right to convene extraordinary general

meeting

Any one or more members holding at the date of
the deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of
the Company, shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition sent to the Company’s principal
office as set out in the manner below, to require an
EGM to be called by the Board for the transaction
of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition.
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The written requisition must state the purposes
of the meeting, signed by the requisitionist(s) and
deposit it to the Board or the company secretary
of the Company at the Company’s principal place
of business at 4/F, Cheung Hing Industrial Building,
12P Smithfield, Kennedy Town, Hong Kong and
such may consist of several documents in like form,
each signed by one or more requisitionists.

The request will be verified with the Company’s
branch share registrars in Hong Kong and upon
their confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the company secretary of the Company
will ask the Board to convene an EGM by serving
sufficient notice in accordance with the statutory
requirements to all the registered members. On
the contrary, if the request has been verified is
not in order, the Shareholders will be advised of
this outcome and accordingly, an EGM will not be
convened as requested. If within twenty-one days
from the date of the deposit of the requisition the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s), may convene a meeting in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed by the Company to the
requisitionist(s).

The notice period to be given to all the registered
members for consideration of the proposal raised
by the requisitionist(s) concerned at the EGM varies
according to the nature of the proposal, as follows:

— At least 14 clear days’ notice in writing (and
not less than 10 business days) if the proposal
constitutes an ordinary resolution of the
Company;

Right to put enquiries to the Board
Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the
Board. All enquiries shall be in writing and sent
by post to the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong for the attention of the
company secretary.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between itself and its Shareholders, investors
and other stakeholders. The Company endeavors to
maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At annual general meetings,
Directors are available to meet Shareholders and answer
their enquiries. The Company discloses information and
publishes periodic reports and announcements to the
public in accordance with the Listing Rules, the relevant
laws and regulations.

There has been no change in the Company’s
constitutional documents since the Listing Date.

HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group regulates the handling and dissemination
of inside information according to the “Guidelines on
Disclosure of Inside Information” (the “Guidelines”)
published by the SFO to ensure inside information
remains confidential until the disclosure of such
information is appropriately approved and the
dissemination of such information is properly made.
The Company regularly reminds the Directors and
employees about due compliance with the Guidelines
and all policies regarding handling and dissemination of
inside information. Also, where applicable, the Company
keeps Directors, senior management and employees
appraised of the latest regulatory updates. The Board has
conducted a review of the systems of risk management
and internal control for the year ended 31 December
2021 to ensure the effectiveness and adequacy of the
systems. Such review shall be conducted annually. The
Board considered that the risk management and internal
control systems of Company for the year ended 31
December 2021 were effective and adequate.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no changes in the constitutional documents
of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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The Directors of the Company have pleasure in
submitting their annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is property
management. Details of the principal activities of the
subsidiaries of the Company are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organized into
business units based on their services and the Group
has three reportable operating segments which is
engaged in (a) property management services, (b) urban
sanitary services and (c) sublease service from investment
poperties. Management monitors the results of the
Group’s operating segments separately for the purpose
of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment.

Details of the operating segment information of the
Company during the year are set out in note 4 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Since all of the Group’s revenue were generated from
providing property management services and urban
sanitary services in China and all of the Group’s non-
current assets were located in Mainland China, no
geographical information in accordance with HKFRS 8
Operating Segments is presented.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS

Net proceeds from the Listing (including the exercise of
the over-allotment options on 5 January, 2018), after
deducting the underwriting commission and other
estimated expenses in connection with the Listing which
the Company received amounted to approximately
HK$125.5 million (equivalent to approximately RMB104.9
million), comprising HK$117.9 million (equivalent to
approximately RMB98.6 million) raised from the Listing
and HK$7.6 million (equivalent to approximately RMB6.3
million) from the issue of shares pursuant to the exercise
of the over-allotment options, respectively.
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As at 31 December 2021, the net proceeds from the
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EEEHESE

R2021F12A31H B RIBEFREE B

Listing were utilized as follows: ERWAT:
Planned use Proceeds
Use of proceeds FEeREAR of proceeds Used Balances
B RE 2ER
T8 AR 8 RIE i
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BEAET BEET BEETT
Horizontal expansion by FRWE  REKHET
acquisition, investment or 5 AR Y EEIRRA]
forming business alliance AR SR R ETTOK
with property management T
companies in the markets 42.7 427 —
Vertical expansion of both RMEEBITENESE
industry chain and supply Rt EITA A
chain in the property ERE
management industry 29.8 29.8 —
The development of 8 B R4
information technology
system 19.8 19.8 —
Recruitment of talent and BEATREBEEI R
implementation of training R T &
and recruitment programs 16.3 16.3 —
Repayment of bank borrowings 1&i& R 17 & & 5.0 5.0 .
General working capital —REEE® 11.9 11.9 .
125.5 125.5 —

As of the date of this annual report, the net proceeds
from the Listing has been fully utilized and there was no
change to the Group’s plan of use of proceeds as stated
in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 November
2017.
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RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 31 December
2021 and the state of affairs of the Group and of the
Company as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 148 to 151 respectively.

The Board recommends the payment of a final
dividend of HK$0.035 per Share for the year ended
31 December 2021 (the “2021 Final Dividend”) with
a sum of approximately HK$14.2 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB11.5 million which is subject to
shareholders’ approval at the forthcoming 2021 annual
general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday,
10 June 2022 (the "AGM"). The 2021 Final Dividend, if
approved, will be distributed on or about Monday, 18
July 2022 to shareholders of the Company whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on
Friday, 24 June 2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021 is set out in the sections headed
“Chairman’s statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 67 to 70 and 71 to 83
respectively of this Annual Report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH STAKEHOLDERS
Relationship is the fundamental of business. The Group
fully understands this principle and thus maintains close
relationship with the customers to fulfil their immediate
and long-term need.

All of our full-time employees are paid a fixed salary
and may be granted other allowances, based on their
positions. In addition, discretionary bonuses may also
be awarded to our employees based on the employee’s
performance. We conduct regular performance appraisals
to ensure that our employees receive feedback on their
performances.

Our major suppliers are primarily sub-contractors for
our property and management services. The Group is
dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers
and sub-contractors as long-term business partners to
ensure stability of the Group’s business.
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POSSIBLE RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
FACING THE COMPANY

The Group’s financial conditions, results of operations,
businesses and prospects may be affected by a number
of risks and uncertainties. The following are the key risks
and uncertainties identified by the Group. There may be
other risks and uncertainties which are not known to the
Group or which may not be material now but could turn
out to be material in the future.

Business Risk

The Group constantly faces the challenge of responding
promptly to market changes within the industry
sectors it operates in. Any failure to interpret market
trends properly and adapt its strategy to such changes
accordingly, as well as termination or non-renewal of
our services contracts of property management and
urban sanitary could have a material adverse effect on
the Group’s business, financial position and results of
operations.

Financial Risk
The financial risk management of the Group are set out
in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial performance of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021 and the financial position of
the Group as at that date are set out on pages 148 to
151.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at
the forthcoming AGM of the Company, the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 7
June 2022 to Friday, 10 June 2022, both days inclusive,
during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company will be registered. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the above meeting, all transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 6 June
2022.
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Subject to the approval of the proposed 2021 Final
Dividend from the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 22 June
2022 to Friday, 24 June 2022, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of Shares will be registered
for ascertaining Shareholders’ entitlement to the
proposed 2021 Final Dividend. In order to qualify for
the proposed 2021 Final Dividend, all transfer of Shares,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar in
Hong Kong. Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 21 June
2022.

SUMMARY OF 5 YEARS' FINANCIAL
INFORMATION

A summary of the published consolidated results and of
the assets and liabilities of the Group for each of the 5
years ended 31 December 2021 is set out on page 296.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the Group’s property, plant and
equipment during the year are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the share capital of the Company during the
year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BORROWINGS

Details of the outstanding bank loans and other
borrowings of the Company during the year are set out
in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the
Company was incorporated, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to its
existing shareholders.
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TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption
available to the Shareholders by reason of their holding
of the Company’s securities.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any listed securities of the
Company during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
and of the Group during the year are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity respectively.

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may
declare and distribute dividends to the Shareholders.
As a general policy, given the current growth of the
Company, it is the intention of the Company to declare
no more than 30% of the net profit as dividend each
year. However, the actual amount of dividends declared
and paid (if any) will depend on the results of our
operation, cash flows, financial position, statutory and
regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends,
future prospects, and other factors that we may consider
relevant.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend
is subject to the absolute discretion of the Board, and
any declaration of final dividend will be subject to the
approval of the shareholders.

Any payment of the dividend by the Company is also
subject to the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
and the constitutional documents, which indicate that
dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits,
realised or unrealised, or from any reserves set aside
form profits which the Directors determine is no longer
needed. With the sanction of an ordinary resolution,
dividends may also be declared and paid out of the share
premium account or any other fund or account which
can be authorised for this purpose in accordance with
the relevant law.

There can be no assurance that dividends of any amount
will be declared or distributed in any years.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the Company had distributable
reserves of approximately RMB280.3 million (2020:
RMB245.1 million) calculated in accordance with
the Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. This
includes the Company’s share premium account of
approximately RMB159.7 million (2020: RMB163.7
million) which is distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and
when they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
The share premium account may also be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the Period, sales to the Group’s 5 largest customers
accounted for approximately 19.9% of the total sales for
the year and the sales to the largest customer included
therein amounted to approximately 5.2%.

Purchases from the Group’s 5 largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 37.8% of the total purchases for the
year and the purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to approximately 13.1%.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associate(s)
or any shareholders of the Company (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of
the Company’s issued share capital) had any beneficial
interest in the Group’s 5 largest customers or 5 largest
suppliers.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this
report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xiao Xingtao (Chairman)

Mr. Fu Qichang

Mr. Xiao Yugiao (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Jia Shaojun

Ms. Wang Hui

Non-executive Director
Mr. Zhang Yongjun

Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Cheng Dong

Mr. Weng Guogiang

Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
Mr. Xiao Xingtao, Mr. Weng Guogiang and Mr. Cheng
Dong will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Each of the three independent non-executive Directors
has confirmed his independence of the Company and
the Company considers each of them to be independent
in accordance with the guidelines of assessing
independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior
management of the Group are set out on pages 84 to 98
of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Details of service contracts of the executive, non-
executive and independent non-executive Directors are
set out under the section headed “Appointment and
Re-election of Directors” of the Corporate Governance
Report.

No Director proposed to have a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company
within 1 year without payment of compensation, other
than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Connected
transactions” and in the related party transactions as set
out in note 41 to the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance, to
which the Company, its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries,
was a party and in which a director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year. There are
no transactions, arrangements and contract of significance
to the business of the Group between the Company, or
any of its subsidiaries and a Controlling Shareholder or
any of its subsidiaries during the year. During the year, no
transactions, arrangements and contract of significance
for the provision of services to the Group by a Controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries were made.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or in
existence during the year.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the articles of association of the Company,
the Directors, the secretary and other officers of the
Company are entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
and profits of the Company against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or
any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason
of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about
the execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their
respective offices or trusts, to the extent as permitted by
laws. The Company has arranged appropriate Directors’
and officers’ liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Company during the Period.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN THE SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY OR ANY ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests of the Directors in
the Shares and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO), which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which the Directors are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for securities
transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code")
were as follows:
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Mr. Xiao Xingtao Interest held jointly with another 302,024,000 74.57%

person; interest of controlled

corporation®
B R LA HE-ATHEARENEZ:

ZEGEEEED
Mr. Fu Qichang Interest held jointly with another 302,024,000 74.57%

person; interest of controlled
corporation®
Eﬁi%—}\i tRIFAENER
THOEE RO

BHESLE

Notes:

Q) As at 31 December 2021, 302,024,000 shares were held by
Partner Summit, a company incorporated in the British Virgin
Islands which is owned as to 87% by Vital Kingdom, 10% by
Source Forth and 3% by Pine Fortune. Each of Mr. Xiao and Mr.
Fu owns the entire issued share capital of Vital Kingdom and
Source Forth respectively. Thus, both Mr. Xiao and Mr. Fu were
deemed to be interested in 302,024,000 Shares.

(2)  All the interests disclosed above represent long positions in the
Shares.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none
of the Directors, or their associate(s) had any interests
or short positions in the shares or debt securities of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests and short positions which
the Directors are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required, pursuant
to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register
referred to therein; or (c) were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year were the rights to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any Director or
their respective spouse or children under 18 years of age,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or its holding company or any of its subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in the
Company or any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year under review and up to date of this
report, no Director of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries is considered to have an interest in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group, pursuant to
the Listing Rules, other than those business of which the
Directors of the Company were appointed as Directors to
represent the interest of the Company and/or the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme on 15
November 2017 (the “Share Option Scheme”). The
Share Option Scheme became effective on the Listing
Date. No share option under the Share Option Scheme
(the “Option”) has been granted since the adoption of
the Share Option Scheme and therefore, there was no
outstanding Option as at 31 December 2021 and no
Option was exercised or cancelled or lapsed during the
Period.

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set
out as follows:

(@) Purpose of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme enables the Company to
grant Options to the Eligible Persons (as defined in
paragraph (b) below) as incentives or rewards for
their contributions to our Group.

(b) Participants of the Share Option Scheme
An Eligible Person is any full-time or part-time
employee of the Company or any member of the
Group, including any executive director, non-
executive director and independent non-executive
director, adviser and consultant of the Group.

The Board may, at its absolute discretion, invite
any Eligible Persons to take up Options at a price
calculated in accordance with paragraph (e) below.

(c) Acceptance of an offer of Option

An Option shall be deemed to have been granted
and accepted by each Eligible Person who accepts or
is deemed to have accepted the offer of any Option
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option
Scheme (the “Participant”) when the duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the Option duly signed by
the Participant with the number of Shares in respect
of which an offer of an Option is accepted clearly
stated therein, together with a remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration
for the grant thereof, is received by the Company
within 28 days from the date on which an Option is
offered to an Eligible Person.
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(d) Maximum number of Shares available for

subscription

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon the exercise of all Options to be granted
under the Share Option Scheme or any other share
option schemes (“Other Schemes”) adopted by the
Group from time to time pursuant to which options
to subscribe for Shares may be granted must not,
in aggregate, exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as
of the date of listing (i.e. 11 December 2017, the
“Listing Date”) of the Shares on the Stock Exchange
(the "Scheme Mandate Limit”), being 400,000,000
Shares. Options which have lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
Other Schemes will not be counted for the purpose
of calculating the Scheme Mandate Limit.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders in
general meeting, the Company may do one or more
of the following:-

(i) refresh the Scheme Mandate Limit to the
extent that the total number of Shares which
may be issued upon exercise of all Options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme
and Other Schemes under the refreshed
Scheme Mandate Limit must not exceed 10%
of the Shares in issue as at the date of such
Shareholders’ approval, provided that Options
previously granted under the Share Option
Scheme and Other Schemes (including those
outstanding, cancelled, exercised or lapsed in
accordance with the terms thereof) will not
be counted for the purpose of calculating the
refreshed Scheme Mandate Limit; and

(i) grant Options beyond the Scheme Mandate
Limit, provided that Options in excess of the
Scheme Mandate Limit are granted only to the
Eligible Persons specifically identified by the
Company before such Shareholders’ approval
is sought.
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(e)

(f)

The total number of Shares available for issue under
the Share Option Scheme is 40,000,000 Shares,
representing 10% of the issued Shares as at the
Listing Date.

Basis for determining the exercise price
The subscription price for the Shares subject to the
Options will be a price determined by the Board and
notified to each Participant and shall be the highest
of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the
date of grant of the Options, which must be a day
on which trading of Shares take place on the Stock
Exchange (“Trading Day”); (ii) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheets for the five Trading Days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the
Options; and (iii) the nominal value of a Share.

Maximum number of underlying Shares
comprised in Options to any one Eligible
Person

The total number of Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the Options granted to a
Participant under the Share Option Scheme and
Other Schemes (including both exercised and
outstanding Options) in any 12-month period must
not exceed 1% of the Shares in issue from time to
time.

If a grant of Options to a substantial shareholder
(as defined in the Listing Rules) or an independent
non-executive Director, or any of their respective
associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) will result
in the total number of the Shares issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the Options already granted
and to be granted (including Options exercised,
cancelled and outstanding) to such person under
the Share Option Scheme or Other Schemes in any
12-month period up to and including the date of
the grant:-
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(i) representing in aggregate 0.1% (or such other
percentage as may from time to time specified
by the Stock Exchange) of the Shares in issue
from time to time, and

(i) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the date of the
grant, in excess of HK$5 million,

then the proposed grant of Options must be
approved by the Shareholders.

Time of exercise of Option

An Option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by
the Board to each Participant, provided that the
period within which the Option must be exercised
shall not be more than 10 years from the date of
the grant of Option.

Minimum period for which an Option
must be held before it can be exercised
There is no minimum period for which an Option
granted must be held before it can be exercised
except otherwise imposed by the Board.

Remaining life of the Share Option
Scheme

The Share Option Scheme will be valid and effective
for a period of 10 years commencing on the Listing
Date, after which period no further Options may
be granted but the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme shall remain in full force and effect in all
other respects and Options granted during the life
of the Share Option Scheme may continue to be
exercisable in accordance with their terms of issue.

Movements of the options granted under
the Share Option Scheme

No share option has been granted under the Share
Option Scheme since its adoption.
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SHARE AWARD SCHEME

The Company has adopted the Share Award Scheme
(the “Scheme”) on 30 August 2018 (the “Adoption
Date”). The purpose of the Scheme is to recognize the
contribution by certain employees and give incentives
thereto in order to motivate them for the continual
operation and development of the Group and to attract
suitable personal for further development of the Group.
Unless terminated earlier pursuant to the terms of the
Scheme, the Scheme shall be effective for a period
of four (4) years commencing on the Adoption Date
provided that no contribution to the trust fund will be
made by the Company on or after 31 May 2020. Please
refer to the Company announcement dated 30 August
2018 for further details of the Scheme.

During the year 2019, the trustee of the Scheme,
pursuant to the terms of the rules and trust deed
of the Scheme, purchased on the Stock Exchange a
total of 8,218,000 Shares at a total consideration of
approximately HK$20.0 million. As at 31 December 2021,
no Shares were awarded to any Director or employee of
the Company under the Scheme. Although the Scheme
will be terminated on 30 August 2022 according to the
terms of the Scheme, such termination will not affect the
subsisting rights of any employees selected by the Board
for participation in the Scheme.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other
than the Directors) had interest in the Shares and the
underlying shares of the Company which (a) would fall
to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO; or
(b) were required, pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein:
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issued ordinary/
underlying Percentage
Name of shareholders Nature of interests shares held of interest
g &
ZE/HERG P 4 4 %
RRERB & Batg A B
Partner Summit Beneficial owner 302,024,000 74.57%
am EnEEA
Vital Kingdom Interest held jointly with another 302,024,000 74.57%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®@
eyl HE—ATHRFENESZ

REGHEEER
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Number of
issued ordinary/
underlying Percentage
Name of shareholders Nature of interests shares held of interest
Frise &1
EE/HERG Pt 45 %€ 25
RREB R Bang A B
Source Forth Interest held jointly with another 302,024,000 74.57%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®@
R BE—ATHRBENER
REGZEZERER
Pine Fortune Interest held jointly with another 302,024,000 74.57%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®@
= BE—ATHRBENESR
REGZEZERER
Mr. Chen Interest held jointly with another 302,024,000 74.57%
person; interest of controlled
corporation®@
RE&E HBEy—ATHREAFANER
REGZEZERER
S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation® 30,000,000 7.50%
("S.1.")
S.I. Infrastructure Holdings Limited e EEER
(Is.1.))
Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited  Interest of controlled corporation® 30,000,000 7.50%
(“Shanghai Industrial”) B
EFEEEERARAR Xt EEERC
(EE=EKR])
Shanghai Industrial Investment Interest of controlled corporation® 30,000,000 7.50%
(Holdings) Company Limited
(“Shanghai Industrial Investment”)
FEEX(EE)BRAR Xt EEERC
([EBEXE]
Shanghai Industrial Investment Interest of controlled corporation® 30,000,000 7.50%
Treasury Company Limited
(“Shanghai Treasury”) B
Shanghai Industrial Investment XEHEEERC
Treasury Company Limited
([Shanghai Treasury])
Shanghai Investment Holdings Limited Interest of controlled corporation® 30,000,000 7.50%
(“Shanghai Investment”) B
EEREERERAR Xt iR
([EBKRE]
Sure Advance Holdings Limited Beneficial owners® 30,000,000 7.50%

A

("Sure Advance”)

BERAERIR(BERE])

ERmEAAC
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Notes:

M

Save

All the interests stated below represent long positions in the
shares of the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, 302,024,000 shares were held by
Partner Summit, which is owned as to 87% by Vital Kingdom,
10% by Source Forth and 3% by Pine Fortune. Mr. Chen owns
the entire issued share capital of Pine Fortune. Therefore, Mr.
Chen, Pine Fortune, Vital Kingdom and Source Forth were
deemed to be interested in 302,024,000 shares.

Information is extracted from the corporate substantial
shareholder notices filed by S.I., Shanghai Industrial, Shanghai
Industrial Investment, Shanghai Treasury, Shanghai Investment
and Sure Advance on 11 December 2017. Shanghai Industrial
Investment directly holds 100% of the issued share capital of
Shanghai Treasury, which in turn holds 100% of the issued
share capital of Shanghai Investment, which in turn holds
47.77% of the issued share capital of Shanghai Industrial,
which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of S.I.,
which in turn holds 100% of the issued share capital of Sure
Advance. Therefore, S.I., Shanghai Industrial, Shanghai Industrial
Investment, Shanghai Treasury and Shanghai Investment are
taken to be interested in the number of Shares held by Sure
Advance pursuant to Part XV of the SFO.

as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, there

was no person who (i) had an interest or short position

in the shares and underlying shares of the Company
which (a) would fall to be disclosed to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO; or (b) were required, pursuant to section
336 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (ii) were, directly or indirectly, interested in

5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying the right to vote in all circumstances
at general meetings of the Company or any options in
respect of such capital.
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INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2021 are set
out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the retirement benefits scheme of the Group
are set out in note 2.4 to the consolidated financial
statements under “Employee benefits” on page 211.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Details of significant events occurring after the year
ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors, the
percentage of the ordinary shares in public hands exceed
25% as at the date of this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Set out below are the details of the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions
of the Company as required to be reported under the
Listing Rules.

EEEHREE
HERTREMER

MR2021F12A3MB 23t B8R T R H i

ZNES
ERFHE  BREAVBRRME -

f&

iR K48 7 5T &8
AEEEAKBAMEE 2HB  HNFE2NA
ZEAaMBRRME24TRERA ] -

REHRBREH
HE2021F1N2A3BIEFERBEELE 2EKRE
Mz F BN E IR 3R &R M 5E45 -

AWERE
ERARRAFREZEMAMRESHA -
RAFHRAY  2BRALFBEZEBRASD
Lt B 3825% o

BEXS
TXEINRIE EHHRAETHERERNARR]H
BERXGEBEREIZHFE -
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Non-exempt continuing connected
transactions

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the connected transactions and the continuing connected
transactions and have confirmed that the connected
transactions and continuing connected transactions have
been entered into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of
business of the Group; (ii) on normal commercial terms;
and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and are in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole.

During the period, all of the continuing connected
transactions are fully exempted from reporting, annual
review, announcement or independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Rule 14A.76(1) of the
Listing Rules.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions are set out in note 41
to the consolidated financial statements. The related
party transactions as disclosed in note 41 fall under
the scope of connected transactions under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules but are fully exempted from
reporting, annual review, announcement or independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Rule
14A.76(1) of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
has complied with the code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as stated
in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

Further information on the Company’s corporate

governance practices is set out in the Corporate
Governance Report contained in this annual report.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF LISTED
COMPANIES

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own
code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors. In response to specific enquiry made by the
Company, each of the Directors confirmed that he had
complied with the required standard set out in the Model
Code from the Listing Date to 31 December 2021.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group is committed to supporting the environmental
sustainability. The Group is committed to maintaining
sustainable working practices and pays close attention to
ensure all resources are efficiently utilized.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Period, as far as the Company is aware,
there was no material breach of or non-compliance with
applicable laws and regulations by our Group that has a
significant impact on the business and operations of our
Group.

MATERIAL LITIGATION AND ARBITRATION
During the Period, the Group did not have any material
litigation or arbitration.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
DURING THE PERIOD

As announced by the Company on 15 June 2021 and 16
June 2021 respectively, Pujiang Property as the vendor
disposed 27.5% interest in Shanghai Xin Shi Bei. On
30 June 2021, the disposal of 27.5% equity interest in
Shanghai Xin Shi Bei was completed and the Company
ceased to have any interest in Shanghai Xin Shi Bei.

EEEHESE

LHRRAESETESRENRESTR
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT TO THE PERIOD

The Group does not have any material subsequent event
after 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this
annual report.

The Group will continue to pay attention to the
development of the coronavirus situation and evaluate
the impact on the financial position and operation of
the Group. As of the issue date of this annual report, no
significant adverse impact has been identified.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
The Company has maintained a sufficient public float
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has an audit committee which was
established in accordance with the requirements of the
CG Code, for the purposes of reviewing and providing
supervision over the Group’s financial reporting process
and internal controls. Currently the audit committee
comprises the 3 independent non-executive Directors,
who have reviewed the financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited
by Ernst & Young who will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment at a fee to be agreed by
the Board.

On behalf of the Board

RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED
Xiao Xingtao

Chairman

Hong Kong
30 March 2022
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Ernst & Young LK EFTRIEHEF Tel & 3% +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place EARAHEEEEI7IR Fax {8 E: +852 2868 4432
979 King’s Road Koy — 27 ey.com
§ﬂ( Quarry Bay, Hong Kong
Independent auditor’s report BYREMBE

To the shareholders of Riverine China Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Riverine China Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 148 to 295,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021,
statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements,
of significant accounting policies.

and the consolidated

including a summary

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial
position of the Group as at 31 December 2021, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs")
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of
how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in
relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our
audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our
audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

140 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

HREELEE
HMREZSEERBEESFEXZHE  R5Y
APEE VB REANBATRSERZNEHA °
ZEZEERBSERENKREAMBBERA
EHESENEARTURE  BEETGHX
FEELAERER - MATKEEFHEMS -
BEEFEXTHAESERNEZRUMNEEZS
1 o

BECRITARSEHMNNEC KN FEH
KARENEF—SHMANEE  BREZ
EEHMEEE - At BENEREREHT
SEREMBRRERNKERME RO
MIEHERMENEF  BREFEES
BRENTERETHNER)SLENERAE
FHEMSAVBRRIFLUEZERREHRE

Eg_:’( o



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

How our audit
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addressed the key HREEREEN

Key audit matter BREREHE audit matter B2 HE
Recoverability of trade & 5 /& W % H a9
receivables a] 4 o] 1%
As at 31 December 2021, F2021412831H © & Our procedures in relation to &% 71 & 5 E WA
the carrying amount SEWRKRIERIRE © % assessing the recoverability AU EI MR F B1E
of trade receivables & A K #190,265,000 of trade receivables
was RMB190,265,000, 7T &fh B EE R E included:
which accounted for &EE#I38.61% °
approximately 38.61% of
the current assets of the — Obtaining an — THEEEFHHZ
Group. understanding of SRERWFIBERE

how management EEBET U R
We identified the BEEHEZEWAKNERN assessed the expected T EEHERES
recoverability of trade AJU B Al A —I8H credit losses for trade FE L 3Kk T8 B] Y [e] 14
receivables as a key BEZEHE ERHER receivables, and B 8 8 12 1 15 B
audit matter due to the fREMBKHRME L4 evaluating the key
significance of the balance #2E K - B % 12 g 1A &F control relating to
to the consolidated {48 5 W KIEH T8 HA the monitoring of the
financial statements and E BB ((FEHE B recoverability of trade
the significant judgement BB & 2 & F £ 4 receivables;
exercised by management # - @A T 428k - Al
in estimating the expected M HE ENATREF 2 — Evaluating and testing — FF RAIHA EEE
credit losses (“ECLs”) for =tTEHI{= E BB AT A the methodologies and Fr A7 & RIS
trade receivables, including E ftf, 7] 1§ & ) 5 78 {E data or parameters 28EEBETE
the existence of disputes, & K ¥/ - used by management, BEH - AIEME
historical payment records, including historical E EHNXKTEH
forward-looking factors loss information, E1B)
and any other available forward-looking
information that may factors, probability of
impact the estimated default and expected
expected credit losses. loss;
Please refer to notes 3 and s pasya =15 . x4 — Inquiring of — HHABEEBBEMT
24 to the consolidated i?ﬁ?ﬂu% ~ ni\/ b management for the K Hf B K E UL AR
financial statements for #r & % % &M Z3% status of each of AR R ERT R
related disclosures. 24 o the material trade BEAHEEEN

receivables past due fRiE

as at the year end and

evaluating explanations

from management with

supporting evidence;

— Executing analytical — #W1THMIEERRE
review procedures FrAERDNE
by analysing the AEAEEHRBER
fluctuations of Z 5K R IEAE
significant outstanding REHEBER:
balances and trade )54
receivable turnover
days; and

— Testing, on a sample — JHREEELHHIR
basis, the subsequent ® Wik A8 B8 7& A
settlement of trade X R E 5 R IR

receivables to cash
receipts and the
related supporting
documentation.
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How our audit

addressed the key HREEREEN
Key audit matter BREREHE audit matter BEHE
Business combination EHEO
As at 30 November 2021, 72021411 H30H & Our audit procedures to ZEFHWEEEZE
the Group acquired %Hﬂlﬁﬁi)%ﬂﬂ\%?ﬁ] assess the accounting of the MIBZEF B1E:
95% equity interests BEEBR AT K EHKE Acquisition included:
of Shanghai Chupu 2 &%+ & E])95%
Consulting Management #z#z @ #RKERAR®Y — Obtaining and — 15 5 25 B 48 7 U
Co., Ltd. and its subsidiary 27,510,0007T ([ 88 %= reviewing related ﬁ% Tiz’; mONT®mE
(“Chupu Group”) for an &) acquisition agreements ShEMBEHEEE
aggregate consideration to understand the BHE
of RMB27,510,000 (“the background and other
Acquisition”). related important
information;
The Group engaged an E S EEFIIBILIE
external independent {ERIFE{AARUEE BEA#& — Obtaining the valuation — JFINEBE G E
appraiser to assess the fair EM A ZHFEERBE report prepared by the Eﬂﬁ /‘it FT U B8 B E R
values of the identifiable &) A F1{E o external independent L HERSE R
assets and liabilities appraiser for the assets hMREZ AT ®H - B
assumed at the acquisition acquired and evaluating hREEM:
date. their competence,
capabilities and
We identified the ARZESLREREEH objectivity;
Acquisition of Chupu FFTEEEH A fFPIE
Group as a key audit WEEMAFEELE — Involving our internal — ZRFMHA L&
matter because its K¥E - Bt HME valuation specialists to BERERMHEM
accounting involved WEMIHEEH R AR review the valuation KANEESER
significant judgement #EZEIE - methodologies adopted ARETWEAN
of management for by the appraiser, and P Er] 8 Rl & &
measuring the fair value the assumptions used REBENATERN
of assets acquired in the to determine the fair e
business combination. value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities
Please refer to note 36 to B TR E1H 52 assumed at the
the consolidated financial #R& B &R &M 5E36 ° acquisition date;
statement for related
disclosures. — Checking the — BREFMUBEER
mathematical accuracy Bt E R EFAT
of the valuation RSB ®E
calculation for assets EREMN R
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE
ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements
does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated
financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS

FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors of the Company are responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors of the Company either intend to
liguidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit

Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs,
we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Yin Guowei.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

30 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

mEEER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #2021 12 A31B It EE

2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARE Tt NG B
REVENUE W #= 5 885,539 763,808
Cost of services provided 12 it AR 7 X AS 6 (758,952) (646,561)
Gross profit E 7 126,587 117,247
Other income and gains =N & 5 22,383 9,751
Selling and distribution expenses HERLHEAX (15,413) (12,661)
Administrative expenses ITHFAX (70,842) (71,900)
Other expenses H b5 X (300) —
Interest expenses MERAX 7 (4,988) (5,889)
Share of profits and losses of: ERATRARIER
Joint ventures L E 2,749 1,033
Associates Bt 2 > 2 10,542 11,769
PROFIT BEFORE TAX B Bt A1 & A 6 70,718 49,350
Income tax expense FTSfiFEx 10 (17,731) (12,382)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F A F 52,987 36,968
Attributable to: LA A £ 1
Owners of the parent UNCIEZP=WN 38,590 26,209
Non-controlling interests FEIT A% BE = 14,397 10,759
52,987 36,968
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE B AR E@BIEZRIF A A 12
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS FE(h & ik & A
OF THE PARENT
Basic and diluted (RMB) HARR #E
(AR¥T) 0.10 0.07
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
fv? = ,\f&éﬁu&ﬁﬁ%‘%

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR Tt NG

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F & A 52,987 36,968
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS EmrmER

Other comprehensive income/(loss) that BER BIE B TS EHHEE
will not be reclassified to profit or loss EBHAEMEEKZT

in subsequent periods: (E18)
Equity investments designated at fair BEERAFEFTAEAMm
value through other comprehensive EPHEHBHOBRAKRE :
income: 133 (2,107)
Exchange differences: MEH ZHE
Exchange differences on translation of B EFINEEHNE X =58
foreign operations (955) (283)
Net other comprehensive loss that will ~ BE& EIR K T @ EHHBEE
not be reclassified to profit or loss in EamEMEEEEFE
subsequent periods (822) (2,390)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE F R E M2 A A B (BT 1E)
YEAR, NET OF TAX (822) (2,390)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR FR2EN =B
THE YEAR 52,165 34,578
Attributable to: IATA T AL :
Owners of the parent (SE/NETE PPN 37,768 23,819
Non-controlling interests I 12 IR M = 14,397 10,759

52,165 34,578
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e PEIR R

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2021 2020
20214 20204
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
H iF AR% Tt NS R
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - - BMEREZ® 13 37,351 35,022
Investment properties KEHFEHE 14 121,900 —
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 15 6,586 7,246
Goodwill S 16 25,901 25,901
Finance lease receivables FEl g ER ERIE 17 88,169 —
Other intangible assets E{ﬂﬁﬁﬁ% 18 43,938 50,857
Investments in joint ventures REETLERE 19 21,883 14,879
Investments in associates REEPEKRE 20 69,690 90,621
Equity investments designated at fair #§EE A FET A HEA 21
value through other comprehensive % [ Ut 2§ B9 fg AN 18 &
income 8,929 8,796
Other non-current assets HIEREBEE 22 32,698 43,683
Deferred tax assets BEEHIEEE 32 859 839
Total non-current assets EnBEERE 457,904 277,844
CURRENT ASSETS MBEE
Inventories FE 23 129 223
Trade receivables B 5 EWMRT 24 190,265 143,031
Prepayment and other receivables GRS IE& 25
H & Y KR 91,287 65,788
Restricted bank balances X PR &R 1T 45 & 26 22,424 12,525
Financial assets at fair value through A FEFAEBZEHN 27
profit or loss TREE — 30,312
Finance lease receivables JE W b & A & R IE 17 10,900 —
Cash and cash equivalents Re kR ﬁfi%‘i% 28 177,764 126,506
Total current assets MEEERME 492,769 378,385
CURRENT LIABILITIES nEBaE
Trade payables B 5 RN RIEA 29 116,773 107,632
Other payables and accruals H b & 5RIE K 30
EEtE A 122,992 82,785
Interest-bearing bank loans and other &t 8 38 17 & H b & & 31
borrowings 112,694 97,011
Lease liabilities HEABE 15 15,707 3,390
Tax payable JE - 7% 18 20,517 12,374
Total current liabilities mEBaERE 388,683 303,192
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

GmEMBMRREK (B)

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H

2021 2020
20215 20204F
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
oza AR Tt NG R
NET CURRENT ASSETS mEBEEFE 104,086 75,193
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BREERTSAEEG
LIABILITIES 561,990 353,037
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES EmBEE
Interest-bearing bank loans and other &t 8 88 17 & H th & 3 31
borrowings 4,117 3,059
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 179,072 4,172
Deferred tax liabilities R TEEE 32 18,941 12,125
Total non-current liabilities ErRBEERE 202,130 19,356
Net assets BEFE 359,860 333,681
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners of & QT A A E{LE &=
the parent
Share capital A& 33 3,391 3,391
Reserves B 35 280,334 245,061
283,725 248,452
Non-controlling interests JEIE R 76,135 85,229
Total equity M 359,860 333,681
Xiao Xing Tao Fu Qi Chang
HEE BHE
Director Director
o g
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mERERBER

Year ended 31 December 2021 & 2021412 A318 ILEE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAEEARL
Fair value
reserve of
financial assets
atfairvalue  Shares held
Exchange  through other for the Non-
Share Share Capital Merger  Statutory fluctuation comprehensive share award  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium*  reservet  reserve*  reserve*  reservet income* ~ scheme* profits* Total  interests equity
EAREHA
Eft2EbE AROER
EXRD MEMEEL HUEAN
BE  REEEr  ERRE  ABEE  iREE i DPERE B+ REEA B FERER L2
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR AR¥TR  ARETR ARBTR  ARETR ARBTR ARMTR  ARBTR  ARETR ARETI ARETR
Note33  MNote35)  NotedS(i) ~ Note3S(ii)  Note3S(iv)  Note35() Note 34
Mo Wl MaENG)  aEmdi)  BERG) M) M3
At1 January 2020 120051818 3391 167,304 9,466 (30,342) 20,776 81 - (17.916) 14783 228233 1133 239,566
Profitfor the year EREi - - - - - - - - 26,09 26,09 10,759 36,968
Other comprehensive income for the year:  EAEf 2EM
Change i far value of equity investments  ZATEHAZf2ERE
at fair value through other HRARELATE
comprehensive income, £9(NRHE)
net of tax - - - - - - 2107 - - 100 - 2,107
Exchange difference on tranglation BEBNERNEL 2R
of foreign operations - - - - - (283) - - - (283) - (263)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ £M2ENRLE - - - - - (283 210 - 26,209 3819 10,759 U578
Acquiston of subsidiares KERBAT - - - - s = = = = = 68,819 68,819
Dividends paid to non-controling RFEERRRORE
shareholders - - - - - - - - - - (2,35) (2,359)
Disposal of equity interests of a subsidiary &~ EHB A - - - - - - - - - - (5,007) (5,097)
Capitel njecton from non-controllng ~—— —EHBATEERRES
shareholders of  subsidiary TE - - - - - - - - - - 30 30
Non-contrling interests arisng from I FHBATELH
establihing new subsidiaries FERER - - - - - - - - - - 1470 1470
Interim 2020 dividend WNERERE - (3,600) = = = = = = = (3,600) = (3,600)
Transfr from retained profits RERTEH - - - — 5,776 = = = 5,776 = = =
At 31 December 2020 H20205128318 3391 163,704 9,466 (3034 26,55 528 [2,107) (17.916) 95,176 28,452 85229 333,681
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (continued)
mERBREER (&

Year ended 31 December 2021 2202112 318 LFE

Attributable to owners of the parent

BRAEEARL
Fair
value reserve
of financial
assetsat
fairvalue ~ Shares held
Shareaward  Exchange  throughother for the share Non-
Share Share Capital Merger  Statutory Scheme  fluctuation comprehensive award  Retained controlling Total
capital  premium*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reserve*  reservet income*  scheme* profits* Total  interests equity
BROFEHA
Bh2EhE  ARAER
Rb%R  E2RY KeREEC HEEAN
Re  REEEr  EARE  SRER  ERRE  HREE B+ ATERE Bt REEA B FERES 2
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RIMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARBTR ARETR  ARETT ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR ARETR  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Note 33 Note35()  Note3(i)  Note35(ii)  Note 35() Note34  Note 35(y) Note 34
iE25] H3E3s0) Fas) W) WS i34 Ji3E350) T3
At1 January 2021 H01E1R1B 3391 163,704 9,466 (30342) 26,552 - 528 @10 (1791) 95,176 8452 829 333681
Profit o the year Efy ) = = - - - - - - - 38,590 38,590 14,397 52,981
Other comprehensive income R ER2ERE:
for the year:
Change in fair value of BRAFEIALS
equity investments at FENENHRE
fai value through other REZATEED
comprehensiee ncome, (k&R
net of tax - - - - - - - 133 - - 133 - 133
Exchange difference on BERNEEBY
translaton of foreign EizE
operations - - - - - - (955) - - - (955) - (955)
Total comprehensive income~~ ER2ERALE
for the year - - - - - - (955) 133 - 38,590 37,768 14397 52,165
Acquisiion of subsidiaris ~ ERBLEl (H536)
(note 36) - - - - - - - - - - - 1,408 1.8
Divdends paid to non- INTEERREN
controling shareholders s - - - - - - - - - - (24939) (24939)
Equitysetled shareavard — WEZZENRAZE
scheme expenses AR - - - - - 1,558 - - - - 1,558 - 1558
2021 dividend WMIERE - (4,053) - - - - - - - - (4,053) - (4,053)
Transfer from retained profits ~ EEERBEH - - - - 9,280 - - - = (9,280) = = =
At31 December 2021 RNE1AIA 3391 159,651 9,466 (30342) 35,832 1,558 (42) (1974 (17916) 124,486 8375 76135 359,860
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of — * M2021F12A318 % EHERLERE BN

RMB280,334,000 in the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB245,061,000).

MRANES

A R #245,061,0007T) °

18 A R #280,334,0007T (20204 :
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERTRER

Year ended 31 December 2021 #2021 12 A31B It EE

2021 2020
20214 20204F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
K aF AR® T AREETF T
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES REKZ EHMNE R E
Profit before tax B 5 AT 55 70,718 49,350
Adjustments for: AT EBEMAIERAE
Interest expenses MEHAX 7 4,988 5,889
Share of profits and losses of: LT ARE
Joint ventures AEME (2,749) (1,033)
Associates B & 1> % (10,542) (11,769)
Interest income B A 5 (1,487) (1,478)
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary HE—ERNBAREIE — 46
Covid-19-related rent concessions from HHRAAGTHFERS
lessors HIERBHES R 15 — (385)
Changes in fair value of investment BAMEHENAFE
properties b2 14 300 =
Depreciation of property, plant and M- - BERZRETE
equipment 13 13,348 10,313
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FEREEENE 15 3,809 4,115
Amortisation of intangible assets M BEEEH 18 7,392 6,798
Fair value gain on re-measurement of EFHEN—HEE
previously held equity interest in a joint TENOUERHEERN
venture NEERKZ 5 — (359)
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair ERAFEFABZN SR
value through profit or loss BEAFEKZ — (312)
Gain on disposal of an associate HE—MBECEKS 5 (12,907) (200)
Equity-settled share award expense DR EEN
% £ 22 B B 2 34 1,558 —
(Reversal)/provision for impairment of trade & 5 & I I8 & &
receivables (Bm) 6 (643) 5,541
Net loss on disposal of items of property, HEWME BEKXEER
plant and equipment, net EEFE 6 236 566
Net gain on revision of a lease term arising RIS EHE & sh&E
from a change in the non-cancellable BT HERN KA
period of lease FEE — (100)
74,021 66,982
(Increase)/decrease in restricted bank 2 PR 6 ER 17 45 88
balances (3w (9.899) 1,588
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL/ 8 94 (3)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables B 5 Wk E GEm),m (46,224) 4,040
(Increase)/decrease in prepayments and T AT R TE R A FE Wi 3K TE (3
other receivables A (17,731) 26,918
Increase in trade payables B 5 FE S R IB L N 8,972 34,738
Increase in other payables and accruals H b & UE Kk
J& 5t & F N 41,937 1,408
Increase in other long-term assets HEtREEEEM (6,301) (40,854)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (c ontinued)

n miﬁﬁl)lbgé‘% n\/\

Year ended 31 December 2021 #E2021%F12 8318 It EE

2021 2020
20215 20204
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
o iF AR® TR AREFIT
Cash generated from operations LEFBRE 44,869 94,817
Corporate income tax paid EHTEEMEH (11,168) (12,164)
Net cash flows from operating activities KEEFHMERERE
F 5 33,701 82,653
CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) INVESTING & & EB B (FTA) R &
ACTIVITIES mE
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEYWE BWMELZEIES
equipment (16,206) (13,429)
Purchases of intangible assets BAELEE (473) (165)
Proceeds from disposal of items of property, HEM%E - ME L& & EE
plant and equipment Fr 8 %R 293 241
Dividends received from joint ventures and WEIK B AL P E L&
associates TEMRKR B 3,960 3,530
Investments in joint ventures and associates MA LD EREBE P EN
®E (4,590) (13,958)
Acquisition of subsidiaries Uk B BT B A7) 36 (24,437) (45,903)
Disposal of an associate HE MBS 40,755 7,840
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HERBAR — (23,116)
Purchase of equity investments at fair value B EAFEFAEMEEA
through other comprehensive income I B R A IS A — (4,613)
Receipt of finance lease KWEmERE 1,268 =
Deposits from the non-controlling shareholder3F 325 B% i% 38 5t /B 49 9% 1%
for performance guarantee REtWZe — 31,800
Repayment of deposits BEEZke (15,900) (15,900)
Purchase of financial assets at fair value KERATETFABEZN
through profit or loss ERMEE — (30,000)
Redemption of financial assets at fair value & @ % 2 ¥ {E 5T A 18 25 &9
through profit or loss ERMEE 30,312 =
Redemption of wealth management fEE A E B E M
products — 5,000
Interest received B U F 8 933 1,264
Net cash flows from/(used in) investing RETHME/ (FARE
activities ViR B & 15,915 (97,409)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

mERTRER (B

Year ended 31 December 2021 #{Z=2021E12 A31HILFE

2021 2020
20214 20204F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
=3 AR T AR T
CASH FLOWS FROM/(USED IN) FINANCING @t E/E8 A, (TR B &
ACTIVITIES e
New bank loans FIRITE X 118,755 93,459
Repayment of bank loans EERITEXR (102,014) (81,775)
Non-controlling interests arising from BHINIEEAEMNIEER
additional capital injection = — 1,770
Principal portion of lease payment HENRNEE B 15 (4,583) (4,055)
Dividends paid to non-controlling X TIHFERRRORE
shareholders (520) (2,355)
Dividends paid EAKE (4,053) (3,600)
Interest paid [EENEAD (4,988) (5,456)
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing mEEESMB(FTA)R
activities EREFHE 2,597 (2,012)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND  HRe&RRE&EFEWE M,/
CASH EQUIVALENTS CRL ) %58 52,213 (16,768)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FHIMWE LB SEEY
year 126,506 143,557
Effect of foreign exchange rate change, net [ R & &) #) 57 £ 5 5 (955) (283)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ATEND OF FRHMHE S LR ESEEY
YEAR 177,764 126,506
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF RekBeEEBUEHRINT
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the RN ERFA RIS K
statement of financial position REEEY 28 177,764 126,506
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION

Riverine China Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The
registered office address of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The principal
place of business is located at 14th Floor, Jiushi
Tower, 28 South Zhongshan Road, Shanghai, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC").

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged
in the business of property management services in
PRC.

In the opinion of the Company’s directors (the
“Directors”), the parent company of the Company
is Partner Summit Holdings Limited (the “Parent”)
and the ultimate holding company of the Company
is Vital Kingdom Investments Limited (the
“Ultimate parent”), which established in the British
Virgin Islands (“BVI”). The ultimate controlling
shareholders of the Company are Mr. Xiao Xing Tao,
Mr. Fu Qi Chang and Mr. Chen Yao (together the
“Controlling Shareholders”).

BTSRRI =E

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H
AAREBEH

HIFEZERBRAR(ARRR]DIRE
FERSAREZERERSTMMA L
RERRBRAF - AAFRHEMME
B& #b 3 A& Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands - = 2 & it B R
FEARIME(HE]) LB FILEEK28
JAEKREILE -

AREIMENBAR(SEIANEE]) X
PETEREVEREERBES -

ARRER(EZRNDRA  ARANE
RABARERARAR(ERAA] -
BEARRBINREERARIREHIRESR
RABITREE QA ERRBE X
HE(RBEZXESDKIL AREH
RRERBERBEERBRLE BHEL
ERRELRE(GBMERBRR]D -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries

1.

are as follows:

1.

Nominal value

=]
Z

RAREEER (B

ENMELTNEHR
RATEZMBARNFEBAT :

Place and date of issued Percentage of equity
of incorporation/ ordinary/ attributable to the
registration and registered Company
Name place of operation share capital AAFEEEZE AL Principal activities
BRATZER/
AMBY/ BRtY%  BEMBRAH  Direct Indirect
28 REHREREE HE EE Mg TEER
Sino Ease Global Limited British Virgin Islands Us$100 100% — Investment holding
16 June 2016
PRRRERDA RERLES 100% 7T 100% — RE#ER
2016F6A16A
Leading Way Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$68,431,000 — 100%  Investment holding
20 May 2016
VHEEBRAH FiB201655A200 68,431,000 T — 100% REER
Shanghai Pujiang Property Co.,  Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB50,000,000 — 100%  Property management
Ltd. Mainland China services
2 December 2002
FEBINEBRAF hER, P E L ANEH — 100% #MEEERHE
2002F12 724 50,000,0007T
Shanghai Bund Property Co., Ltd. ~ Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB7,700,000 — 100%  Property management
Mainland China services
8 April 1996
FEMENERRDR RPN, HE LS AR — 100% #MEEERHE
1996F4A8H 7,700,0007T
Shanghai Jiu Yi Property Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 51%  Property management
Management Co. Ltd. Mainland China services
1 April 1996
FBARNEERERAF > ER/DELE ARE — 51% NEREERE
19965 4A1H 10,000,0007T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

1.

Nominal value

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H
AEIREBER (&)

FHEMEBARNER (&)

Place and date of issued Percentage of equity
of incorporation/ ordinary/ attributable to the
registration and registered Company
Name place of operation share capital RAFEEEZE AL Principal activities
BRAEER/
AMAL/ERtE  SEMBRAM  Direct Indirect
L REMREREE HE EE B TEXR
Shanghai Bund Green Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB500,000 = 100%  Property management
Construction Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
10 August 2004
EENERCBRRERAR > RERM/PELE ARES00,000T — 100% MEEERE
2004F8A10H
Shanghai Hongji Property Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB3,000,000 = 100%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
18 March 2016
LEIENEERERAA HEAM/HELE AR® — 100% WEERRH
201637188 3,000,0007T
Shanghai Jiegu Technology Co.,,  Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB5,000,000 = 100%  Technology research services
Ltd. Mainland China
3 May 2016
FENARRARDE mEIRE L AR® — 100% MW KRS
2016%5H3H 5,000,0007C
Shanghai Pujiang Ruizheng Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB5,000,000 = 100%  Property management
Property Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
8 January 2004
EEEIRENEFRDE  HERM/HELE AR® — 100% WEEERE
200451488 5,000,0007T
Anhui Pujing Property Hefei, the PRC/ RMB6,000,000 = 51%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
10 May 2017
ZHBRRDERRRA REIR, B A AR® — 51% MEEBRRE
2017454108 6,000,0007T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

1.

Nominal value

RAREEER (B

FEMBARNER (&)

Place and date of issued Percentage of equity
of incorporation/ ordinary/ attributable to the
registration and registered Company
Name place of operation share capital RAFEEEZF AL Principal activities
BRAEER/
HMAYL/ESHYE  CHEMKRAM  Direct Indirect
L REMREREE HE EE B IEXK
Shanghai Aidepu Trading Co., Ltd  Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB200,000 — 100%  Hardware wholesale
Mainland China
23 November 2006
TENGEHEERAR Y HEAM/FEEE AR%200,0007T - 100% BEHAHE
2006114230
Shanghai Bund Ke Pu Engineering  Shanghai, the PRC/ RMB10,000,000 — 97%  Engineering management
Management Company Ltd. Mainland China services
30 November 2004
FEMERBIRER mENM,/HE LS AR® — 97% IREERK
AR 2004 11H30H 10,000,0007C
Qidong Xingiao Property Co., Ltd. Jiangsu, the PRC/ RMB10,000,000 = 51%  Property management
Mainland China services
15 July 2020
BRMBNEFRRAF mEIR BT & AR® — 51% MEERRE
20205 7R15H 10,000,0007
Nantong Pu Sheng Intelligent Jiangsu, the PRC/ RMB6,000,000 = 51%  Property management
Property Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
18 October 2017
HRARETENESRDA  FERG/PEIEH AR® — 51% MEEBRRE
20175 10A18H 6,000,000
Hong Xin Environmental Group ~ Fujian, the PRC/ RMB57,240,245 = 51%  Environmental sanitary
Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
05 July 2000
MR EEEER AR FEA,/ R EEE ARE = 51% REFERHB
2000 7H05H 57,240,2457C
Bengbu Zhi Xin Property Anhui, the PRC/ RMB5,000,000 = 58%  Property management
Company Limited Mainland China services
13 September 2004
HEEMEENEERAA mER PERH AR® — 58% MEEERK
200494 13H 5,000,0007T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE AND GROUP 1.
INFORMATION (continued)
Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Nominal value

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H
AEIREBER (&)

FHEMEBARNER (&)

Place and date of issued Percentage of equity
of incorporation/ ordinary/ attributable to the
registration and registered Company
Name place of operation share capital RAFEEEZE AL Principal activities
BRAEER/
AMAL/ERtE  SEMBRAM  Direct Indirect
L REBREXLE HE E# B TEEK
Hebei Puhehang Property Hebei, the PRC/ RMBS5,000,000 — 51%  Property management
Management Co., Ltd. Mainland China services
16 March 2021
ALERNTNEEREREE  FEMG/PEFL — 51% WEERRHK
DR ** 2021F3A16H 5,000,0007T

* Shanghai Pujiang Property Co., Ltd. is registered as a
wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

**  These subsidiaries are registered as a limited liability
companies under PRC law.

During the year, the Group acquired Chupu
Group from the third parties as the subsidiaries
of Shanghai Pujiang Ruizheng Property Co., Ltd..
Further details of the acquisition are included in
note 36 to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the
Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would,
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars
of excessive length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION 21 REEXE

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, except for
certain equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income, investment
properties and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB") and all values are rounded to the
nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2021. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly
or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights,
to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing
rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less
than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an
investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other
vote holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual
arrangements; and

(¢) the Group's voting rights and potential voting
rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are
prepared for the same reporting period as the
Company, using consistent accounting policies.
The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from
the date on which the Group obtains control, and
continue to be consolidated until the date that such
control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other
comprehensive income are attributed to the
owners of the parent of the Group and to the
non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.
All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in
full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls
an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that
there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control described above. A change
in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without
a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.1

2.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill)
and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying
amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii)
the cumulative translation differences recorded
in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus
or deficit in profit or loss. The Group’s share
of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same
basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS

4 and HKFRS 16

Amendment to HKFRS 16 Cowia-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond 30

June 2021 (early adopted)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES (continued)
The nature and the impact of the revised HKFRSs
are described below:

(a)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS
7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 address issues
not dealt with in the previous amendments
which affect financial reporting when an
existing interest rate benchmark is replaced
with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The
amendments provide a practical expedient to
allow the effective interest rate to be updated
without adjusting the carrying amount of
financial assets and liabilities when accounting
for changes in the basis for determining the
contractual cash flows of financial assets and
liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence
of the interest rate benchmark reform and
the new basis for determining the contractual
cash flows is economically equivalent to
the previous basis immediately preceding
the change. In addition, the amendments
permit changes required by the interest rate
benchmark reform to be made to hedge
designations and hedge documentation
without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could
arise on transition are dealt with through
the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness.
The amendments also provide a temporary
relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an
RFR is designated as a risk component. The
relief allows an entity, upon designation of
the hedge, to assume that the separately
identifiable requirement is met, provided
the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable
within the next 24 months. Furthermore, the
amendments require an entity to disclose
additional information to enable users of
financial statements to understand the
effect of interest rate benchmark reform
on an entity’s financial instruments and risk
management strategy.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(a)

(b)

(continued)

The Group had certain interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings denominated in
Hong Kong dollars based on the Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (“HIBOR”) as at 31
December 2021. The Group expects that
HIBOR will continue to exist and the interest
rate benchmark reform has not had an impact
on the Group’s HIBOR-based borrowings.
Additional information about the transition
and the associated risks is disclosed in note 44
to the financial statements.

Amendment to HKFRS 16 issued in April
2021 extends the availability of the practical
expedient for lessees to elect not to apply
lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence
of the covid-19 pandemic by 12 months.
Accordingly, the practical expedient applies
to rent concessions for which any reduction
in lease payments affects only payments
originally due on or before 30 June 2022,
provided the other conditions for applying the
practical expedient are met. The amendment
is effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any
cumulative effect of initially applying the
amendment recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at the
beginning of the current accounting period.
Earlier application is permitted.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES (continued)

(b) (continued)

The Group has early adopted the amendment
on 1 January 2021. However, the Group has
not received covid-19-related rent concessions
and plans to apply the practical expedient
when it becomes applicable within the allowed

period of application.

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not
yet effective, in these financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKFRS 17
Amendment to HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12
Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Reference to the Conceotual Framework!
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture?

Insurance Contracts’

Insurance Contracts’

Initial Application of HKFRS 17 and HKFRS 9 -
Comparative Information’

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current’
Disclosure of Accounting Policies?

Definition of Accounting Estimates?

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising
from a Single Transaction’

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before
Intended Use'

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfillng a Contract!

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs - Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, Illustrative

2018-2020

Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and
HKAS 411
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

1

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

No mandatory effective date yet determined but available
for adoption

As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements
— Classification by the Borrower of a Term Loan that
Contains a Repayment on Demand Clause was revised in
October 2020 to align the corresponding wording with no
change in conclusion

As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued
in October 2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the
temporary exemption that permits insurers to apply HKAS
39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are
expected to be applicable to the Group is described
below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace
a reference to the previous Framework for the
Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements
with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without
significantly changing its requirements. The
amendments also add to HKFRS 3 an exception
to its recognition principle for an entity to refer
to the Conceptual Framework to determine what
constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities
that would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK
(IFRIC)-Int 21 if they were incurred separately rather
than assumed in a business combination, an entity
applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or HK
(IFRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual
Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify
that contingent assets do not qualify for recognition
at the acquisition date. The Group expects to adopt
the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively
to business combinations for which the acquisition
date is on or after the date of first application, the
Group will not be affected by these amendments
on the date of transition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EHEMEERERNE B UK R

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011)
address an inconsistency between the requirements
in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between
an investor and its associate or joint venture. The
amendments require a full recognition of a gain
or loss resulting from a downstream transaction
when the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture constitutes
a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting
from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively.
The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) was
removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after
the completion of a broader review of accounting
for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current clarify the requirements
for classifying liabilities as current or non-current.
The amendments specify that if an entity’'s right
to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the
entity complying with specified conditions, the
entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability
at the end of the reporting period if it complies
with those conditions at that date. Classification
of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood that
the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement
of the liability. The amendments also clarify the
situations that are considered a settlement of a
liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier application
is permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies require entities to disclose their material
accounting policy information rather than their
significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s
financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. Amendments to
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of
materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
Amendments to HKAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
earlier application is permitted. Since the guidance
provided in the amendments to HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for
these amendments is not necessary. The Group is
currently assessing the impact of the amendments
on the Group’s accounting policy disclosures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EHEMEERERNE B UK R

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8 clarify the distinction
between changes in accounting estimates and
changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts
in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
and apply to changes in accounting policies and
changes in accounting estimates that occur on or
after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Amendments to HKAS 12 narrow the scope of the
initial recognition exception so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore,
entities are required to recognise a deferred tax
asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and
shall be applied to transactions related to leases
and decommissioning obligations at the beginning
of the earliest comparative period presented, with
any cumulative effect recognised as an adjustment
to the opening balance of retained profits or other
component of equity as appropriate at that date.
In addition, the amendments shall be applied
prospectively to transactions other than leases and
decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

The Group has applied the initial recognition
exception and did not recognise a deferred tax
asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences for transactions related to leases. Upon
initial application of these amendments, the Group
will recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred
tax liability for deductible and taxable temporary
differences associated with right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, and recognise the cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained
profits at the beginning of the earliest comparative
period presented.

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from
deducting from the cost of an item of property,
plant and equipment any proceeds from selling
items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the
proceeds from selling any such items, and the cost
of those items, in profit or loss. The amendments
are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied
retrospectively only to items of property, plant
and equipment made available for use on or after
the beginning of the earliest period presented in
the financial statements in which the entity first
applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE 23 EHEMEERERNE B UK R

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the
purpose of assessing whether a contract is onerous
under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the contract
comprises the costs that relate directly to the
contract. Costs that relate directly to a contract
include both the incremental costs of fulfilling that
contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to
fulfilling that contract (e.g., an allocation of the
depreciation charge for an item of property, plant
and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as
well as contract management and supervision
costs). General and administrative costs do not
relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless
they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty
under the contract. The amendments are effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an
entity has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the
beginning of the annual reporting period in which
it first applies the amendments. Earlier application
is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially
applying the amendments shall be recognised as
an adjustment to the opening equity at the date of
initial application without restating the comparative
information. The amendments are not expected to
have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets
out amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative
Examples accompanying HKFRS 16, and HKAS 41.
Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

o HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the
fees that an entity includes when assessing
whether the terms of a new or modified
financial liability are substantially different
from the terms of the original financial liability.
These fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the
borrower or lender on the other’'s behalf. An
entity applies the amendment to financial
liabilities that are modified or exchanged on
or after the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which the entity first applies the
amendment. The amendment is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022. Earlier application is permitted.
The amendment is not expected to have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

o HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration
of payments from the lessor relating to
leasehold improvements in Illustrative Example
13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes
potential confusion regarding the treatment of
lease incentives when applying HKFRS 16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Investments in associates and joint
ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a
long term interest of generally not less than 20%
of the equity voting rights and over which it is in a
position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial
and operating policy decisions of the investee, but
is not control or joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement
whereby the parties that have joint control of the
arrangement have rights to the net assets of the
joint venture. Joint control is the contractually
agreed sharing of control of an arrangement, which
exists only when decisions about the relevant
activities require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint
ventures are stated in the consolidated statements
of financial position at the Group’s share of net
assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. The Group’s share of the
post-acquisition results and other comprehensive
income of associates and joint ventures is included
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and consolidated other comprehensive income,
respectively. In addition, when there has been a
change recognised directly in the equity of the
associate or joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Unrealised gains and losses resulting from
transactions between the Group and its associates
or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s investments in the associates or joint
ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of associates
or joint ventures is included as part of the Group's
investments in associates or joint ventures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments in associates and joint
ventures (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an
investment in a joint venture or vice versa, the
retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under
the equity method. In all other cases, upon loss
of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its
fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate or joint venture upon loss
of significant influence or joint control and the fair
value of the retained investment and proceeds from
disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint
venture is classified as held for sale, it is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill
Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measure
the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are
present ownership interests and entitle their holders
to a proportionate share of net assets in the event
of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All
other components of non-controlling interests are
measured at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a
business when the acquired set of activities and
assets includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses
the financial assets and liabilities assumed for
appropriate classification and designation in
accordance with the contractual terms, economic
circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of
embedded derivatives in host contracts of the
acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the previously held equity interest is remeasured at
its acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified
as an asset or liability is measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the
excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the
Group’s previously held equity interests in the
acquiree over the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration
and other items is lower than the fair value of
the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business combinations and goodwill
(continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured
at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.
The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units, or
groups of cash-generating units, that are expected
to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of
the Group are assigned to those units or groups of
units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating
units) is less than the carrying amount, an
impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a
subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a
cash-generating unit (or group of cash-generating
units) and part of the operation within that unit
is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying
amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of
in these circumstances is measured based on the
relative value of the operation disposed of and the
portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties,
equity investments, and financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price
that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer
the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence
of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the
most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability
is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset
takes into account a market participant’s ability to
generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another
market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which
sufficient data are available to measure fair value,
maximising the use of relevant observable inputs
and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is
measured or disclosed in the financial statements
are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows,
level input that is significant to the fair value

based on the lowest

measurement as a whole:

Level T — Based on quoted prices (unadjusted)
in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities

Based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value

Level 2 —

measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 — Based on valuation techniques for
which the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value

measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in
the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Group determines whether transfers have occurred
between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing
categorisation (based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required
(other than inventories, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties and non-current
assets), the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
An asset’'s recoverable amount is the higher of
the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset
does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups
of assets, in which case the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit
for impairment, a portion of the carrying amount
of a corporate asset is allocated to an individual
cash-generating unit if it can be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis or, otherwise, to
the smallest group of cash-generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash
flows are discounted to their present value using a
pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss is
charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may
no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss
of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset,
but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of
any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years.
A reversal of such an impairment loss is credited
to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(@ the party is a person or a close member of

that person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of

the Group;

or
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (continued)

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the parent of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment comprises its purchase price and any
directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such
as repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to
the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of
the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts
of property, plant and equipment are required to
be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises such
parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property,
plant and equipment to its residual value over its
estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used
for this purpose are as follows:

16.67% to 33.33%
19% to 33.33%
9.5% t0 31.67%
9.5% to 31.67%

Leasehold improvements
Plant and machinery
Furniture and fixtures
Motor vehicles

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of
that item is allocated on a reasonable basis among
the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation (continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment
including any significant part initially recognised
is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or retirement
recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the
year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building
under construction, which is stated at cost less
any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction
and capitalised borrowing costs on related
borrowed funds during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interest in the leasehold
properties held as right-of-use assets which would
otherwise meet the definition of investment
properties held to earn rental income and/or
for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services
or for administrative purposes; or for sale in the
ordinary course of business. Such properties are
measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair
values of investment properties are included in the
statement of profit or loss in the year in which they
arise.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties (continued)

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal
of investment properties are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss in the year of the
retirement or disposal.

Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
Intangible assets acquired separately are measured
on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is the
fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful lives
of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite
or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over the useful economic
life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may
be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with
a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each
financial year end.

Software
Purchased software is stated at cost less any
impairment losses and is amortised on the
straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 3
to 5 years.

Customer relationship

Client relationship has an amortisation period of
nine years based on estimated beneficial period
considering industry experience, customer retention
rate and others.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwiill)
(continued)

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new
products is capitalised and deferred only when the
Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so that it will be
available for use or sale, its intention to complete
and its ability to use or sell the asset, how the
asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project
and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is
expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less
any impairment losses and are amortised using
the straight-line basis over the commercial lives
of the underlying products not exceeding five to
seven years, commencing from the date when the
products are put into commercial production.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether
a contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to
control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and
measurement approach for all leases, except for
short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease
payments and right-of-use assets representing the
right to use the underlying assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is
the date the underlying asset is available for
use). Right-of-use assets are measured at
cost, less any accumulated depreciation and
any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of
lease liabilities recognised, initial direct costs
incurred, and lease payments made at or
before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Office premises
Plant and equipment

2 to 5 years
3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to
the Group by the end of the lease term or the
cost reflects the exercise of a purchase option,
depreciation is calculated using the estimated
useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)
(b) Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease at the
present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance
fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees.
include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised
by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term
reflects the Group exercising the option

The lease payments also

to terminate the lease. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an index
or a rate are recognised as an expense in the
period in which the event or condition that
triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses its incremental
borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease
liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion
of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of
lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a
modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments (e.g., a change to
future lease payments resulting from a change
in an index or rate) or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets
The Group applies the short-term lease
recognition exemption to its short-term leases
of machinery and equipment (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value
assets to leases of office equipment that are
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification)
each of its leases as either an operating lease or a
finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset are classified as operating
leases. When a contract contains lease and
non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each component
on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis
over the lease terms and is included in revenue in
the statement of profit or loss due to its operating
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised
over the lease term on the same basis as rental
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue
in the period in which they are earned.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor (continued)

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying
asset to the lessee are accounted for as finance
leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased
asset is capitalised at the present value of the lease
payments and related payments (including the initial
direct costs), and presented as a receivable at an
amount equal to the net investment in the lease.
The finance income on the net investment in the
lease is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
so as to provide a constant periodic rate of return
over the lease terms.

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a
sublease is classified as a finance lease or operating
lease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a
short-term lease to which the Group applies the
on-balance sheet recognition exemption, the Group
classifies the sublease as an operating lease.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition,
as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair
value through other comprehensive income, and fair
value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial
recognition depends on the financial asset’s
contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them.
With the exception of trade receivables that do
not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant
financing component, the Group initially measures
a financial asset at its fair value plus in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for
which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined
under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set
out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through
other comprehensive income, it needs to give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Initial recognition and measurement
(continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial
assets refers to how it manages its financial assets
in order to generate cash flows. The business
model determines whether cash flows will result
from collecting contractual cash flows, selling the
financial assets, or both. Financial assets classified
and measured at amortised cost are held within a
business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of
both holding to collect contractual cash flows and
selling. Financial assets which are not held within
the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is, the
date that the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases
or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by
regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income (equity investments)
Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to
classify irrevocably its equity investments as equity
investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income when they meet
the definition of equity under HKAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for
trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets
(continued)

Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income (equity investments)
(continued)

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends
are recognised as other income in the statement
of profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the
cost of the financial asset, in which case, such
gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income are not subject to
impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are carried in the statement of financial position at
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised
in the statement of profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from
the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

e  the rights to receive cash flows from the asset
have expired; or
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets
(continued)

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full
without material delay to a third party under a
“pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has
neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash flows from an asset or has entered into a
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to
what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards
of ownership of the asset. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks
and rewards of the asset nor transferred control
of the asset, the Group continues to recognise
the transferred asset to the extent of the Group's
continuing involvement. In that case, the Group also
recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on
a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that
the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred assets is measured
at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration
that the Group could be required to repay.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected
credit losses (“ECLs") for all debt instruments not
held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are
based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original
effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or
other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit
exposures for which there has not been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next
12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit
exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over
the remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of
the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses
whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition.
When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk
of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including
historical and forward-looking information.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default
when contractual payments are 90 days past due.
However, in certain cases, the Group may also
consider a financial asset to be in default when
internal or external information indicates that
the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the
Group. A financial asset is written off when there
is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Debt investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income and financial assets at
amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the
following stages for measurement of ECLs except
for trade receivables and contract assets which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Stage T —  Financial instruments for which credit
risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition and
for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
12-month ECLs

Stage 2 —  Financial instruments for which credit
risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition but that
are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 —  Financial assets that are credit-
impaired at the reporting date
(but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and
for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables and contract assets that do
not contain a significant financing component or
when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group applies the simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Under the simplified
approach, the Group does not track changes in
credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.
The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the
debtors and the economic environment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial
recognition, as loans and borrowing, or payables as
appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair
value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and
payables, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and
other payables, lease liabilities and interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of loans and
borrowings is as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless
the effect of discounting would be immaterial,
in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or
loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees
or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in interest expenses in the statement of
profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and the recognition of a new
liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset
and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable
legal right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the first-in,
first-out basis. Net realisable value is based on the
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to
be incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statements
of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and demand deposits, and short term
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a
short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Cash and cash equivalents (continued)

For the purpose of the consolidated statements
of financial position, cash and cash equivalents
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term
deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted
present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in administrative expenses in profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside
profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss,
either in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the amount expected to be recovered from or paid
to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking
into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method,
on all temporary differences at the end of the
reporting period between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts for
financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, when the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and any unused tax losses.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises
from the initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures, deferred tax
assets are only recognised to the extent that it
is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is
reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are
reassessed at the end of each reporting period and
are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realised or the liability is
settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset if and only if the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets and
current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each future
period in which significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair
value where there is reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and all attaching conditions
will be complied with. When the grant relates to
an expense item, it is recognised as income on a
systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers
Revenue from contracts with customers is
recognised when control of goods or services is
transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods
or services.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

When the consideration in a contract includes a
variable amount, the amount of consideration is
estimated to which the Group will be entitled in
exchange for transferring the goods or services
to the customer. The variable consideration is
estimated at contract inception and constrained
until it is highly probable that a significant revenue
reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated
uncertainty with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant
benefit of financing the transfer of goods or
services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the
amount receivable, discounted using the discount
rate that would be reflected in a separate financing
transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains
a financing component which provides the Group
with a significant financial benefit for more than
one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the
contract liability under the effective interest
method. For a contract where the period between
the payment by the customer and the transfer of
the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the
practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

206 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

=5 HE SR ()
REEFEHNHWE(E)

EEATHRESKRAEZESER - Al
AAREARESHRESHE  KEE

RENRERBFEIOR BEEEA
SRENEEITHEUERHEERRESR R
AR TERLDEANRTRESHE
AUz @ 2Lk -

ERHNERAEFERERIBRBAT
FHERBE-—FEARENGZNRE
MEE DR W DIRERAASE
MIRBEEAE  URABNRBEALOH
MEAEEEZEPZANENRERS
TREROBR KT - EANEBRAAN
EETEXEB - FEAREMNENRE
ARBOR  RESOBEINKRERRE
BRNRERBERMNBIAFTENFEHF
XoREFNREERMARNEMK
RENHRA—FIXUNTHEAOME -
RHBERELERBEERNBEAKET D
MEERMAE B RS ERFE155F
MERBR T AETHE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Provision of property management services
Revenue from the provision of property
management services is recognised over the
scheduled period on a straight-line basis because
the customer simultaneously receives the benefits
provided by the Group. Like the previous vyear,
revenue from the lump sum basis are recognised on
a gross basis, and revenue from fixed remuneration
contracts are recognised on a net basis.

Provision of urban sanitary services

Revenue from the provision of urban sanitary
services is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives the benefits provided by the
Group.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income arising from operating leases on
investment properties is recognised on a time
proportion basis over the lease terms.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis
using the effective interest method by applying the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash receipts over the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, when appropriate,
to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ right to receive payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be
measured reliably.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier)
from a customer before the Group transfers the
related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs
under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).

Share based payments

The Company operates a share award scheme
(the “Scheme”) for the purpose of providing
incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of equity-settled
share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees for grants is measured by reference to
the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is measured at the market value of the
shares (less subscription price, if any), adjusted for
the exclusion of expected dividends to be received
in the vesting period, further details of which are
given in Note 34 to the financial statements.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Directors may, from
time to time, at its absolute discretion cause to
be paid to the trustee sums of money from the
Company’s resources for the purchase of shares to
be held on trust in accordance with the Scheme
and the trust deed. Such sums of money shall be
applied toward the purchase of the specific number
of shares from the open market according to the
written instructions of the Board of Directors.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share based payments (continued)

The consideration paid by the trustee for purchasing

the Company'’s shares from the market is presented
s “shares held for the share award scheme” and

the amount is deducted from total equity.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised
in employee benefit expense, together with a
corresponding increase in equity, over the period
in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised
for equity-settled transactions at the end of each
reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the statement of profit or loss for a period
represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.

Service and non-market performance conditions
are not taken into account when determining the
grant date fair value of awards, but the likelihood
of the conditions being met is assessed as part
of the Group’s best estimate of the number of
equity instruments that will ultimately vest. Market
performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached
to an award, but without an associated service
requirement, are considered to be non-vesting
conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate
expensing of an award unless there are also service
and/or performance conditions.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share based payments (continued)

For awards that do not ultimately vest because
non-market performance and service conditions
have not been met, no expense is recognised.
Where awards include a market or non-vesting
condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured
at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled,
it is treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for
the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the
control of either the Group or the employee are not
met. However, if a new award is substituted for the
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled
and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in
the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding non-vested
ordinary shares is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of earnings per share.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other employee benefits

Pension scheme

The Group contributes on a monthly basis to
various defined contribution retirement benefit
plans organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments in Mainland China. The
Group is required to contribute a certain proportion
stipulated by the government of its payroll costs
to the plan as stipulated by the governments. The
municipal and provincial governments undertake
to assume the retirement benefit obligations
payable to all existing and future retired employees
under these plans and the Group has no further
obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond
the contributions made. The contributions are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the defined
contribution retirement benefit plans. Contributions
to the defined contribution plan by the Group for
its employees are fully and immediately vested
when the contributions are made and may not be
reduced by contributions forfeited by employees
who leave the schemes prior to vesting fully in the
contributions.

Housing fund

Contributions to an accommodation fund
administered by the Public Accumulation Funds
Administration Centre in Mainland China are
charged to profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of those
assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific
borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when
they are approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. Proposed final dividends are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’s memorandum
and articles of association grant the directors
the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed
and declared.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies

The Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated
outside Mainland China use Hong Kong dollars
("HK$") as their functional currencies, respectively.
The functional currency of the PRC subsidiaries
is Renminbi. As the Group mainly operates
in Mainland China, Renminbi is used as the
presentation currency of the Group. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional
currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by
the entities in the Group are initially recorded using
their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of
monetary items are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value
is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e.,
translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EXRETBEME(H)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

In determining the exchange rate on initial
recognition of the related asset, expense or income
on the derecognition of a non-monetary asset
or non-monetary liability relating to an advance
consideration, the date of initial transaction is
the date on which the Group initially recognises
the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability
arising from the advance consideration. If there are
multiple payments or receipts in advance, the Group
determines the transaction date for each payment
or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of certain overseas
subsidiaries are currencies other than Renminbi.
As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into
Renminbi at the exchange rates prevailing at the
end of the reporting period and their statements
of profit or loss are translated into Renminbi at the
exchange rates that approximate to those prevailing
at the dates of the transactions.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal
of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular
foreign operation is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenue, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about
these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant
risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year, are described below.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is
impaired at least on an annual basis. This
requires an estimation of the value in use of the
cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future
cash flows from the cash-generating units and
also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to
calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of goodwill at 31 December
2021 was RMB25,901,000 (2020: RMB25,901,000).
Further details are given in note 16.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax
losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the losses can
be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax
assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely
timing and level of future taxable profits together
with future tax planning strategies. The carrying
value of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2021
was RMB859,000 (2020: RMB839,000). The amount
of unrecognised tax losses at 31 December 2021
was RMB52,132,000 (2020: RMB48,644,000).
Further details are contained in note 32 to the
financial statements.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs
for trade receivables. The provision rates are based
on invoice date for groupings of various customer
segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by
customer type and rating).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s
historical observed default rates. The Group will
calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit
loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic product) are expected to deteriorate
over the next year which can lead to an increased
number of defaults in the manufacturing sector,
the historical default rates are adjusted. At each
reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade
receivables (continued)

The assessment of the correlation among historical
observed default rates, forecast economic conditions
and ECLs is a significant estimate. The amount
of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances
and forecast economic conditions. The Group’s
historical credit loss experience and forecast of
economic conditions may also not be representative
of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in note 24 to the financial
statements.

Leases — Estimating the incremental
borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest
rate implicit in a lease, and therefore, it uses an
incremental borrowing rate (“IBR”) to measure
lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that
the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds
necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment. The IBR therefore reflects what
the Group “would have to pay”, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available
(such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into
financing transactions) or when it needs to be
adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of
the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group
estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such as
market interest rates) when available and is required
to make certain entity-specific estimates (such as
the subsidiary’s stand-alone credit rating).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other
than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for all non-financial assets (including
the right-of-use assets) at the end of each reporting
period. Indefinite life intangible assets are tested
for impairment annually and at other times when
such an indicator exists. Other non-financial assets
are tested for impairment when there are indicators
that the carrying amounts may not be recoverable.
An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its
recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair
value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal
is based on available data from binding sales
transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental
costs for disposing of the asset. When value in use
calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present value
of those cash flows.

Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued
based on a market-based valuation technique as
detailed in note 43 to the financial statements.
The valuation requires the Group to determine the
comparable public companies (peers) and select
the price multiple. In addition, the Group makes
estimates about the discount for illiquidity and size
differences. The Group classifies the fair value of
these investments as Level 3. The fair value of the
unlisted equity investments at 31 December 2021
was RMB6,657,000 (2020: RMB6,552,000). Further
details are included in note 21 to the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their services and has
three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Property management services; and
(b)  Urban sanitary services; and
(c) Sublease service from investment properties.

The sublease service from investment properties
segment invests in prime commercial space for its
rental income potential.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment profit/
loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax
is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
before tax except that interest income, share of
profits and losses of joint ventures and associates,
non-lease-related finance costs, other unallocated
income and gains as well as corporate and other
unallocated expenses are excluded from such
measurement.

No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by
operating segment is disclosed as it is not regularly
provided to the chief operating decision-maker for
review.

BTSRRI =E

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(continued)

Sublease

service

Property Urban from

management sanitary investment
services services  properties Total

REREM

NEEE HERE FEHEM
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE2021512R31HLEE R % % ERRY At
RMB000 RMB*000 RMB*000 RMB000
ARETRT ARETR AR®TR AR%Tn

Segment revenue (note 5) 23 W & (K &5)

Service provided to external customers [ 5h 3 % 5 12 £ 0 BR 7% 614,106 270,313 1,120 885,539
Segment results PHERE 55,633 54,118 277 110,028
Reconciliation: HE:
Interest income Y ON 1,315
Share of profits and losses of: FUEATARIES:
Joint ventures RELE 2,749
Associates BarE 10,542
Other unallocated income and gains ~ E 4k 2 & A R 21,068
Corporate and other unallocated rPERAEMRIERS
expenses (71,142)
Finance costs (other than intereston ~ BIE R A (HEAEF BB
lease liabilities) ﬂ
Profit before tax bR 1 A1 % 7 70,718
Property
management  Urban sanitary
services services Total
Year ended 31 December 2020 BZ2020F512A31BLEE VEERRYE WEREGRH BEr
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETF T AR¥EF L AR¥EFT
Segment revenue (note 5) 2 2B Uk 2 (B &E5)
Service provided to external customers  ENFR PR KRB 514,096 249,712 763,808
Segment results PHEE 58,111 46,042 104,153
Reconciliation: HE -
Interest income TN 1,264
Share of profits and losses of: BT AREE:
Joint ventures BENE 1,033
Associates BEE 11,769
Other unallocated income and gains HEi R oW A Rz 8,487
Corporate and other unallocated EEREMADERX
expenses (71,900)
Finance costs (other than interest on BE KK
lease liabilities) (RHEBEFBBRIN) (5,456)
Profit before tax B B AL % A 49,350
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4., REFIBER(B)
(continued)
Geographical information i & & #
Since all of the Group’s revenue was generated MR AEEMBEREHELEERFTER
from providing property management services, WIRHYMEEERYE  WERERB R
urban sanitary services and property investment in MEKRE  BAKEERMBIERBEED
Mainland China and all of the Group’s non-current R FPEAH - I EIBIEE SR
assets were located in Mainland China, no ERANFESRAL S 25 ERER -
geographical information in accordance with HKFRS
8 Operating Segments is presented.
Information about major customers EBRXEEFHNEH
Since none of the Group's sales to a single customer HRAEERE-FFEENEESR
amounted to 10% or more of the Group’s total FEANAEBEBREAI0%3 A £ - I
revenue, no information about major customers in EREEBV B RELENFESHRLEE D
accordance with HKFRS 8 Operating Segments is BEINFERTFPEH -
presented.
REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W#m=- - HMWARKS
An analysis of revenue is as follows: WD
2021 2020
2021% 20204F
RMB’000 RMB"000
AR% Tt NS R
Revenue from contracts with KB EPE KWz
customers
Property management service PabMEEEREK
income on the lump sum basis A 612,757 509,149
Property management service Bl & il ¥ % & 32 AR 75 K
income on the fixed A
remuneration basis 1,349 4,947
Urban sanitary service income i 3R IR BT AR S WA 270,313 249,712
Revenue from other sources H i XR 19 W 7
Gross rental income from sublease KEKREUEREENE
service from investment MR MMERERKA
properties R 1,120 =
885,539 763,808
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(a) Disaggregated revenue information

5. W HttW A R ()

REEFAEHNHKE
() 2BKEESN

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’'000 RMB"000
ARE T N iR
Timing of revenue recognition U % # 3% i &

Services transferred over time & BF 5] 22 2 AR 7%
Property management services MEE R RE 614,106 514,096
Urban sanitary services W E R FRE 270,313 249,712
884,419 763,808

The following table shows the amount of
revenue recognised in the current reporting
period that were included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting
period and recognised from performance
obligations satisfied in previous periods:

TR GR A $RE R WS
T RFREARIEREH
VIR & %) B E L1 5 AT B R 55 KK
MBANRTETR TUAER:

2021 2020
2021% 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARE Tt NS R
Revenue recognised that was ERN®ERY
included in contract liabilities at EIAGREE
the beginning of the reporting 7 U 2=
period: ‘
Provision of property management R RE R R
services 5,848 6,264
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.
(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(b) Performance obligation

Information about the Group’s performance

obligations is summarised below:

Property management services and urban

sanitary services

The performance obligation is satisfied over

time as services are rendered. Management

service contracts are for periods of one to
five years and are billed based on the time

incurred.

The amounts of transaction prices allocated

to the remaining performance obligations
(unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31

December are as follows:

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

Wi - Htb WA R & (F)
REEFEAHWKE (&)

(b) BWEIE

BRAEEMNESELE R
T

Y B FE R 7R M 3R R 1 IR

BHOEEBREHERBOKETX -
EERBAENNIE-—ERFNFH
RIS WiIREERHEEEE -

R12A31H "EEEHTREBAHEE
(REKIHBLPER)NRZERE
TN

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARE Tt NS R

Amounts expected to be recognised TEHIER AKRFZNLEE

as revenue:

Within one year —FR 663,825 596,881
After one year Bid—F 384,602 397,884
1,048,427 994,765
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. W=

(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers

(continued)

(b) Performance obligation (continued)

- H il AR ()

REEFAENNEE (&)

Y|

(b) BHEEGE)

Property management services and urban
sanitary services (continued)

The amounts of transaction prices allocated to
the remaining performance obligations which
are expected to be recognised as revenue
after one year relate to property management
services, of which the performance obligations

YR E IR R ARG IR ()
BEHMER - FREIA/BEND
RERTEHNEENXRZEREHE
RGN RE R EKN Y EEIER
%o RERTENEEHNMAR
MRXHEREERABERL —FA

are to be satisfied within five years. All the maAalkS FXWENLSEY
other amounts of transaction prices allocated TEESREGTERE -
to the remaining performance obligations are
expected to be recognised as revenue within
one year. The amounts disclosed above do
not include variable consideration which is
constrained.
2021 2020
2021% 20204
RMB’'000 RMB’000
AR Tt NG R
Other income N
Interest income A 2 A 1,105 1,478
Government grants* KT # B * 6,217 6,627
Interest income from finance B & 1 & WK IE R
lease receivables B KA 382 —
Others H fth 1,772 775
9,476 8,880
Gains Wz
Gain on disposal of an associate R A 22 12,907 200
Fair value gain on re-measurement ¥ .ﬂ‘gﬁ/\ Mae &k
of a previously held equity interest %E’JL/( ad ?—rﬁﬁé it E’J
in a joint venture N ER = — 359
Fair value gains, net: NEEWN S FFE
Financial assets at fair value through ERAFEFABERN
profit or loss TREE — 312
12,907 871
22,383 9,751
g Government grants include various subsidies * B 7 B B 45 7K 5= B 4 4R BE BT R

received by the Group from the relevant government
bodies. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to these grants.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PFRB AR
The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after REBBRBANER DR GIA) T
charging/(crediting): BIHBEH -

2021 2020
202145 20204
Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
o & AR®E Tt NG R
Cost of services provided 12 i AR 7 B AR 758,952 646,561
Depreciation of property, plant M- BER
and equipment BETE 13 13,348 10,313
Depreciation of right-of-use assets { Fi #& & E 1 & 15 3,809 4,115
Amortisation of intangible assets % £ & & # $4 18 7,392 6,798
Research and development costs  ff & pk 4% 5,254 4,842
Employee benefit expense EERNAX(BEE
(including directors’ and chief ERFETHAER
executive’s remuneration B & (Bt 5%8)) -
(note 8)):
Wages and salaries IERF® 232,801 234,281
Pension scheme contributions RS HR(R
(defined contribution TE R ET &)
scheme) 46,893 18,713
Equity-settled share award NHESEEENRHD
scheme expenses HEFERAX 34 1,558 o
Lease payments not included AT AHEBEE
in the measurement of lease 7)1 & 1 3K
liabilities 1,098 965
Auditor’s remuneration % SRT B & 1,700 1,600
Bank charges RITHE 183 236
Office expenses WAERT 5,210 4,387
(Reversal)/impairment of trade B 5 W IE
receivables (Bm),/®E 24 (643) 5,541
Loss on disposal of a subsidiary & — B AR A
&5 18 — 46
Net loss on disposal of items of HEME - BEX
property, plant and equipment REEEEBRFRE 236 566
Fair value loss on investment KEMEHER
properties NFEERE 300 —
Gain on disposal of an associate ~ H & — B & > ¥
Iz (12,907) —
Interest income B WA (1,105) (1,478)
Government grants XA %8 Bb (6,217) (6,627)
* There are no forfeited contributions that may be used by * REBERREET BEAUNDHANEHRR

the Group as the employer to reduce the existing level of

contributions.

Wtk - ORI R B M FOKE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

7. INTEREST EXPENSES 7. MERMX

An analysis of interest expenses is as follows: MERAZDHWT:

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% Tt NG R

Interest expenses on bank loans and |ITIER
other borrowings N E A fE R H B 3,842 5,456
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEMNE 1,146 433

4,988 5,889
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H

DIRECTORS’' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERFEMTHAEME
REMUNERATION
Directors’ and chief executive’'s remuneration for BE EmHEB - FAB QARG F383(1)
the year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, @ Mb) OFEOEAERAR(BEES
section 383(1)@), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong FlemERD RO FE2BETEENFARNE
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies ERFTETRAEBHNMEET :
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® Tt N R
Fees we 300 315
Other emoluments: H 2 -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e REREMEA
kind 3,252 2,836
Equity-settled share award scheme NEREE R EE
expenses s8I 911 —
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFH 8 261 77
4,424 2,913
4,724 3,228
During the year, certain directors and employees RERN ETEEREERBARAE
were granted equity-settled share-based payment, RESE  BEFAREERHRY

in respect of their services to the Group, under
the share option scheme of the Company, further
details of which are set out in note 34 to the
financial statements. The fair value of such shares,
which has been recognised in the statement
of profit or loss over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above directors’ and chief
executive’s remuneration disclosures.

ERTUAEREEARNDRERNOMNR -
E-—HHBRARY B RRME34 - %
FBROONAFEENEBHEERER
WHER DRELABPETE Mt AF
Bt AMBEHRERNBBEDFALAES
REBITERABHNMESRES -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERFEMTHAEME(H)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Independent non-executive directors (a) BUFHITES
The fees paid to independent non-executive FAENBIFERTESTNHHRES N
directors during the year were as follows: ™

2021 2020
2021%F 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T N

Mr. Shu Wa Tung Laurence AERLAE 100 105
Mr. Cheng Dong BREE 100 105
Mr. Weng Guogiang SR %k AE 100 105

300 315
There were no other emoluments payable FA - BEENTEIENTES
to the independent non-executive directors By E Ath B € (20204 : £&) o

during the year (2020: Nil).

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive (b) MITEE - —BHHITEER
director and the chief executive FETHRAE

Year ended 31 December 2021
BEANENAMALEE
Salaries,
allowances Pension  Equity-settled
and benefits scheme  share-based Total

Fees inkind  contributions payment  remuneration
HEREEN
e 2R HRBRER
e RNRA EfeHULR AESES Yk
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TR  ARETR  ARKTR  ARRTR  AR%T:R

Executive directors: HnEs:
Mr. Xiao Xing Tao HEBEE - 929 - - 929
Mr. Fu Qi Chang BEE%Y - 653 - - 653
Mr. Xiao Yu Qiaot ERiE il - 590 102 503 1,195
Mr. Jia Shao Jun EVERE - 580 102 408 1,090
Ms. Wang Hui® TErLo - 500 57 - 557
- 3,252 261 M 4,424
Non-executive director; FHTES:
Mr. Zhang Yong Jun FRELE - - - = =
- 3,252 261 M 4,424
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERFEMTHAEME(H)
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Executive directors, a non-executive (b) HI1TESE - —BIFHATEER
director and the chief executive FETHAER (8)
(continued)

Year ended 31 December 2020
HBZ2000FE12A31HILFE

Salaries,
allowances and  Pension scheme Total
Fees benefits in kind contributions  remuneration
He - RER RIRE5TE
we EMEH i 3 B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREFT AREF T AR®EF T

Executive directors: WTES:
Mr. Xiao Xing Tao HEBELE — 929 — 929
Mr. Fu Qi Chang BHELA == 654 == 654
Mr. Xiao Yu Qiao® HTBEED — 590 34 624
Mr. Jia Shao Jun ELERE — 580 34 614
Ms. Wang Hui® FEx+0 — 83 9 92
— 2,836 77 2,913
Non-executive director; JEH{TESE:
Mr. Zhang Yong Jun REELE — — — —
— 2,836 77 2,913
(1) Mr. Xiao Yu Qiao is also the chief executive of the (1 BTYSRAENMABARRBEETHAE
Company.
(2) Ms. Wang Hui was appointed as an executive 2) EBLZITHR2020F11P820BEZFE A
director of the Company on 20 November 2020. AABMITESE
There was no arrangement under which a FA BECWNESHIETETH
director or the chief executive waived or AEBENRELXZRERETLMAEE D
agreed to waive any remuneration during the ZHE o
year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES
The five highest paid employees during the year
included four directors including the chief executive
(2020: four directors including the chief executive),
details of whose remuneration are set out in note
8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year
of the remaining one (2020: one) highest paid
employee who is neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

LTEEEFEE

FR hEsngREREEENEZESRK
FETHABQRRF:UBZEE B
BEEETHRAL) BEOMESFRBR
R EXHFES o 2T —%&(2020F : —£&)
VHARRBEEXEIETRAENES
HTREREMNFAMESHOT:

2021 2020
2021%F 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%E Tt NG B

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #H & - 8 R EWE 462 580

Equity-settled share award scheme NEREE R RE
expenses Bkl 38 .
Pension scheme contributions PSRN R 102 34
602 614

The number of non-director and non-chief executive
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell
within the following band is as follows:

GMEATHRENNEEENELSH
BABSSHFMETABDT

Number of employees

EE A
2020
20204
Nil to RMB1,000,000 Tz AR#1,000,0007TC 1 1
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10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity
basis on profits arising in or derived from the tax
jurisdictions in which members of the Group are
domiciled and operate. The Group and the Company
are not liable for income tax in Hong Kong as they
did not have assessable income sourced from Hong
Kong during the year.

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H

10. FIEHEAX
AEBEANERELERAEBEKER
J‘E"Eafﬂﬁ&i«‘%Fﬁ&?éi%liﬁﬁ?i&

SEENXMABER - AEBRAR
Tﬂ/,\f”%ﬂl MBEBAEHR BRERFA
WEIREEBOERBTIA

The Company is a tax-exempted company ARl RRHAERSTMAIHETRA
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. Al e
Provision for the PRC income tax has been made at HPERE AR ERT R NIRERMRSF
the applicable income tax rate of 25% (2020: 25%) i E25% (20204 1 25%) #E TR B FT 18
on the assessable profits of the PRC subsidiaries. M o
2021 2020
2021% 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T N R
Current Mainland China corporate BN ER A B A 1 3 AT AR
income tax charge for the year MEARNZH 19,311 14,171
Deferred tax (note 32) iR E 18 (M 5E32) (1,580) (1,789)
Total tax charge for the year FAMIE LERE 17,731 12,382
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable
to profit before tax at the statutory rate for the
jurisdiction in which the Company and the majority
of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense
at the effective tax rates as follows:

10. Fi &
RA R E KRB B AR WA

7N

Bi B < ()

B [ 0K JE B R 5 H A9 BR B AT B B
ERANRER B ERRERGFTEND
HHRAXERMOT

2021 2020
2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR Tt NG S

Profit before tax B 5% Al & A 70,718 49,350
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% BAEMEL%TEN
18 17,680 12,338
Lower tax rates enacted by local B AP E MR
authority i = (192) (518)
Tax losses utilised from previous periods Fff &) FH i@ 4 HA i 4 18 /&5
18 (301) (282)
Profits and losses attributable to joint & & ¥ KB & D ¥
ventures and associates (note (a)) JE {5 % ) & &5 48
(B 5% (@)) (3.323) (3,200)
Adjustment in respect of current tax of & 1t Hj & BD B 7% 18 38 &
previous periods 300 221
Expenses not deductible for tax NEHH 2 X 2,460 2,958
Tax losses not recognised RAERTIBEIR 1,107 865
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate ZAEEERF| R E 2~
I8 X 17,731 12,382

Note:

(a) The share of tax attributable to joint ventures and
associates amounting to RMB2,927,000 for the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: RMB4,365,000) is included
in “Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and
associates” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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11.

12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H

DIVIDENDS 11. RE
2021 2020
202145 20204F
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARE T N R
Interim — Nil (2020: HK1 cent) TH —FREBRE
per ordinary share (20204 : 1781L) — 3,600
Proposed final — HK3.5 cents BEASH —SREBER
(2020: HK1.2 cents) 3.5/8 1l (20204 -
per ordinary share 1.2 4l) 11,513 4,104
11,513 7,704
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject AEERERABREBALARARARER

to the approval of the Company’s shareholders at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF
THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share
amount is based on the profit for the year
attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent,
and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 396,782,000 (2020: 396,782,000) in issue
during the year.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary
shares in issue during the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: Nil).

12.

B ERBRRBFRE LM E -

BRAAEERERAAERGER
B F

x

[=—1

BREARBMNSE DRI AR L @E
EREBEABRGBFRNZNREFANE T
396,782,000 % (20204F : 396,782,000/% )
TR MEFLIEETE -

HE2021FN2A3MBHIEFE KEEHT
EBREBEERITERK(2020F - &) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12. BRAREEREREAERLMER

TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF

THE PARENT (continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per

share are based on:

BR(E)

Earnings
Profit attributable to ordinary equity
holders of the parent

B
G RAEBEHAA
7 1 3 )

FRERREERNDIRATEIRFE

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% Tt INEEL R

38,590 26,209

Number of shares

% 4 & B
2020
20204F
Shares B 5
Weighted average number of ordinary AFEE#{TEL BN
shares in issue during the year I ¥E F 15 & 396,782,000 396,782,000
Earnings per share BRER
Basic and diluted (RMB) EARARBEARET) 0.10 0.07
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ BMERRKR®E

Leasehold Plantand  Furniture and Motor
improvements machinery fixtures vehicles Total

BENX%E  RERASE  KARKE it ast

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
INL S AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR

31 December 2021 2021£12R318

At 1 January 2021: R0NE1 A8
Cost A 3,302 10,549 2,547 60,196 76,594
Accurnulated depreciation ZithE (1,324) (6,758) (1,690) (31,800) (41,572)
Net carrying amount REYE 1,978 3,791 857 28,396 35,022

At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated ~ A2021F1318

depreciation NBREFHE 1,978 3,791 857 28,396 35,022
Additions RE 625 1,636 481 13,464 16,206
Disposals & (298) (115) @) (114) (529)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ F R E& & (1,116) (1,488) (290) (10,454) (13,348)
At 31 December 2021, net of RONENANE

accumulated depreciation NBEGHE 1,189 3,82 1,046 31,29 37,351
At 31 December 2021: P01 E12R318

Cost A 2,762 11,872 3,025 12,14 90,400

Accumulated depreciation ZihE (1,573) (8,048) (1,979 (41,449) (53,049)

Net carrying amount REYE 1,189 3,824 1,046 31,292 37,351
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. % BERRK®H(HE)

(continued)

Leasehold Plantand  Furniture and Motor
improvements machinery fixtures vehicles Total
RENERE  BEREE  HAREE AE Eh)
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  AR%TnT  ARETT  ARETR  ARETR
31 December 2020 202012318
At 1 January 2020: ®202051818:
Cost MR 1,941 3,765 1,564 4,049 11,319
Accumulated depreciation Zith& (922) (2,463) (959) (2,608) (6,952)
Net carrying amount BHFE 1,019 1,302 605 1411 4,367
At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated ~ #2020&1718
depreciation NREHNE 1,019 1,302 605 141 4,367
Additions RE 1,455 1,456 1 10,276 13,429
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR 216 307 479 25,865 29,632
Disposals & - (285) ) (515) (807)
Depreciation of a subsidiary -BHBEARNE (258) (301) (170) (557) (1,286)
Depreciation provided during the year ~ RN EAE (454) (1,453) (292) (8,114) (10,313)
At 31 December 2020, net of R2020612R318
accumulated depreciation NREHNE 1,978 3,791 857 2839 35,022
At 31 December 2020: R2020%12R318
Cost A 330 10,549 2,547 60,196 76,594
Accumulated depreciation Zithh& (1,324) (6,758) (1,690) (31,800) #1,572)
Net carrying amount BHFE 1,978 3,791 857 28,396 35,022

At 31 December 2021, certain of the Group’s
motor vehicles with a net carrying amount
of approximately RMB13,592,000 (2020:
RMB6,320,000) were pledged to secure certain of
the other borrowings (note 31).

R2021F12A31H AEBEREBFEY
A A R #13,592,0007T (20205 : A B ¥
6,320,0000) M) A EBEEEPIER EME
o2 ER(HEEE3T) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

BTSRRI =E

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H

14. REMFEHE

2021
20214
RMB’000
AR® TR
Carrying amount at 1 January RTATBREREE —
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) Uy B8 B B A7) (BT 52 36) 122,200
Net loss from a fair value adjustment NFERABELENEIEFRE (300)
Carrying amount at 31 December R12A31HMEREAE 121,900

The Group’s investment properties consist of
certain commercial properties in Shanghai. The
directors of the Company have determined that the
investment properties consist of one class of asset,
i.e., commercial, based on the nature, characteristic
and risk of the property. The Group's investment
properties were revalued on 31 December 2021
based on valuations performed by independent
professionally qualified valuers, at RMB121,900,000.
Each year, the Group's property manager and the
chief financial officer decide to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external
valuation of the Group’s property. Selection
criteria include market knowledge, reputation,
independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group's property manager and
the chief financial officer have discussions with the
valuer on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results once a year when the valuation is performed
for annual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties
under operating leases, further summary details
of which are included in note 15 to the financial
statements.

The recurring fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2021 is Level 3 which required significant
unobservable inputs used in the fair value
measurement.

AEEMNREMEHERE LENET
HRAYE ARG ESFLERZVEN
ME BHHEERRBRET ZKREMEFEHM
ER—BEEAEK BBEEE - -4A&
B E M FE i EN2021F12A31B &
MEE BEBEBUEESERGEME
ITHHE - A AKR®121,900,0007T °
F AEEMEERE AR BHBERTE
TR IEBEHEM BELAEEME
WM EE - B R EBRTEMSHMH
BE CBIUMBAERISEHEFTBEEZRE -
AEBNMEEEALDYBHRETF
EAFEMBREETHEREMGER
AR EEBRREREEER -

RENEHERBEEHELETSE=
7o BRE—FIHNFBERERNMG R
RMFEIS ©

KEEIKE M EH E R2021F12 5315
MEEEATFEAESREE=H H
ANTEFEFTEFAERTTERH A
g o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

During the year, there were no transfers of fair
value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2
and no transfers into or out of Level 3.

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques
used and the key inputs to the valuation of
investment properties:

14. REMEHE &)

NFEER
RER F—REE_R2BLEQF

E%%L% CMERAVEFEEARSE

Y =

UTRREMFEHEMKREMAGETE
KERE ABIEORE -

Range or
Significant unobservable weighted
Valuation techniques inputs average
EEH
(R I=WaP7 BEANAER@ABE bn ¥ ¥ 15
2021
20214
Commercial property Discounted Estimated rental value (per  0.16 to 0.81
cash flow method sq.m. and per month)
SRR /ES MERTREER HEEEEE
(B¥ARAKREAR) 0.16 £0.81
Rent growth (p.a.) 2%
HeEREEF) 2%
Long term vacancy rate 12.5%
RBAZEEX 12.5%
Discount rate 7%
AL IR & 7%
Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value BEMRBEReREZE 2 FEDEA

is estimated using assumptions regarding the
benefits and liabilities of ownership over the asset’s
life including an exit or terminal value. This method
involves the projection of a series of cash flows on
a property interest. A market-derived discount rate
is applied to the projected cash flow in order to
establish the present value of the income stream
associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally
separately determined and differs from the discount
rate.
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14.

15.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INVESTMENT PROPERTY (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The duration of the cash flows and the specific
timing of inflows and outflows are determined
by events such as rent reviews, lease renewal and
related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment.
The appropriate duration is driven by market
behaviour that is a characteristic of the class of
property. The periodic cash flow is estimated
as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable
expenses, collection losses, lease incentives,
maintenance costs, agent and commission costs and
other operating and management expenses. The
series of periodic net operating income, along with
an estimate of the terminal value anticipated at the
end of the projection period, is then discounted.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated
rental value and the market rent growth rate per
annum in isolation would result in a significant
increase (decrease) in the fair value of the
investment property. A significant increase
(decrease) in the long term vacancy rate and
the discount rate in isolation would result in a
significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of
the investment property. Generally, a change in the
assumption made for the estimated rental value is
accompanied by a directionally similar change in the
rent growth per annum and the discount rate and
an opposite change in the long term vacancy rate.

LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of
office premises and plant and equipment. Leases of
office premises generally have lease terms between
2 and 5 years, while plant and equipment have
lease terms of 3 years. Other rental agreements
generally have lease terms of 12 months or less and
are individually of low value.

14.

15.

BTSRRI =E

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H

REMEHE@E
DFEER (B
BemENFHFERRERRARNRLE A
BREIHFENESRS  HOBERRK
MHEEE EZXBHEEMHRE - E
ENRERBITSTR(DMEERR
M—EREAEE THRERER
BMRAEMBFZEE  TARKER - WK
B MEZRBR- #E2H8 KRENHE
CERLHEMKEMERBERMGE ~ &
—EREHRLEWANFEE - EREAR
BAMKERNREEERTSE B
RERME-

B HEEEREFHNMEHEHSERE
ERBLEEREMORD) B EHIREN
FEHEXFENEREMORD) - KEH
EEXRRRREFBHREEAEMORD)
KEBRREUEFMERFENENRD
G- —ME - BHEFHEEEEF
hOBEREHSEFTEFNRSIBRE
ARBERELHRBEUTAES  BEE
BHERHZEXHARTAOE -

HE

AEBEAEBAA
AEBRSERIE BMERKHR
VHEESH  WABEENHEE
NI2ESF - MK ERREEER A3
F-HMHEERZNHEBBEER12@EAR
FERBENAEBERIEEE -
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BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

15. LEASES (continued) 15. HE(#H)
The Group as a lessee (continued) rEBEREAEA (B)
(a) Right-of-use assets () ERAEEE
The carrying amounts of the Group’'s AEEFAEEENREAERR
right-of-use assets and the movements during ERFEMNEHBFROT

the year are as follows:

Office Plant and
premises equipment Total

WO BERRE B

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB TR ARBTRT AR¥TrR

As at 1 January 2020 M202051A1A — — —
Additions NE 7,529 — 7,529
Additions as a result of s B B 1B A A

acquisition of subsidiaries NE 2,811 1,414 4,225
Depreciation charge (note 6) I E X (i 5E6) (3,241) (874) (4,115)
Revision of a lease term arising N A #8451 & HA

from a change in the non- ZHEIEL]

cancellable period of a lease HE 5 — (393) (393)

As at 31 December 2020 and #2020%12831H

1 January 2021 % 202151818 7,099 147 7,246
Additions NE 3,149 — 3,149
Depreciation charge rEXH

(note 6) (Fff 3£ 6) (3,716) (93) (3,809)
As at 31 December 2021  #2021512H31H 6,532 54 6,586
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H

15. LEASES (continued) 15. HE(#H)
The Group as a lessee (continued) rEBERAEA (8)
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEA®E
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the FRNHEEAENEEELREYIE
movements during the year are as follows: SLERR

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®S Tt NG R

Carrying amount at 1 January RTATEREREE 7,562 —
New leases wHEE 3,149 7,529
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) U & [} B A &
(B 3£ 36) 188,651 4,533

Accretion of interest recognised FADHERAH E G

during the year 1,146 433
Covid-19-related rent concessions M AL THHTER

from lessors SRBFHEBERAS R — (385)
Payments INE: (5,729) (4,055)
Revision of a lease term arising from 7 A] % § 7l & 2 i &

a change in the non-cancellable BHEFTHER

period of a lease — (493)
Carrying amount at 31 December RI2A3MEBNEREE 194,779 7,562
Analysed into: DR

Current Bl HR 15,707 3,390

Non-current JE BN Ef 179,072 4,172
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities HEBENIHI MNP B HRK
is disclosed in note 44 to the financial B 5T 443 5 -
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in
relation to leases are as follows:

15. HE&E &)

rEBEREAEA (B)
() RExEREHEFEN BN
B

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% Tt NG R

Interest on lease liabilities HEBENE 1,146 433
Depreciation charge of right-of-use {FREZEEFTE S H

assets 3,809 4,115
Expense relating to short-term leases 252 B & R IK(EE

and leases of low-value assets EEMERBRX 1,098 965
Covid-19-related rent concessions EHAGTHOHERS

from lessors EEHEERRR — (385)
Total amount recognised in profit or R IB X RN L

loss 6,053 5,128

(d) The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in
note 37(c) to the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
14) consisting of one commercial property in
Shanghai under operating lease arrangements. The
terms of the leases generally require the tenants
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic
rent adjustments according to the then prevailing
market conditions. Rental income recognised by the
Group during the year was RMB1,120,000 (2020:
Nil), details of which are included in note 5 to the
financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)
At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease
payments receivable by the Group in future periods
under non-cancellable operating leases with its
tenants are as follows:

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

15. HE(#H)
AEEERBEHBEA (8)
PR20215F12A31H » A& B R K R H [E
REBEREBPHTAHELEHE MK
BRI EKBEENRET

2021

20214

RMB’'000

ARET T

Within one year —F KN 11,719
After one year but within two years —FHRERMFEAN 12,209
After two years but within three years WMERBR=ZFA 8,210
After three years but within four years —“FRERNFA 6,161
After four years but within five years MFEZEERAEFR 5,128
After five years i F 1& 8,871
52,298
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BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

16. GOODWILL 16. BHE

2021 2020

2021%F 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T N R

Cost DN 25,901 —

Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE —FHE A A — 25,901

Net carrying amount REFE 25,901 25,901

Impairment testing of goodwill GRS R W

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is FRCEGHKENEER SR E

allocated to the Hong Xin.

The recoverable amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit has been determined based
on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a
five-year period approved by senior management.
The pre-tax discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 19.1% (2020: 18.4%). The growth
rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the
five-year period is 2.5% (2020: 3%).

Assumptions were used in the value in use
calculation of the relevant cash-generating units
for 31 December 2021 and 2020. The following
describes each key assumption on which
management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Budgeted gross margins — The basis used to determine
the value assigned to the budgeted gross margins is the
average gross margins achieved in the year immediately
before the budget year, increased for expected efficiency
improvements, and expected market development.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16. GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Discount rate — The discount rates used are before
tax and reflect specific risks relating to the relevant
units.

The values assigned to the key assumptions on
market development of urban sanitary service
income and the discount rates are consistent with
external information sources.

The senior management of the Company has
estimated the reasonably possible changes in those
factors and acknowledged that, even if the most
unfavourable possible values were assigned to those
factors, the recoverable amount then calculated,
after incorporating any consequential effects of
such assignments on the other variables used to
measure the recoverable amount of the Hong Xin
cash-generating unit, would still exceed its carrying

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H

16. BE (&)

BmERENSR (&)
THRFE — EROFTHRBH AL R
THEBEMNRERR

DIRREBEFRB K AT HIE KA KRN
KR ARMERNEE - BINFE B KIR
— 3 o

ARRGREREBERHAZXERENA
BRI EE  YHRABNEZSFHAZED
RETNOAIEE  ROAZSTDEY
ARAEMMAEEEMNATKREE
EMEMEENTMNREEZER  Hi&
AENTKOEBENEEBEKRETE -

amount.
17. FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLES 17. EWmERENRE
The carrying amount of the Group's finance lease AEEREKMEEERENEREERERER
receivables and the movements during the year are FRAFENEEHBERNOT
as follows:
RMB’000
AR¥ TR
31 December 2021 2021%12A31H

Gross amount of finance lease receivables JEW R BT E NI AA%E 117,632
Less: Unearned finance income B ARARZEE WA 18,563
Net and carrying amount of finance lease FEWEEHERBFER

receivables ERmEE 99,069
Analysed into: Pak) il

Current B 8 10,900

Non-current JE BN ER 88,169

As at 31 December 2021, the loss allowance was
assessed to be minimal.

R2021F12 8318 - BHEE®E T UFHE
AR
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BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

18. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

18. Ht B EE

Customer
relationship Software Total
EF@E & B4 A5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T AR T
31 December 2021 2021612A31H
Cost at 1 January 2021, net of 720211 B1EH
accumulated amortisation AR HB RE
5 48,500 2,357 50,857
Additions NE — 473 473
Amortisation provided during the 4 P # 85 % &
year (note 6) (Mt 3E6) (6,000) (1,392) (7,392)
At 31 December 2021 72021912 A31H 42,500 1,438 43,938
At 31 December 2021: 72021912 8318 ¢
Cost B AR 54,000 4,966 58,966
Accumulated amortisation BT (11,500) (3,528) (15,028)
Net carrying amount AREFE 42,500 1,438 43,938
Customer
relationship Software Total
BRFE#EEF Bt Bt
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T ARET T
31 December 2020 2020%12H31H
Cost at 1 January 2020, net of ~ #2020F1 /18K
accumulated amortisation BCAS - B R E
e — 3,490 3,490
Additions NE — 165 165
Acquisition of a subsidiary WE—ENE AT 54,000 = 54,000
Amortisation provided during the 4 P § 5 ¢
year (note 6) (Kt zE6) (5,500) (1,298) (6,798)
At 31 December 2020 72020412 A318 48,500 2,357 50,857
At 31 December 2020: 7202012 A318
Cost BN 54,000 4,493 58,493
Accumulated amortization BET (5,500) (2,136) (7,636)
Net carrying amount FESFE 48,500 2,357 50,857
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 19. REELERE
2021 2020
202145 20204F
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARE Tt N R
Share of net assets EIEEEFE 21,883 14,879
The Group has no material joint ventures. The AEBUYEEREGELE - GEDLEN
investments in joint ventures are indirectly held by RERAREERSE -
the company.
The following table illustrates the aggregate TRINTAEEERFEREEDEDN
financial information of the Group’s joint ventures SO E R
that are not individually material:
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE T BN R
Share of the joint ventures’ profit for the FR D 1H A& & ¥
year and total comprehensive income  F| & & A W &= 48 &8 2,749 1,033
Aggregate carrying amount of the AEBREELERE
Group'’s investment in the joint AR E B 25
ventures 21,883 14,879

SEITHREERARAR F4§2021 247



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

20. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

20. RIFELRERE

2021 2020

20215 20204

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARE Tt NG R

Share of net assets JEREEFE 60,728 73,261
Goodwill on acquisition WIEEAZEE 8,962 17,360
69,690 90,621

The following table illustrates the aggregate
financial information of the Group’s associates that
are not individually material:

TRIFAEBENESAB LD
A BER

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARE T N R
Share of the associates’ profit for the ~ FRDHEEZE D ¥R

year and total comprehensive income & | & & Uk 35 4258 10,542 11,769

Aggregate carrying amount of the REBERE XKE
Group's investments in the associates MR (E A5 69,690 90,621
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21. EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H

21. EERDAFEFAHMZEH Y S

HRARE

2021 2020
2021%F 20204F
RMB’'000 RMB"000
ARB Tt NG R
Equity investments designated EERAFEFAHM
at fair value through other ZEHKENREIRE
comprehensive income
Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 3 F MR AR & -
/NS =iy
URF Holding Group Limited URF Holding Group
Limited 5,957 5,852
Jiangcheng Hujiang Lianfeng IV B ILEE B XN
Agriculture Technology Co., Ltd. B R AA] 700 700
Shanghai Guotao Real Estate Co., Ltd* EF /BB EEME
BRAF] 1,500 1,500
Impairment B (1,500) (1,500)
6,657 6,552
Listed equity investments, at fair value ~ FHRALE -
B AT ES
Singapore Food Holdings Limited IR ERER
B R QA 2,272 2,244
8,929 8,796

The above equity investments were irrevocably
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.

* Shanghai Guotao Real Estate Co., Ltd. did not generate
any revenue and it had ceased to operate any business
including property management services since 2010. As
such, full impairment had been made.

P BRARECS T A RE I ERAF
Bt AREE KR RARASER
REZEREBREIEE -

* LEEEEERRARN EEEFE M
EE200FRILREEMER (BRYESE
BRT) - Bt EfEH 2 EURE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

22. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS 22. H1kERBEE

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% Tt N R

Due from non-controlling shareholders  J& Uz Ik 2= A% P& 3R 5k 18

(note (a)) (M 3 (a) — 17,286
Deposits A 23,408 19,184
Long term prepayments REAE IE 9,290 7,213

32,698 43,683
Note: B 5
(@)  The balance represents the advance to non-controlling (@) HHBABEMNIMEREEEERARIFFEER
shareholders of Hong Xin Environment Group Co., Ltd. B R FRE o
23. INVENTORIES 23. B E

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% Tt NG R

Consumables H R S 129 223
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H

24. E 5 EWREA

2021 2020

20215 20204F

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR Tt INEE: R

Trade receivables 2 5 E W I8 196,410 149,966
Impairment B (6,145) (6,935)
190,265 143,031

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are
mainly on credit. The credit period is generally
10 to 30 days, extending up to three months for
major customers. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict
control over its outstanding receivables and has a
credit control department to minimise credit risk.
Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Group’s trade receivables relate
to a large number of diversified customers, there
is no significant concentration of credit risk. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances.
Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

AEBEEFNESIKRARETEREE -
EEH—RABI0E0R TEXEFES
ERZE=MR SEFAZAEERH -

7N 55 B B 7 BR AR BE 1 H R MR Bl A9 R K
' - Hﬁi*“ﬁﬁff T 20 P A R = R
EERR =SfAEREETHENGBRE
B o % ML%L&mF$EIMT%
& W 5 Ié/i&KgTH%JE I&tjl?f
FrHEEERBRSESETHNEBER ~&5H
WESRE S EWE E%%ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁ
M EMEELR - B HEWKRE T
F8 o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)
Included in the Group’s trade receivables are
amounts due from the Group’s joint ventures and
associates of RMB2,015,000 (2020: RMB63,000)
and RMB340,000 (2020: RMB86,000), respectively,
which are repayable on credit terms similar to those
offered to the major customers of the Group.

At 31 December 2020, a subsidiary has pledged
trade receivables of approximately RMB4,098,000
to secure certain of the other borrowings (note
31(b)).

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the
end of the reporting period, based on the invoice
date and net of loss allowance, is as follows:

24. B 5 W FIE (&)
AEEESEUREFTRIEREKASE
B2t ERBELERBARYE
2,015,0007T (20204 : A R ¥63,0007T)
X A R %340,00070(2020F : A R ¥
86,0007T) BEAGEEBKRR DHERAE
BxrZXPFPMEHEERS -

2020128318 — BB AR E K
49 A R #4,098,0007T B9 & 5 FE Y X
H - UEREETFEMERBTE3D) -

RBEHR BHRRKEREZAH
YR BB BEORE DT

2021 2020

20215 20204F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE T AREF T

Within 1 year 1A 187,779 136,725
Over 1 year B iE1F 2,486 6,306
190,265 143,031
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for
impairment of trade receivables are as follows:

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H

24. EZRWFHEA(E)

BHRWKRBEREBEREEHNOT

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARE T N R

At beginning of year JiNE=E | 6,935 847

Acquisition of subsidiaries W B BT B8 A &) — 547

Amounts written off as uncollectible i 88 A& 1 AT U [ B SR8 (147) —
(Reversal)/impairment of trade B 5 IE(EE),

receivables (note 6) B (Fff 7E6) (643) 5,541

At end of year RE R 6,145 6,935

An impairment analysis is performed at each
reporting date using a provision matrix to measure
expected credit losses. The provision rates are based
on days past due for groupings of various customer
segments with similar loss patterns (i.e., by
customer type and rating). The calculation reflects
the probability-weighted outcome, the reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the
reporting date about past events, current conditions
and forecasts of future economic conditions.
Generally, trade receivables are written off if past
due for more than one year and are not subject to
enforcement activity.

REREAMERABEREETRED
o AErEEHMEEER BEXIE
REBBRUEREABIREFPELE R
FARB )N Z BT 5 &4 R R
BHETE - X ERRAARMEER -
RBEBHABHNERBESE  E/0
RS R R A B R TRA B & 3 R Al 5
Ef e —RME - BHREKFANEH
e —FRFAME BEHAXRNE
BT ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24. EZEWRKIE(E)
Set out below is the information about the credit TXEINREZBHEAAEEEAE
risk exposure on the Group's trade receivables using HEBRNEIRERAREBEMAZNEER
a provision matrix based on the invoice date: [B, B & #}
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%12A31H

2021
202145
Expected Gross
credit loss carrying Expected

rate amount credit losses
FHEE EHEE
BEE RE&E &8
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AR®T T

Within 1 year 1F A 0.39% 188,523 744
Over 1 year 8 B1F 68.48% 7,887 5,401
196,410 6,145
As at 31 December 2020 M2020%F12A31H
2020
20204
Expected Gross
credit loss carrying Expected
rate amount credit losses
EHEES BHEE
BREE AR H 48 B8
RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBETT ARBTTIT

Within 1 year E= 0.24% 137,048 323
Over 1 year BiBE 51.18% 12,918 6,612
149,966 6,935
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 25.

RECEIVABLES

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H
T8 TR IE & H b FE IR 5RO

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt NG R

Prepayments to suppliers TN T R IR 9,033 8,377
Payments on behalf of residents REBRXMNRIA

(note (a)) (BT 7% (a)) 48,428 21,388
Due from non-controlling shareholders & U 3 #2= A% A% 58 7% 18

(note (b)) (B 5% (b)) 8,237 —
Cash in advance BREE 2,384 2,425
Deposits ®e 15,292 20,638
Prepaid expenses B AX 2,267 1,719
Due from non-controlling shareholders & Y& 3F #258 i% A% 38 7 18

(note (c)) (B 5% () — 5,000
Amount due from a related party JiE 5 78 B 5 3R 1B 2,873 2,679
Others HAih 2,773 3,562

91,287 65,788

Notes: Bt =¥ -

(a) The balance represents payments for property
management services on behalf of residents.

(b)  The balance represents the advance to non-controlling
shareholder of Chupu Group.

(c) The balance represents the advance to non-controlling
shareholders of Hong Xin Environment Group Co., Ltd and
the balances were all settled in 2021.

The financial assets included in the above balances
relate to receivables for which there was no recent
history of default and past due amounts. As at 31
December 2021 and 2020, the loss allowance was
assessed to be minimal.

() BREBERRERAVEEERBINN

I e

(b)) FZHEREBESVAEEIFIZRBRIR -

(0 #HBRABANAMREEEBRARAFFER
BRER IR B R N2021F E 2 884805 -

AL BN eMEESRARYT
8 5 /] K 8 B0 B A0 FE UL FR I o 122021
% 20209128318 @ BB EE T AT
(ER=TE @
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

26. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 26. ZREIRITHEER

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% Tt N R

Restricted bank balances received from BEERWE AR EETIE

residents for property management Rk 75 B 5 PR I 4R 17 45 4

services 22,424 12,525
Restricted bank balances earn interest at interest XEHETEHRES B EITI TR
rates stipulated by the respective financial ERIMAE o ZRAIBITEERTIFRAE
institutions. The restricted bank balances are EERUREMNBHERLEMERIT

deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent
history of default.

27. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 27. BRAFEFABEZNERMEE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% Tt NS R

Other unlisted investments, at fair value H3EEFHHE -

BRATEGF — 30,312
The above unlisted investments at 31 December bt 72020F 12 A31EAMELETMIRE B
2020 were wealth management products issued in EFBEAMBFTHNMEERER - AR
Mainland China. They were mandatorily classified as HEeWnRenENXHFERLE KA ER
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as FMZEERCRFIMESEARA
their contractual cash flows are not solely payments FTEHAFABZNEMEE °

of principal and interest.

256 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H
28. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 28. HEeRBEEEEY

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% Tt N R

Cash and bank balances Re RRITEH

Cash and cash equivalents HRekReEEY 177,764 126,506
At the end of the reporting period, the cash RBMEBAR AEBUARBTED
and bank balances of the Group denominated e RRITEER B A K176,887,0007T
in RMB amounted to RMB176,887,000 (2020: (20204 : A R ¥125,534,0007T) - A &
RMB125,534,000). The RMB is not freely convertible BreeEmimhsEMER - AWM R
into other currencies, however, under Mainland BRBEAMINEE RGO RERE &
China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and fERNEEERE  ~AEEAERBER
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment BEEIINEXEBHRITBARELRA
of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is HiE% -

permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies
through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based FRRIRITHRSBREARITFERNE
on daily bank deposit rates. The bank balances are BZB A RBREH B o RITAERTIFN
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent EEERMEEIRBEREHFORT -

history of default.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

29. TRADE PAYABLES 29. EZEMNRE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the RBEPRR BEZRNHIERERHH
end of the reporting periods, based on the invoice WERE ST :

date, is as follows:

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% Tt NEE: R

Within 3 months 318 AR 109,760 104,324
3 to 12 months 3Z1218 A 4,928 1,151
Over 1 year B iB1F 2,085 2,157
116,773 107,632
The trade payables are unsecured, EHRNZRELSEER 22 —KNU
non-interest-bearing and are normally settled on SEIOKRERHLEE -

terms of 5 to 90 days.

30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30 EMMERRERESTER

2021 2020

20214 20204

Notes RMB’'000 RMB'000
H i ARE Tt NG R

Contract liabilities ek (a) 17,059 5,848
Advances received from sublease e B8 78 AR 75 Uk 2
service o 1,451 —
Staff payroll and welfare payables BETTEKEF
J& 15 5K IA 25,279 23,857
Deposits received B Wi 26,086 27,121
Receipts on behalf of residents R & ERKR (b) 34,422 14,224
Other tax payable H th /& 1 B 18 10,523 9,648
Dividend payables & AR B 2,133 —
Payable for acquisition of subsidiaries 4% 3 {1 &
AR RIB () 2,410 .
Other payables H fth f& 1~ 5K 18 3,629 2,087
As at 31 December 2021 720214
12H31H 122,992 82,785
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30 HbEERREREFTEH(H)
(continued)
Notes: B 5 -
(@)  Details of contract liabilities are as follows: (a) AHEBEHFBWOT:

31 December 31 December 1 January
2021 2020 2020

20214 20204 20204
12A31H 12H31H 1H1H
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000
AR T ARBT T AR T

Short-term advances received from EEEFKERA

customers A7 B3
Property management services MEEERYE 17,059 5,848 6,640
Contract liabilities include short-term advances received to AEHNBEBEERERY ¥ T ERBE KR
deliver property management services. B HR B AR o
(b)  The balance represents receipts from building residents to (b) HBRERAEBEFERRKDROREUIRRES
settle utilities, bills, and maintenance and repair fees on EEARZME BRE REREBER -

behalf of them.

() The balance represents the outstanding payments related () HerERKEVINEEMEROREZRIE-
to the acquisition of Chupu Group.

Other payables and accruals are unsecured, HtWENRBEREAERAREER &
non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand. BRARERFEFEE -

SEITHREERARAR £42021 259



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

31.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS

31.

/
o
8

2021 2020
20214 2020F
Effective Effective
interest interest rate
rate (%)  Maturity  RMB'000 (%) Maturity ~ RMB'000
ERAZ ERH %
(%) IHE ARETrn (%) HHA ARETR
Current 0k
Bank loans — unsecuredand  B1TEH — BHAR
unguaranteed BER 3.06-4.35 2022 103,974 3.80-435 2021 78,000
Bank loans — quaranteed ~ BITEH — BER
(note a) (Ftita) - - - 6.40 2021 3,500
Other borrowings — AR —BERR
guaranteed and secured FEA (WD)
(note b) — — — 3.95 2021 979
Current portion of long Eft & Bt s ED A
term other borrowings — 5 — BEHERE
secured and quaranteed B (o)
(note ¢) 5.7-11.44 2022 8,720 ©636-11.44 2021 14,532
112,694 97,011
Non-current FEH
Other borrowings — secured  EftfE R — HHEMR
and guaranteed (note ¢) BERH 5.7-11.44  2023-2024 4,117 6.68-11.44 2022-2023 3,059
116,811 100,070
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31.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INTEREST-BEARING BANK LOANS AND
OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H
31. SFERBITERRHEMER(E)

2020
20204
RMB’'000
AR®T T
Analysed into: PWH: ‘
Bank loans repayable: EEZBRITER: )
Within one year or on demand JER —FAHIKZBEXK 103,974 81,500
Other borrowings repayable: EEEAEMER:
Within one year or on demand R —FAZENR 8,720 15,511
In the second year B4 4,034 2,601
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FE-ZRF(BEERE) 83 458
12,837 18,570
116,811 100,070
Notes: B 5% -

Except for unsecured and unguaranteed bank loans, all
bank loans and other borrowings are granted to Hong Xin
Environmental Co., Ltd., a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Group, and guaranteed or secured by:

(a) Certain of these bank loans amounting to RMB3,500,000
are guaranteed by Ms. Wang Hui, Mr. Kou Liang and his
spouse (the non-controlling shareholders of Hong Xin
Environmental Group Co., Ltd.) in 2020 and these loans
were all settled in 2021.

(b) Certain of these other borrowings amounting to
RMB979,000 are guaranteed by Ms. Wang Hui and Mr.
Kou Liang, while the pledges of certain of the Group's
trade receivables amounting to RMB2,089,000 are used to
secure certain other borrowings in 2020 and these loans
were all settled in 2021.

(0) Details of long term other borrowings are as below:

(i) Certain of these other borrowings amounting to
RMB1,195,000 are guaranteed by Ms. Wang Hui
(2020: RMB1,425,000).

(i) Certain of these other borrowings amounting to
RMB7,511,000 are guaranteed by Ms. Wang Hui
while RMB2,009,000 of trade receivables are used
to secure certain of these other borrowings in 2020
and these loans were all settled in 2021.

(iii)  Certain of the Group's other borrowings amounting
to RMB1,889,000 are guaranteed by Ms. Wang Hui
and Mr. Kou Liang (2020: RMB4,106,000).

(iv)  Certain of these other borrowings amounting
to RMB9,753,000 (2020: RMB4,549,000)are
secured by the pledge of certain of the Group's
motor vehicles with a net carrying amount of
RMB13,592,000 (2020: RMB6,320,000).

ﬂ?ﬁi?f*%&iﬂﬁﬁzi&ma HIASN - FRARITE
RAEEMEFTORRTHAEEA 22 EWNBER
ABARRIBEEBRAT - WHATERIER

+

4+

(@) 20204 @ &% A A R%3,500,0007T &
uA#fETTE\TAHﬂ/ELWXI&fE%@ﬁ PR 7
FEBERRERITEZLET  BRILtERE
REER - Ez#% RO 2021 F R HE

W‘MDE
o T 3F H

i 2l

FH>

0204 * £ ¥ A AR®979,000L W E T
ﬁﬂ{aTAHﬂIgﬁi&T@Ju%/_‘t}% ﬁ\
MASE 2B A ARK2089,000T
%%%ﬁgu& RIERARE THMER ZER
ZEERER2021FERHEE -

+>TJ4H§'\’
- Fw N

(0 HttEBMERNFBOT:

0 S HEAANRE1195000CE TZSE
H g 3R E 2 xR E R Q020
F: AR #1,425,0007T) °

(i) 20204 - R A ARMK7,511,0007TH
ETZEHMERBTE LT RMEE
& A R%2,009,0007T 8 Z 5 E U
mlﬁﬁ%%ﬁi%ﬁmﬁkmﬁﬁ '
ZEERD02IFRHEE -

(i) & %A AR%1,889,0007TH K&
ETHMEFAEIZE L4 TRES A4
12 4 72 1R (20204 © A R #4,106,000

> 3

i 0

Ssra>-
~ O
SO

R #9,753,0007T (2020
%4,549,0007T) B & F %
HASBEEEEEAA
07T (20205 : A R ¥
VE TR EEEEE

(iv)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

32. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets

during the year are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

32. iEfE IR

FREEVAABEREELZSBERANT

Fair value
adjustments
arising from

acquisition of
subsidiaries

WEE KB LAl

EEXx

A EFAE

RMB'000

AR T T

At 1 January 2020 202051 H1H —

Acquisition of subsidiaries g4 N E=RNG] 13,500
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FARLCHBREBRETA

during the year (note 10) (B 5£10) (1,375)

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021 7202012 A318 & 2021F1AH1H 12,125

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) W 8% BT B8 A B (B 7E36) 8,376
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss FREEFHBEREBEZTA

during the year (note 10) (Mg 5E10) (1,560)

At 31 December 2021 7202112 H31H 18,941
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 32. IEEFIE (&)
Deferred tax assets EEHREEE
Lease liabilities Impairment Total
HEEE HE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARBETT ARETTT

At 1 January 2020 #202051 818 _ 212 212
Acquisition of subsidiaries W B B B 2 76 137 213
Deferred tax credited to profitor ~ FRELH BREBZEEA

loss during the year (note 10) (M 3E10) 2 412 414
At 31 December 2020 and #2020 12 B318 & R

at 1 January 2021 202151 A1H 78 761 839

Deferred tax credited to profit or ~ FRELHBREZFA
loss during the year (note 10) (M 3E10) 22 2) 20

At 31 December 2021 R2021%12 4318 100 759 859
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

32. DEFERRED TAX (continued) 32, IEREHIEE)

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong of
RMB20,715,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB19,948,000) that are available indefinitely
for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose.

The Group also has tax losses arising in Mainland
China of RMB31,417,000 as at 31 December 2021
(2020: RMB28,696,000), that will expire in one
to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some
time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a
10% withholding tax is levied on dividends declared
to foreign investors from the foreign investment
enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and
applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A
lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the
jurisdiction of the foreign investors. For the Group,
the applicable rate is 10% (2020: 10%). The Group
is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in
Mainland China in respect of earnings generated
from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2021, no deferred tax has been
recognised for withholding taxes that would be
payable on the unremitted earnings that are subject
to withholding taxes of the Group’s subsidiaries
established in Mainland China (2020: Nil). In the
opinion of the directors, it is not probable that
these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in
the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries in Mainland China for which deferred
tax liabilities have not been recognised was
approximately RMB145,201,000 at 31 December
2021 (2020: RMB115,124,000).
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R2021F12A3IH  AEBETAEELE
i 18 B 18 A R %20,715,0007T (20204 :
A R ¥19,948,0007T) * Z BB EH BT
RBAAREEEEBEREAANKRKE
AR A o

R2021F12A31H  AEB A EFEA
HE A B IR B E A R 31,417,000
(20204 : A R #28,696,0007T) * 1 —
EEFERIE AR EHEREERE

i Fl) o

BRZEFERIDKEBEEE -REHRY
MELRR - BB AT KAEHR BRI
A AR AR TR B 1R - [t 3 B B X
FERBREEHHEE -

BEPESEMBRE  RPBR ALK
VMHNECEAFRINEIZEET IR
MR B IR 0% TE B o 32 25K 2008
FIRATA A& 7 W #E A R2007F12 A
BNRHBREENRR - BINBEEEENB
RIEEBREPBEANMEREHT 0 IR
REEABERASEENRE - BRAEEH
Ms @ WRAKREAE10% (20204 : 10%) °
it iR E AN ZEWB A
BB B2008F1A1BEEELENER TS
AR E REBABMBME -

R2021F1R2A3MH TEREARNEER
FERANBKIOBRARMNRELA
I (ZEB MBI &) M e Y 78 40 74 1
RIELEFH(2020F : E) - EER A
ZEWBRAR TR RAITE R B R
DIRERAEF o B2021F12A8318 @ &
AERBELERIBEBEH R A H K
BRARRENHHER=ZBAENA
A R #145,201,0007T (20204F : A R #&
115,124,0007T) °



33.

34.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H
33. A&

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB"000
AR%S Tt NG R
Authorised: ETE -
8,000,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each  8,000,000,000 0% & %
(2020: 8,000,000,000 shares of EE0.01/& T H
HK$0.01 each) A& 15 (20204 :
8,000,000,000 % & %
H1E0.0178 TR A% 19) 70,096 70,096
Issued and fully paid: BEETRHRE:
405,000,000 shares of HK$0.01 each 405,000,000 1% &l E &
(2020: 405,000,000 shares of 0.017%8 7T & & 19
HK$0.01 each) (20204 : 405,000,000
f& = REEC.01E T
B AR 19) 3,391 3,391

RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 30 August 2018, the Company announced to
adopt the share award scheme (the “Scheme”) with
objectives to recognise the contribution by certain
employees and give incentives thereto in order to
motivate them for the continual operation and
development of the Group and to attract suitable
personnel for further development of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2019,
8,218,000 shares were purchased by the
trustee from the market at an average price of
approximately HK$2.43 (equivalent to RMB2.18) per
share, with an aggregate amount of HK$20,000,000
(equivalent to RMB17,917,000).

34. R DR BT &
R2018%8A30H » RRBIEM KM —IA
Bty BB A &I (TET &) - AHEIMEB R
SEEETREMEENEMES T
EHE NS BRFEELERBERA
SE: LRESIGEBABRE-FTERAN
£ -

HE209F12A3HLEFE AR
FHERESRA243BTHERAR
#2.187T) AT 45 B8 A8,218,000/% & 15
4 4 % /520,000,000 T(HHE RAR
#17,917,0007T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

34. RESTRICTED SHARE AWARD SCHEME 34. IREIM KRR B & (5

(continued)

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Board of Directors
may, from time to time, at its absolute discretion,
cause to be paid to the trustee sums of money from
the Company’s resources for the purchase of shares
to be held on trust in accordance with the Scheme
and the trust deed. Such sums of money shall be
applied towards the purchase of the specific number
of shares from the open market according to the
written instructions of the Board of Directors.

On 12 April 2021, the award shares of the Company
representing 6,574,000 ordinary shares with
par value of HK$0.01 each of the Company (the
“Shares”) were approved to be granted to 17
selected persons under the Scheme. The awarded
shares to be granted to the awardees represented
approximately 1.62% of the Company’s issued
shares. No consideration is required to be paid by
the grantees of the award shares. Subject to the
satisfactory of performance condition as determined
by the Directors, the awarded shares maybe vested
in the grantee after performance period.

The actual number of shares awarded becoming
vested and ultimately granted is however conditional
upon the fulfilment of certain performance targets
and is linked to the performance evaluation results
of the grantees.

At the end of the reporting period, there were
8,218,000 shares held by the trustee. The Scheme
became effective on 30 August 2018 and, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force to 30 September 2024.

266 RIVERINE CHINA HOLDINGS LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2021

REZFE EFETRHEEEYR
BRIARRFERRA T AN HIEA
RREBEARD - BAR BN R & &t
SRERROUGEELATE - ZFEXK
ARREBEEESGEARTEARKELHN
mZBEREHBORD -

M20215F4H128 - KARHEBR G -
BN A /A R)6,574,000 3% = % E {E0.01/% 7T
R B AR ([AR D)) - B ER F5H8I18
TI7REELHMAL - BERTEERA
THREBRODEARARFTEEITRMLY
1.62% ° BN IR 0 B0 F R ABE BB X1+
EFRARE - FERKESSETNESE
e RBIRMAINEEZERER T
‘A

Al ERFBY KKK EDNORB RN
BERTFERETHNXABEME A
HEARANEEFESEREH -

R & HA K - 8,218,0008% I 19 B % 5
A A 5+ & H2018F8H308 4 # -
BRIEFTEIGESH KB TRIBERE
2024%9A308 A 1E °



34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The following table summarizes the Company’s
restricted share unit activities under the Scheme

during the year:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

34. BRESE(8)

TRBAARRRAFERETEETH

XRHIB D ELIEES

Weighted
average 2021
grant date Number of
fair value options
bn # ¥ 35
®FH 20214
AAREE BREHE
RMB per
share ‘000
s8R
AR®E T aalv)
At 1 January M1A1R — —
Granted during the year FRAERD 1.48 6,574
Forfeited during the year FRE LK 1.48 (3,840)
At 31 December M12A318 1.48 2,734

14 B AR R R2021 F 1T 1 ©

No share options were exercised in 2021.

RO BEBREEBHH R FEREARF
REHAHOBROHBTEETE

The fair value of share award as at the date of grant
was determined based on the closing price of the
Company's share as at the date of grant.

HE2021F12A3MB I FE - N&E H R
RUABEZEENRDERTERA
R #1,558,0007T °

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group
recognised an equity-settled share award scheme
expense of RMB1,558,000.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

35. RESERVES
The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current and prior years
are presented in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity of the financial statements.

(V)

(ii)

Share premium

The share premium of the Group represents
the difference between capital injection and
the share capital paid by the Controlling
Shareholders.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve of the Group represents (1)
the difference between the consideration and
net assets acquired paid by the Controlling
Shareholders for the further acquisition of
non-controlling interests in subsidiaries; (2)
the difference between the consideration
received by the Controlling Shareholders and
the net assets disposed of for the partial
disposal of certain subsidiaries; and (3) the
difference between the consideration received
by the Controlling Shareholders and net
assets acquired under common control for the
acquisition of equity interests in subsidiaries.

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the
movements therein for the current year and
prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. RESERVES (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Merger reserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents
the capital contributions from the equity
holders of the subsidiaries. The addition
during the year represents (1) the injections
of additional paid-in capital by the equity
holders of the subsidiaries to the respective
companies; (2) the consideration paid by
the Controlling Shareholders for the further
acquisition of non-controlling interests in
subsidiaries; and (3) the consideration paid by
the Controlling Shareholders for repayment of
the consideration received in the progress of
the corporate reorganisation of the Group in
preparation for the Listing.

Statutory reserve

In accordance with the PRC regulations and
the articles of association of the companies of
the Group, before distributing the net profit of
each year, companies of the Group registered
in the PRC are required to set aside 10% of
their statutory reserve net for the year after
offsetting any prior year’s losses as determined
under relevant PRC accounting standards
to the statutory surplus reserve fund. When
the balance of this reserve reaches 50% of
each company’s share capital, any further
appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus
reserve fund is non-distributable except in the
event of liquidation.

Subject to certain restrictions set out in the
relevant PRC regulations, part of the statutory
surplus reserve may be converted to increase
share capital, provided that the remaining
balance after the capitalisation is not less than
25% of the registered capital.

BTSRRI =E

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H

35. f# 8 (&)
(iii) & Ot & 18

(iv)

AEENAHHEBIERENEB AR
REFAANLE - FRIZMEQ)
fHBARMBEERBEARABAR
BINEAE B A (2 AR
RE-—TRBHBARNERZR
AR E: R ERBEERS
BEEARAEZHE LT METHRA
ElABREPRBNKER MR
@ -

& E e

REFBEDZRALRAKEETRAWN
HBERMAR - BFIRFNER
AEBEFBEEMN QB RIEIER
TEEFEMRERBEEFNE
B RAERESTEZEIEFRE
MI0%EEZERBATEES HEZ
EHEEEZERTRANS0%R1E
AEBEEREELIZERMEG -
EEBRBRABETIANIK  FRIFHE

B o

EHEBTRBEERNE TRERERT -
RBERMCENBEHRTIRNEME
RH25% @ BBOATE B AR B A B
i AR DO RXR o
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31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

35. RESERVES (continued) 35. k(&)

(v) Exchange fluctuation reserve
The exchange fluctuation reserve is used to
record exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of the
subsidiaries with functional currencies other
than the RMB.

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION

The acquisition of Shanghai Chupu
Consulting Management Co., Ltd.

On 30 November 2021, the Group acquired a 95%
interest in Chupu Group from the third parties
Shanghai Yuan She Consulting Management
Co.. Chupu Group is engaged in the provision of
commercial property rental services. The acquisition
was made as part of the Group’s strategy to
expand business opportunities in leases services of
commercial buildings. The purchase consideration
for the acquisition was in the form of cash, with
RMB25,100,000 paid in 2021.

The Group has elected to measure the non-
controlling interest in Chupu Group at the non-
controlling interest’s proportionate share of Chupu
Group identifiable net assets.
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EBa 6t
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Co. W FE M1 Ah SR B H)95% #E 25 © #)F1 SR &)
RERIEHBAYMERERSE - ZWE
AEBRZEBEETHERBEAK 2R
BREY— &0 - WENBEREURS T
120214 2+ A K #25,100,0007T °

AEEEERERFERES DGO
SEABNEEFENLIERY
R @R IEE R A aS o



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The fair values of the identifiable assets and

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H

36. %466 (®)
RIEBSHO VN EE S EERA

liabilities of Chupu Group as at the date of BAFEBMAT:
acquisition were as follows:
Fair value
recognised on
acquisition
RMBEEER
PAV/NE -
Notes RMB’000
Bt it AR T
Investment properties HEMEHE 14 122,200
Finance lease receivables JE W 7 & M & K18 17 99,955
Cash and cash equivalents RekREEEY 663
Trade receivables 2 5 e IE 24 367
Other receivables H b & W K IR 9,037
Other non-current assets HiMIERBEE 3,559
Trade payables B 5 RN IR (169)
Other payables and accruals Hih e RIBRESFE R (9,627)
Lease liabilities HEBE 15 (188,651)
Deferred tax liabilities B IBAE (8,376)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value QA FEFENATH B EE
FEETE 28,958
Non-controlling interests FEE R HE & (1,448)
Total consideration BRE 27,510
Satisfied by cash AR & 2+t 25,100
Satisfied by consideration payable AR B A 2,410

The fair values of the trade receivables, prepayments
and other receivables as at the date of acquisition
amounted to RMB367,000 and RMB9,037,000,
respectively, which are equal to their gross
contractual amounts.

The Group incurred transaction costs of RMB60,000
for this acquisition. These transaction costs have
been expensed and are included in administrative
expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

None of the goodwill recognised is expected to be
deductible for income tax purposes.

R EE MBS R WA & H b Ik
FREHNRFED L AEARME7,000
TR AERE®9,037,000T HEREEA

AEEBAMAKRBEENRIKAAR
¥60,0007C - ZERGKABEREZEEIE
mRAHBPLEFAITERAS °

MECHERDERAKAAESHANM
HER o
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BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

36. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

The Group measured the acquired lease liabilities
using the present value of the remaining lease
payments at the date of acquisition. The right-
of-use assets were measured at an amount equal
to the lease liabilities and adjusted to reflect the
favourable terms of the leases relative to market
terms.

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the

36. ¥£¥ &0 (®)
AEBFERAKEAROKTHAENZD
REFEENELEaE FHAREE
BERMEABENSEHBYARUR
Bt BE R E AR B T IS IR R B FIERK

ERRBE-—RHNBARNREREDN

acquisition of a subsidiary is as follows: mr
RMB’000
AR® TR
Cash consideration paid ENRERE (25,100)
Cash and bank balances acquired EWRERES RRITE S 663
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents FARBEFHMERESTEN
included in cash flows from investing RekBeEBYRLEFE
activities (24,437)
Transaction costs of the acquisition included A KL EEFHAEREAEDN
in cash flows from operating activities W B 32 5 B AN (60)
(24,497)

Since the acquisition, Chupu Group contributed
RMB1,120,000 to the Group's revenue and
RMB254,000 to the consolidated profit for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning
of the year, the revenue of Group and the profit
of the Group for the year would have been
RMB893,517,000 and RMB54,878,000, respectively.
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED 37. ZEBREREXRKHE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions (a) EEFRERS
During the year, the Group had non-cash FAR - RMLDENEELHME -
additions to right-of-use assets and AEBNERAEEERHEAGEN
lease liabilities of RMB3,149,000 (2020: FER L IND B R A KH3,149,000
RMB7,529,000) and RMB3,149,000 (2020: 70 (20204 : A R #7,529,0007T) &
RMB7,529,000), respectively, in respect of A R #3,149,0007T (2020F : A B
lease arrangements for office premises. #7,529,0007T) °
During the year, the dividend payable to F A - R BAIR IE 2 IR IR IR B AR
non-controlling shareholders of Hong Xin B # A R®22,286,0007T 1 & U 3F
amounting to approximately RMB22,286,000 ERBRRNSEEE -

was offset by the amounts due from non-
controlling shareholders.

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) MEETHELENESEH
financing activities
2021 20214

Interest-
bearing
bank loans
and other
borrowings Lease

and interest liabilities
FTEBRTEX
REMERR
FE HEaE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥ T

At 1 January 2021 72021 1R1H 100,070 7,562
Changes from financing cash flows REREREEF 16,741 (5,729)
New leases MHE — 3,149
Interest expense B X — 1,146
Increase arising from acquisition of U B /B8 A R13E AN

subsidiaries — 188,651
At 31 December 2021 2021912 A31H 116,811 194,779
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BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

37. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED

37. ZERERBRWEE)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Changes in liabilities arising from (b) MEZTBHELENAEBERY (&)
financing activities (continued)
2020 20204
Interest-
bearing
bank loans
and other
borrowings
and interest Lease liabilities
FFEEITER
N H A& &
F B HEaffE
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARBTT
At 1 January 2020 202051 A1H 61,515 =
Changes from financing cash flows Ri& IR & 7K & & 11,684 (4,055)
New leases wHE = 7,529
Interest expense B — 433
Covid-19-related rent concessions HE AL TFHFERE
from lessors ZIEHBEE SRR — (385)
Reassessment and revision of lease BT REHE
terms & 3k = (493)
Increase arising from acquisition of & U B Ff B 2 & 18 0
subsidiaries 26,871 4,533
At 31 December 2020 #2020 12 A31H 100,070 7,562

(c)
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Total cash outflow for leases
The total cash outflow for leases included in
the statement of cash flows is as follows:

() HERSRHAHE

BeRnEXREENEERERY
mEmT

2021 2020

202145 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARE T N R

Within operating activities L EE A 1,098 965
Within financing activities BEEHA 5,729 4,055
6,827 5,020




38.

39.

40.

41.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at the end of the reporting period, the Group
had no significant contingent liabilities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

Details of the Group’s assets pledged for the
Group's other borrowings are included in notes 15,
24 and 31 to the financial statements.

COMMITMENTS
The Group had the following capital commitments
at the end of the reporting period:

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

38. RAE
RBEHR  AEEYEEANRAE -

3. EEE
MAEBEMERERFENRAEEREE
HBEHNY B RERM TS - 24K%31 -

40. & iE
RBEBR REBBUTEREE:

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% Tt N R

Contracted, but not provided for: BT 4B R BE
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — B AR 7,890 —

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(@) Particulars of the related parties which entered
into material transactions with the Group are

as follows:
Name Relationship
7B RES

4. BBAERS
() BAKEBEITILEARSH MK
BN

Referred to as
&5 78

EBEZEBERFEABMRAET  Controlled by the Controlling  Shanghai Gaoze

Shareholders

i 22 R S 3R 422

AR MEEEARR AT Associate
B >
MERIWEEERBRAR  Joint venture

AEDHE
FHBEMERR AT Associate

B b

FiEwE

Nanjing Songzhu

MR AR AT

Hunan Pu Jiang

M EHIT

Shanghai Qiang Sheng
FiEEA
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31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS M. BEBAERS (B
(continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties, other than by HEBRBIFANRXZERTBHRRE
those already disclosed elsewhere in the it TR EERINAT

financial statements are as follows:

2021 2020

202145 20204

Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
o it AR%S Tt N R

Property management MEEBRBHRA
service income
Shanghai Gaoze FEEE (i) 186 310
Nanjing Songzhu R AT (i) 1,064 707
Hunan PulJiang M E R IT ) 1,995 758
Shanghai Gaoze: EBEE:
Cash advances BizRE i /¢ (ii) (496) —
Interest income B U A (ii) 172 214
(i) The services provided to related parties were made (0 el 3#753%1}1{9’\]}1&7?%)3@ BRMER
according to the published prices and conditions SEEEES MO QMBS RE
offered to the major customers of the Group. e
(i) The amount due from Shanghai Gaoze is unsecured (ii) )EH&ZJ:?%?% %}Zjﬁ‘i—ﬁjﬁiﬁﬁ  FR
and with an interest rate of 4.78%, and it has no RA.78% I % [E E BN -

fixed payment terms.

(c) Due from related parties: (0 FEMREAHET FUR :

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR% Tt N R

Nanjing Songzhu R RAT 328 86
Shanghai Qiang Sheng FE®RAE 12 .
Hunan Puliang A EEIT 2,015 63
Shanghai Gaoze FERE 2,851 2,989
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(continued)

(@

(d)

Due from related parties: (continued)

The carrying amounts of RMB328,000,
RMB12,000 and RMB2,015,000 from Nanjing
Songzhu, Shanghai Qiang Sheng and Hunan
Pujiang are unsecured, interest-free and have
no fixed payment terms.

The carrying amount of RMB2,851,000 due
from Shanghai Gaoze is unsecured and with a
fixed interest rate and has no fixed payment
terms.

Compensation of key management personnel
of the Group:

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H
4. BBAERS (&)

(0 MW A (&)

fREE R & A K %328,0007T
AR #12,0007T & A R#2,015,000
TCRY B U FE R AR AT - BB SR A K
MALIRBENEER 2ERE
Bl =R o

frmE E A K %2,851,0007T #) f& U
LB\ ERBEDERLM  ZEE
M EE B N EE EERE -

d AXEEBTEEEABHH:

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® Tt NG R

Short term employee benefits REEERA 2,111 2,578
Equity-settled share award scheme — LAKE 5 45 B &9 J% 1D 42 B

expenses IR 368 —
Post-employment benefits RIKZAE N 307 137
Total compensation paid to key ENEZEREAB M

management personnel B g 2,786 2,715

Further details of directors’ and the chief
executive’'s emoluments are included in note 8
to the financial statements.

EFENRTETRAEBNMENE
— S HBHERNY B RKRKES -
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BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 42. ZEEE - EMIA
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of REBEHRR SENEeRITANKEEB
financial instruments as at the end of the reporting wm

period are as follows:

2021 20214
Financial assets EMEE

Financial assets
at fair value
through other
comprehensive
income
BOFESA
Htt2EK &N
CHEE
Financial assets
Equity at amortised
investments cost Total
RBHERATE
N MemEE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARE TR ARE TR ARBTR

Equity investments at fair value ~ BRAFEFAEZMZE
through other comprehensive WHBBRAERE

income 8,929 — 8,929
Trade receivables B 5 R WA — 190,265 190,265
Financial assets included in AR RE R E R K

prepayments and other REMEREE

receivables — 79,987 79,987
Financial assets included in other T A E 4t 3E% 88 & &)

non-current assets FTREE — 23,408 23,408
Finance lease receivables EUmERENE — 99,069 99,069
Restricted bank balances IR RITE B — 22,424 22,424
Cash and cash equivalents BekHeZFEY — 171,764 177,764

8,929 592,917 601,846
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BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 42 ZEEE 2P EMIA(E)
CATEGORY (continued)
2021 (continued) 20215 (&)
Financial liabilities cRARE
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
"8 8 A
STEMNESRE
=R
RMB’'000
AR¥T T
Trade payables B 5 RN RIA 116,773
Financial liabilities included in other AR ENRIEBEREGTERD
payables and accruals TRBE 68,680
Interest-bearing bank loans and other FFRBRITER R EMER
borrowings 116,811
302,264
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY
CATEGORY (continued)

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

42. ZERE S EMITA(E)

RBERAR SR TENKEE

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting mr ()
period are as follows: (continued)

2020 20204
Financial assets THEE

Financial assets

Financial assets

at fair value

at fair value through other
through profit comprehensive
or loss income
ROFEFA
BRRAFEFA Htt2EKZED
BRmeREE SREE
Financial
Mandatorily assets at
Designated Equity amortised Total
as such investments cost
5%l 115 TE A REBHKATE
% B Al RAKE MemEE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT ARBTR
Equity investments at fair & A FEFAHE
value through other it 2 I 55 1
comprehensive income R A% & — 8,796 — 8,796
Trade receivables B 5 RN HIE — — 143,031 143,031
Financial assets included ~ FTABRFHIE K
in prepayments and Hfth fE Y 30IR
other receivables MeREE — — 55,692 55,692
Financial assets included s A H A1 3E 7 &
in other non-current BENERE
assets 23 — — 36,470 36,470
Restricted bank balances 5 %48 17 & #% — — 12,525 12,525
Financial assets at fair BRATERAR
value through profitor ~ ZMERMEE
loss 30,312 — — 30,312
Cash and cash equivalents 3 & J
ReFHEN — — 126,506 126,506
30,312 8,796 374,224 413,332
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42.

43.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 2. ZEEE»EMIA(E)
CATEGORY (continued)
2020 (continued) 2020 (&)
Financial liabilities cRAs
Financial
liabilities at
amortised cost
ATENSR
=R
RMB"000
AR¥EF T
Trade payables B 5. NRIEAE 107,632
Financial liabilities included in other SFAHMENRERESTERS
payables and accruals = 43,432
Interest-bearing bank loans and other B RITEFR K HM{ER
borrowings 100,070
251,134
FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 43. EMIENAFERLATFEER
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS
Management has assessed that the fair values of EEECHAMR RS ED  XR
cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank balances, HISRITHE R  BEZEUARE - EFEN
trade receivables, trade payables, financial assets A - T ATEN FRIE K& H b B W SR IE Y
included in prepayments and other receivables, CREE FAEMENREBEREE
financial liabilities included in other payables and ArcmaE HEBE FFERTE
accruals, lease liabilities, interest-bearing bank loans AR EMERNAFEREERAERS -
and other borrowings approximate to their carrying FEHRZEFIAREHRIE -

amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of
these instruments.
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BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 3. e ITAENATFERAFEER
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL (%)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
The Group’s finance department headed by the AEBEY KMV BBERE BEE
finance manager is responsible for determining TEMIAERAFEFENBERER °
the policies and procedures for the fair value MBEEEERNVBEEAEREZEEY
measurement of financial instruments. The finance B REREEH UBKITrTeH
manager reports directly to the chief financial TEHNEEYHLRETCEARGEED
officer and the audit committee. At each reporting FEHAHE HEXBHUWBBES
date, the finance department analyses the BEAE BREZESREERTFLE
movements in the values of financial instruments RETHW °

and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved
by the chief financial officer. The valuation process
and results are discussed with the audit committee.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities cRMEENBENATFTEFABREES
are included at the amount at which the instrument AREBERNRXRS(BRAIERIEERINF
could be exchanged in a current transaction RBMZIEMTZ2EE - Bt A FER
between willing parties, other than in a forced FRAT R ERRE :

or liquidation sale. The following methods and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair values:

For the fair value of the unlisted equity investments HRERATEFARMEEKEOIEL
at fair value through other comprehensive income, MRAKE EBECHEGRBERI G
management has estimated the potential effect of A f@ ERTENEREBABEZE
using reasonably possible alternatives as inputs to T EEL G -

the valuation model.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Below is a summary of significant unobservable
inputs to the valuation of financial instruments

together with a quantitative sensitivity analysis as at
31 December 2021 and 2020:

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H
43. TR T EN AL ERAFESR

(#&)

TR A 20214F %2020%12 A31H & @t
TAFBEZEATHRG ARIKEER
StBRESTOBE:

Significant
unobservable Sensitivity of fair
Valuation technique input(level 3) value to the input
EXTAEEBAYE AFEHBAHEZ
i 18 £ i (F=&) BRE
Equity investments at Valuation multiples Average EV/EBITDA 5% (2020: 5%)
fair value through multiple of peers increase/decrease in
other comprehensive multiple would result
income in increase/decrease
in fair value by
RMB333,000 (2020:
RMB340,000)
BRAFEFARMEE HEBH @] % £ ¥9 EV/EBITDA B8 T T ¥%5%
W IRARKRE & & (20204 : 5%) K &

BMAFEEN
A R #333,000
TL (20204 : A R
340,0007T)
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BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE 3. e ITAENATFERAFESER
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL (&)
INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Fair value hierarchy NFEEER
The following tables illustrate the fair value TRINMAEBEERITARNTEFES
measurement hierarchy of the Group’s financial &
instruments:
Assets measured at fair value: EAVFEFENEE:
As at 31 December 2021 A2021%12HA31H

Fair value measurement using
EATHREETAFEFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

EATEE EAFTEE

REBTEZ GABE GaABE
BEE-R) (F=R) (B=R) At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®BTRT AR®TR AR¥TxR

Equity investments designated 18 & 2 A FEFTA
at fair value through other Hitt 2 E R Em
comprehensive income RAKE 2,272 — 6,657 8,929
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H
43. TR T EN AL ERAFESR

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)
As at 31 December 2020

(#&)

ATES

& (8

R2020512A31H

Fair value measurement using

ERATHEEETRATEFE
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
BEAUEBR EXTUEER
& B miE N6 BASE
BEE-R) (E-H) (B=&) Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETRT AR%®TR AR%®TR
Equity investments designated 1§ E R A FEFAE
at fair value through other 2 [ M B R
comprehensive income RE 2,244 = 6,552 8,796
Financial assets at fair value ~ KA FEFABEN
through profit or loss ERMEE — — 30,312 30,312
2,244 — 36,864 39,108
The movements in fair value measurements within FRN - B=Z=RANATEFEZEHOT
Level 3 during the year are as follows:
2021 2020
2021% 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE Tt NG R
Equity investments at fair value through & QA FEFAHEME2E
other comprehensive income W B RARKE
At 1 January ®1A18 8,796 6,290
Total gains/(losses) recognised in other — # E 4th 2 1 UK 25 7 3R A9
comprehensive income Wa /(&) 133 (2,107)
Purchases = —_ 4,613
At 31 December M12A31H 8,929 8,796
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. BB E R EEREBEBERBUR

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
cash and bank balances, finance leases, bank
loans and other borrowings. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for
the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are foreign currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews and
agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk
As the Group has no bank loans with floating
interest rate, there is no interest risk.

Foreign currency risk

The Group’s businesses are located in Mainland
China and nearly all transactions are conducted
in RMB. As nearly all of the Group’s assets and
liabilities were denominated in RMB, the subsidiaries
of the Company in Mainland China were not
subject to significant foreign currency risk. As at 31
December 2021, the Group’s assets and liabilities
denominated in HKD were mainly held by the
Company and certain subsidiaries incorporated
outside Mainland China which had HKD as their
functional currency, and the Group did not have
material foreign currency transactions in Mainland
China during the year.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties. It is the Group’s policy
that all customers who wish to trade on credit
terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis and the Group’s exposure to bad
debts is not significant. For transactions that are
not denominated in the functional currency of the
relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer
credit terms without the specific approval of the
Head of Credit Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging
The tables below show the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the
Group's credit policy, which is mainly based on past
due information unless other information is available
without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December.

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts
for financial assets and the exposure to credit risk
for the financial guarantee contracts.

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 20214612 A31H
HEEREBREERBE®E)

= &b
$;’%{%éﬁi RARGEERINE=T
CREBEAKENREK  IARRE

EMMLﬁx%m%ﬁw\ﬁLLﬁg
RERF W AEESIHEETE
Witk MASEENZERRERITTERX o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. X RKBEEEERBKE (H)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging Bk EREFRBEER (B)
(continued)
As at 31 December 2021 7A2021512831H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12488
REGEER 2HRAREER

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
Z1RR EN)A #3EA Bt A% @t
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB‘000
ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR AR®TR ARETR

Trade receivables* B AR M B - - - 190,265 190,265
Financial lease receivables* EhRERENE"

— Not yet past due —HRBH 99,069 - - - 99,069
Financial assets included in HARRRER A ELR

prepayments and other receivables ~ BHISBEE

— Normal** —FE* 79,987 - - - 79,987
Financial assets included in other non-  FFAEMFERBEENH SR

current assets 2¥:3

— Normal** —FE* 23,408 - - - 23,408
Restricted bank balances RRHBTES

— Not yet past due —HABH 2,424 - - - 2,44
Cash and cash equivalents ReRRLEEN

— Not yet past due —HEBS 177,764 = = = 177,764

402,652 = 190,265 592,917
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

(continued)

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

44. B REREEBEERBE (&)

B B £ PR KRR (&)

As at 31 December 2020 72020612 A31H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 A
BHEEER HEBEERE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1RE FRE 3B Bl A& @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETR ARETR AR%TT AR%T:
Trade receivables* EHRME - - - 143,031 143,031
Financial assets included in SARRTEREME
prepayments and other KFEmemERE
receivables
— Normal** — g 55,692 - — — 55,692
Financial assets included in other A E#3EREEEH
non-current assets TREE
— Normal** — EF* 36,470 — — — 36,470
Restricted bank balances RBHRTES
— Not yet past due — AR 12,525 — — — 12,525
Cash and cash equivalents RERBELEZED
— Not yet past due —RAREH 126,506 - - - 126,506
Financial assets at fair value BATEHABREN
through profit or loss THEE
— Not yet past due —RARH 30,312 — — — 30,312
261,505 - — 143,031 404,536

* %

For trade receivables to which the Group applies the
simplified approach for impairment, information based on
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 24 to the financial
statements.

The credit quality of the financial assets included in
prepayments and other receivables, finance lease
receivables and other non-current assets are considered
to be “normal” when they are not past due and there is
no information indicating that the financial assets had a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
Otherwise, the credit quality of the financial assets is
considered to be “doubtful”.

* %

RASEHRERBELENE S E KK
EME EREBEESHNENRYE
RN E245 5 -

AN FEREMERKE  BERE
HEFRALEMERDEENESREED
FEEIEZNHABSANEENRASR
BEBVGEREXEZMABERTHR
RIEF]-BR - eRHEENEEEERR
RIAEE] -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging
(continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in note 24 to the financial statements.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement
for collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are
managed by customer/counterparty, by geographical
region and by industry sector. There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk within the
Group as the customer bases of the Group's trade
receivables are widely dispersed in different sectors

and industries.

44,

BHEEREEBEERBEE)

mm:“

B Bz b PR & K B BR

FRAEBEZRWAREMELENEE
BENE—FSEEBIE  EHEHRRN
241 5 o

MRS EERERAFRE Eﬁm%
=R MABBHERENR -
RRETHEF/HFFRRILE KRR
TENHERE - ARAEEE ZRIR
BENEPEREZOMR AR D BRITE
AEBEERBRNETRELMEE -

I:l/\

Liquidity risk REBESRRE
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of AEEFAKEE RS ESFEITA
funds using a recurring liquidity planning tool. ERAEESRRAER liI:I/\E.%J%

This tool considers the maturity of both its
financial instruments and financial assets (e.g.,
trade receivables) and projected cash flows from
operations.

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance
between continuity of funding and flexibility
through the use of bank loans and other
interest-bearing loans.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 44. R EKREEEERBEX(H)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued) REBEERRE (8)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial AEENERABENRSREARRRS
liabilities as at the end of each reporting period, HRMBARFTENIHBERDOT
based on the contractual undiscounted payments, is
as follows:

As at 31 December 2021
R2021%12A31H
On Less than 3 3to 12 1to5
demand months months years Total

RERX 3AA  3ZE12{8AR 125%F @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR

Lease liabilities HEAE — 6,177 18,877 232,164 257,218
Interest-bearing bank loans  FTERITEH R

and other borrowings Hihfam® — 43,396 71,500 4,039 118,935
Trade payables %’%TH 105,936 3,824 4,928 2,085 116,773

Financial liabilities included in qu)\HﬁﬂWﬁ 18
other payables and accruals [ JE =t B A&
ERMBRE 68,680 — — — 68,680

174,616 53,397 95,305 238,288 561,606
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk (continued)

44, BBEREEZRERERBEE)
REBESER (8)

As at 31 December 2020
7202012 A31H

Less than 3 3to 12
On demand months months 1 to 5 years Total
REX AR 3E12A 1E5F @at
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARMTE ARBTE ARBTR ARMTR

Lease liabilities HEAE — 1,269 3,069 4,421 8,759
Interest-bearing bank loans  FtERITEF K

and other borrowings H b4 = 42,239 56,179 3,164 101,582

Trade payables BHENHIE 99,563 4,761 1,151 2,157 107,632

Financial liabilities included in 5 A E b FE {278

other payables and accruals % fE T B A&

tREE 43,432 — — — 43,432

142,995 48,269 60,399 9,742 261,405

Capital management EXxER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital AEEEAEEBNTEZEENRRELRE
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability EFBLENE N YHERFBRENER
to continue as a going concern and to maintain L BAXHEEBREERSKRE
healthy capital ratios in order to support its business fB1{E o

and maximise shareholders’ value.

AEEREERANEE RABEE
MERFBEEEREARBERIELA
B -RERBLAHBERNRE AEET

The Group manages its capital structure and
makes adjustments to it in light of changes in
economic conditions and the risk characteristics

of the underlying assets. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
dividend payment to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders or issue new shares. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes
for managing capital during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 31 December 2020.
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44,

45,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is total debt divided by total equity. Total
debt includes interest-bearing bank loans and other
borrowings. Capital represents total equity.

44,

BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H
BEEREEEERBE(H)

EXNEE (&)

AEBEREANAE L X (BIRERK
NBRZ)ERER - REBEEFE
RITERREMER - BAERER -

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T N i
Interest-bearing bank loans and other B RITER K EAER

borrowings 116,811 100,070
Total debt FEE 116,811 100,070
Total equity 1B RE T 359,860 333,681
Gearing ratio EEAGBLHX 32.5% 30.0%

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 45. SR HI&ZEH

Subsequent to 31 December 2021 and up to
the date of this report, there was no material
subsequent event undertaken by the Company or by
the Group.

2021F12A31AZ R REEARERT -
RAR R AEBBBEENHEREE -

SETHREERARAR F42021 293



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BARE IR AR B RE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 46. AR F BB AR R R
OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial

ARB R H|E RO BN K E B

position of the Company at the end of the reporting ™

period is as follows:

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARE Tt NG B
NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—REHBRATNEE 61,093 59,535
Equity investment designated at fair EEZRAFEFTAHM
value through other comprehensive THKZENREEE
income 2,271 2,244
Total non-current assets FERBEELE 63,364 61,779
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Amount due from a subsidiary NG E @] 66,515 66,531
Prepayments and other receivables Ta TR IE K B A e UL
NIE 18,349 18,311
Cash and cash equivalents HeMIReEEY 1,508 3,447
Total current assets mEEERE 86,372 88,289
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBERE
Amount due to a subsidiary JE 1~ BT /B A R 3R 18 1,273 1,230
Interest-bearing bank loans and other B EITER K HME XK
borrowings 3,973 —
Total current liabilities mBAaERE 5,246 1,230
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFEE 81,126 87,059
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERARBEES
LIABILITIES 144,490 148,838
Net assets BEEFE 144,490 148,838
EQUITY &
Share capital fi% 7% 3,391 3,391
Reserves (note) ERN D) 141,099 145,447
Total equity 1R 144,490 148,838
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BTSRRI EE

31 December 2021 2021412 A31H

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 46. AR B &R R R (E)
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: B 3
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AR HEREDT :
Fair value
reserve of
financial assets
at fair value
Share award Exchange through other
Scheme fluctuation  Accumulated comprehensive
Share premium reserve reserve losses income Total
BATEFAE
t2EkENE
RO%E BEEZAYE
KRG EE THRE EXRDRE 2 ER B Ehy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2020 1202051 B1B 8 £ 5 170,882 — 3,682 (17,649) - 156,915
Final 2019 dividend declared BER019ERARKS

Interim 2020 dividend declared EER020EFHRE (3,600) = = = = (3,600)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEFELE - — — (2,209) (2,369) (4,578)
Exchange difference on translation of ~ REFNEBHER2H

foreign operations — (3,290) — — (3,290)
At 31 December 2020 and 20208128318 &

1 January 2021 2011F1A18 167,282 — 392 (19,858) (2,369) 145,447
Final 2020 dividend declared BER00FERERE (4,053) - = = = (4,053)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FR2EBELE - - - (766) 21 (739)
Equity-settled share award scheme DEREERRN KB

expenses X — 1,558 - - - 1,558
Exchange difference on translation of ~ B EBNEBMELZE

foreign operations - - (1,114) - — (1,114)
At 31 December 2021 20215128318 163,229 1,558 (7122) (20,624) (2,342) 141,099

47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 47. #HtEM B |K
STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and B 7% 3R 3k 2022F3A30E B EE gt
authorised for issue by the board of directors on 30 HEREERNE -
March 2022.
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FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

TFEMBERE

OPERATING RESULTS

LEXE

For the year ended 31 December

BZE1N2A3MALEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20214 20204 20194 20184 20175
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
INL-EFM ARKETT AREFTT ARETRT ARETR
Revenue U 35 885,539 763,808 481,530 392,258 363,303
Gross Profit E 7 126,587 117,247 74,171 67,383 66,869
Profit for the year FREF 52,987 36,968 20,481 26,240 36,167
ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND EQUITY EE BERER
As at 31 December
R128318
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
20215 20204 20194 20184 20174
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
LB AXETir AREFTRT ARETT ARETR
Non-current assets ERHEE 457,904 277,844 147,232 64,889 62,442
Current assets RBEE 492,769 378,385 311,375 322,475 306,683
Total assets EEAE 950,673 656,229 458,607 387,364 369,125
Non-current liabilities  JEREN B & 202,130 19,356 — — —
Current liabilities TEaE 388,683 303,192 219,041 147,621 153,622
Total liabilities EERE 590,813 322,548 219,041 147,621 153,622
Net current assets FREEEFE 104,086 75,193 92,334 174,854 153,061
Total assets less EEAER
current liabilities REBEE 561,990 353,037 239,566 239,743 215,503
Net assets BERE 359,860 333,681 239,566 239,743 215,503
Capital and reserves BAK 5
Share capital RA 3,391 3,391 3,391 3,391 3,349
Reserves 1@ 280,334 245,061 224,842 227,698 206,905
283,725 248,452 228,233 231,089 210,254
Non-controlling RS
interests 76,135 85,229 11,333 8,654 5,249
Total equity MR 359,860 333,681 239,566 239,743 215,503
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